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Awards & Recognition
3378 N SE AT

The Group and its subsidiaries won the following awards in the
Financial Year 2011/2012.
ANEE & E T BB A B 7 2011/201 287 BRF E 2 15 LA T 8878 -

Hong Kong Resort
Company Limited
ERAXFRLAA

The Sukhothai hotel
The Sukhothai i &

La Scala

The Sentosa
Resort & Spa

Spa Botanica

The Cliff

The Garden

Awards

5298

CAPITAL Outstanding Green Enterprise Award in “CAPITAL Outstanding
Green Excellence Awards 2011”

RIEAEGEHERRAE2011 | hREEABHBRRLEKE ]
“Caring Company” Logo [H BRI 2E5

Gold Award for Volunteer Service E#H TEZ & & ik

Organisers

EHHE

CAPITAL magazine

Hong Kong Council of Social Service

BT ERBEE

Social Welfare Department
HEEAE

Best Developer — Urban Design & Master Planning Award & Best Developer —
Green Development Award in “CAPITAL The Best Developer Awards 2011”
RIBEXARERRBAE2011 T ES [ REERE - HHRT REESAS
AREMRERRE-RAKILER]| K&

The World’s Best Hotels — Asia’s Best Hotels

The World’s Best Hotels

Top 20 Overseas Business Hotels in “Readers’ Travel Awards”
7 [Readers’ Travel Awards | HEE A H h—5
[ Top 20 Overseas Business Hotels |

Top 125 Hotels in Asia in “Readers’ Choice Awards”
7t [ Readers’ Choice Awards | F % & & H i — 5 [ Top 125 Hotels in Asia |

500 World’s Best Hotels

CAPITAL magazine

Institutional Investor US
= HInstitutional Investor &%

Conde Nast Traveller UK
HEConde Nast Traveller 53

Conde Nast Traveler US
=% Conde Nast Traveler 25

Travel + Leisure US
S ETravel + Leisure 3 75

Asia’s Finest Restaurants 2011/2012

The Best Hotels (Resorts) Award in “The Best of Singapore 2012”
7£ [ The Best of Singapore 2012 | hEZE AH H—FR
[ The Best Hotels (Resorts) |

Singapore’s Leading Spa Resort 2011

Trip Advisor Travellers’ Choice 2012

Miele Guide

Singapore Tatler magazine
Singapore Tatler &

World Travel Awards

1t SRR i 42

Trip Advisor Travellers’ Choice
Awards

Best Luxury Destination Spa & Best Luxury Resort Spa

World Luxury Hotel Awards

Singapore’s Best Restaurants 2012

Singapore Tatler magazine
Singapore Tatler 4+

Singapore’s Best Restaurants 2012

Singapore Tatler magazine
Singapore Tatler 4 &%
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About HKR International Limited
EEELHEFBREEBRE A A

Company History

In 1977, the family of Dr CHA Chi Ming, the late founder and chairman of the
Group, acquired the equity interest of Hong Kong Resort Company Limited (“Hong
Kong Resort”) which is the registered owner and developer of Discovery Bay on
Lantau Island. The shares of Hong Kong Resort and the other Group company
were once listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in 1987 and

in 1988 and 1989 respectively. During the years 1988 and 1989, the Group
underwent a series of reorganisation and scheme of arrangement and formed
HKR International Limited (Stock Code : 480) in May 1989 as its new listed
holding company carrying on principally real estate development and other related
businesses.

Today, HKR International Limited has diversified interests in real estate
development and investment, property management, luxury hotels and serviced
apartments, property related manufacturing, healthcare services and other
investments in Hong Kong, Mainland China and Asia.

/NGNS

R19775F AEBEHRAPFAREEEERBE L 2 REEARE REEKE L
MRENBEHREGRAE ([HBEE]) ZRAER - g BEEENRND
HAREEN S —K A ARG - BRI 1987 % 1988Z 1989F AL & B & 2
SFER AT LT E1988E 1989F Hifd - AN BT T — &SR v EH K WE
& RI9BIFO A EXK U BB HERBREBE AR AR (RH IR 480) @ I
RAREB N EMERAR T ERBEFEEREMHABES-

FERZFEREEERARNERERS PERAMMENRELTILERS &
RWEZRNMIE DXREE PEHEMRBAEE EMEER BERRE
RF R EMLEERA -
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Our Vision, Mission & Values

B AP A JBEL S~ 3 i A {9

03

Vision To be the pioneer of innovative living space
@?{ WERFTE BIEEZER

We strive to create a healthy, stylish and distinctive living experience

MiSSiOl’l through teamwork and passionate pursuit of innovation and excellence
ﬁﬁ—ﬁ BB AR s8AR REAK

B R LR R
Pioneer Respect Innovation
Break new grounds _|_ Value the individual and Think outside the box

Values HERR 37 cherish our environment AR LA

PRI2DE Integrity Devotion Excellence

Uphold high ethical Be committed and Consistency in the pursuit
standards _|_ passionate of our quality standards
B<FHE{E LR IERES
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Signature Projects
BERERMUMERA

Mainland China & B /3 ith

Dazhongli,
Shanghai
FBXRFE

Tota\ Planned GFA

323,000m2

Hong Kong & i&

Discovery Bay
|/\§ N4
Al =< /=

974, 200m~

Auberge,
Discovery Bay
Hong Kong

% ok |HIJ R/%/@E

25 ,884m?

Japan B 7
Horizon Place

Akasaka,
Tokyo R

Total Floor Area
EEE

7,583m2

Located in the Jingan district, the Dazhongli
project is a world class mixed-use development
comprising two super Grade-A office towers,
three luxury hotels and a prime retail mall. It is
scheduled for completion by phases from 2015
onwards.

BrEBEOHATREBEAREARARNEREERDE
HWIERE S E P RMR AR =K %EE/@JE&*M
= ARBYREISENK  TREHR2015F £ 0 B BUE
A o

Located on Lantau Island, Discovery Bay is the
Group's flagship residential project comprising
garden houses, low, mid and high rise developments,
a 27-hole golf course, a marina, two residents clubs,
a manmade beach, two international schools, two
shopping malls and a resort hotel.
URAXNELNmREREEMNERTTIEE %
ERERE K - -SEYE 27REB RS
dEfEe  WETEZR - AEDE - MRS
R-MEEDESE—KEBRBIE -

Scheduled for opening in late 2012, Auberge,
Discovery Bay Hong Kong, the deluxe resort
hotel on the waterfront of Yi Pak Bay, comprises
325 full-sea-view rooms & suites and a 16-metre
picture-perfect seaside white chapel ideal for
wedding.

R —AEHNZEERBEEBMSSEEE
FTRR2012F FIERA ¥ - BB IERA325E 2 E
SEEMERE MEHEIEKS LEEXSHNAE
BEREBHE BUKRBITECNRESM -

Acquired by the Group in 2010, the 94-unit
Horizon Place Akasaka is located in Akasaka,
Minato-ku of Tokyo. It is well connected with many
of Tokyo's landmarks and boasts a panoramic view
of skyscrapers.

EER2010F B8 A + HBG941E & {2 & Horizon
Place Akasakaﬁﬁé%a,ﬁ@ﬁ'}fﬂi BREERS
BESHZ LEEFARBHNERRNESR

g
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Thailand & E

Singapore #riiniE

)

The Sukhothai
Residences,
Bangkok &

81,006m:

The Sukhothai
hotel,
Bangkok 24

Total GFA
fBIEEmEE

39,062m?

The Sentosa
Resort & Spa

28 988m2

S

Mainland China 5Bl Ayttt

b
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The Sukhothai Residences is located next to The
Sukhothai hotel on South Sathorn Road. Over
70% of the units of this ultra luxury 41-storey
condominium tower have been sold and the
remaining units may be considered for relaunch
soon.

The Sukhothai Residencesfiz 7 South Sathorn
Roadf The SukhothaiBi J5 5532 - i IEIE R41E /Y
BAREABEAFERNEDKLE HIBHB70%E
- EpEEEREHRNB RS-

The Sukhothai is a world-renowned and award-
winning hotel in Central Bangkok, highly regarded
by international travellers for its unparalleled
services and facilities.

IR E AT RO The Sukhothaiif 5 t 574014 «
EEEY HEFORE R RIEETIRKIRE H

Atop a cliff on Sentosa Island, The Sentosa

Resort & Spa is a stylish and luxury resort in lush
greenery, minutes away from downtown Singapore.
It is highly acclaimed for its award-winning Spa
Botanica.

RERDEILEZ ERThe Sentosa Resort &
Spae —RAMABNREZTRAEE RESE
REE - AP D AL BE & R A KR A 0 Spa
Botanica/ B &R & - X EZ o

Japan B

y

Thailand 2= Hong Kong &%

Y %apore Fhni
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Highlights of the Year
FEAFHE

2011

[
August /\ H

Hong Kong Resort Company Limited won the “Best

Developer - Urban Design & Master Planning Award”
& “Best Developer - Green Development Award” in the
“CAPITAL The Best Developer Awards 2011” for its
development of Discovery Bay.

BERXERAFEHEMRERRER R EAZEHR
REAE2011 FES [REZRBD - BH R MERR
2 MIZEERD - RERKICER] MIBBAE-

October 1+ H
—
L] Kap Pin Long San Tsuen
ol R PR
5
% ;
Greenpeak Villa /9%0 o 5
A #, S o
&, z&\% ?;1
$ ‘(?Fd\ 3
ng; Sai Kung Garden
) @
<
QQ
¥
Po Lo Che B
T Y@\\ﬂa\\@

N
&

July £t H

The Group and its Thai partner acquired

a piece of freehold land with a site area
of about 5,200 square metres on Sathorn
Road, Bangkok at a consideration of
about THB1.35 billion (approximately
HK$356 million). The site is planned

to be developed into a high-end
condominium.

SEZRE (4
3.56f8 8 7T ) B A — A7 & A Sathorn
Road 7k A B #E T b o 72 38 T (G Hh 49
5,200F 7K sHEIBREK A—ERER
BREEAE-

The Group acquired a piece of
government land with a site area of
approximately 18,600 square feet in
Kap Pin Long, Sai Kung, Hong Kong for
luxury residential development.

KEBA—REINESTE TR (5
#,4118,600F 75 REVE AT 4+ 7 LA B¢
EREEEE
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November +—H

The Dazhongli project in Jingan district of

Shanghai reached a new milestone with the

commencement of its foundation works.

bPaegrRARERANMETEIEAR
B iR = E B e — B 2R

January — H

2012

The Group launched a new corporate
website, at www.hkri.com, with
enriched contents, a revamped
design, and enhanced features.
SEELEHEEAL (Bis:
www.hkri.com) - RAEEE Rt E

B ()~ DIRETNE B2 M o

The Sentosa Resort & Spa in

February Y= Singapore won the “The Best Hotels

P The Group disposed of Joyce
(Resorts) Award” in “The Best of

Building, a wholly-owned industrial

Singapore 2012” organised by

building in Wong Chuk Hang,

Hong Kong.

SEHERLERA UNEAEE
MO ITEREH B D -

Singapore Tatler magazine.

{7 73 %7 H 3% B9 The Sentosa Resort
& SpafESingapore Tatleri s I 9%
&) [ The Best of Singapore 2012
F 15 [The Best Hotels (Resorts)
Award | B BR &R o
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

€6 e continued to rebalance our assets
and develop our diversified land bank
during the year to better prepare ourselves
for further growth and development in the

region. 2K I 4 B 1A 8 4 7 A AL 4 7 - B
A 55 Y 5 1 1 - S 1 > 2 S 3 5 A
PO — 25 R B BRI M e o 99

I would like to present the Annual Report of HKR
International Limited and its subsidiaries (“the Group”)
for the financial year ended 31 March 2012 (“the
year”).

Solid Financials

Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year
was HK$747.2 million and earnings per share were
HK$0.55, compared to a profit of HK$1,647.9 million
and earnings per share of HK$1.22 in 2010/2011.
Turnover for the year was HK$1,664.1 million, down
7.6% from the HK$1,800.7 million recorded in the
previous year. As of 31 March 2012, the net asset value
of the Group stood at HK$14,495.8 million (HK$10.7
per share), up 6.8% from last year's HK$13,571.7
million (HK$10.1 per share).

AARAREBLHEBEREEER QA
LEWB AR (&8 ])&EZE2012F3H31
BIFBTREE ([FE|)MFERS -

EARFE RNABHEE ABERFABT7.472
BB T HIREF0.55% 7T 12010/20114F
ERMAREHER ARG R EIA16.479(8

BT BRAFL22B T NEENEEE
FER16.641ERTL REFMI8.007EB T
TEK7.6% > A201263 8310 @ EE
FEA144.958B B T (F%10.7870) » &
EFER35. 7175 (BR10.1E7T) £F
6.8% ©



The Board of Directors declared the payment of an
interim dividend of HK8 cents per share for the year. No
final dividend was proposed. So, the interim dividend

of HK8 cents per share represents the total dividend
payable to shareholders for the year. In the previous
financial year, a total dividend of HK18 cents per share
was paid to shareholders.

Market Overview

In its World Economic Outlook Update (January 2012),
the International Monetary Fund noted that global
recovery was threatened by intensifying strains in the
Euro area and fragilities elsewhere. It expected the Euro
area economy to go into a mild recession in 2012.

We see challenges in all our key markets.

09

Mr CHA Mou Sing Payson
Chairman

ITFEMBRE

EEeERAFETHRESREN B
TEFRERMBE - Ht - ZPHIREE
BEEMRAAFEIRFEMREARE - EE
R E—EFBFEERRRREZ2FHRE
AEAR18EAL -

i 35 B Dt

BN RS AR (RIS ER 2R
A (20121 A%) g 2 ERTE
5 5 B 7T 16 J8F ) 105 B4t b A P A 55
BB - IR UL B A B E 20124 I A A
BRER «

BAESEEEM SRR S -
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

Hong Kong Monetary Authority’s figures show that
Hong Kong housing prices fell 4.4% in the second half
of 2011, though they were still some 40% higher than
the previous peak in mid-2008. Speculative activities
in property market subsided after the Government’s
tightening measures kicked in, but concerns over the
Euro area debt crisis and a worsened global economy
still clouded the Hong Kong property market in 2012.

In Mainland China, the property market in 2011 fell
generally in response to the Central Government’s
policies in curbing the rapid rise in residential prices.
Home prices in Tier-1 cities went soft, but rose slightly
in Tier-2 cities. However, a cautious sentiment has
prevailed in the market, and home prices are expected
to adjust further in 2012.

Thailand went through coups, political unrest, and

in last year massive flooding. Yet the overall property
market has seen continued demand expansion and
residential property prices, though flattened a bit, have
not dropped. Meanwhile, the hotel industry has yet to
fully recover from the instability in the country.

In Japan, land prices have been falling for two decades
and the property market was hurt further last year by
the March 11 earthquake and tsunami. The Japanese
economy came to a standstill from the recovery and
business confidence deteriorated in the fourth quarter of
2011, though the property rental market has remained
steady.

In Singapore, competition in the hotel industry
intensified following the opening of at least 10 more
hotels in 2011. The increased competition, coupled with
the gloomy economic outlook, has posed challenges to
the local hospitality sector.

BEEeREERNEBET BAEER

2011F THF T 74.4%  B1382008F
RSO S H 4940% © 1 B HE H Uk 248
Mg - BHLE TSR IR #E B A P - 1
MEEOR TR EREERIRREERL
SEBRMEMBE2012F 1 TR

ERFPEAM - R RBTHE LB I EEE
BEARNBER 2011FNBEEMED

BREAEE -FEEA—GEMEE BEZ
BT DRSS E IR - AT BIEBED
AFEFTIG  FEREERR2012FE — 4 H

o

FEEETHE BADBREEHREK
K TBERTE - BHETH0ERA
R EEERBRE LADN - WRRT
B SRR - BBE RN AR TREE
GES TP

ERAR - HERBE20FFHE K  FBHhE
MISHEEF IME3ILRME MBRE — X
Ble BAKENERDBIAMSE &R
EOR20IIFENENB  HEFHEHRED
BANBEMEFTIRTE ©

BE & Z D 10RFT B JE R201 1 Z - #0
BB EEMES BBER i HEER =S
KL EHBEEmETOKE -
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Rebalancing Continues

Against a backdrop of global economic uncertainty,
we continued to rebalance our assets and develop our
diversified land bank during the year to better prepare
ourselves for further growth and development in the
region. A number of transactions were concluded,
bolstering our financial position and deepening our
diversification strategy in Asia.

Following the disposal of our 50% interest in Discovery
Park Shopping Centre in Tsuen Wan of Hong Kong in
the previous financial year, in March 2012, we disposed
of Joyce Building, an industrial building in Wong Chuk
Hang, Hong Kong, at a consideration of HK$615 million.

In June 2012, we also disposed of Siri Sathorn, a deluxe
serviced residences in Bangkok, for about THB700
million (approximately HK$177 million).

With a strong financial position, we are on the
constant lookout for good investment and development
opportunities both in Hong Kong and Asia.

In October 2011, we purchased a piece of Government
land with a site area of approximately 18,600 square
feet in Kap Pin Long, Sai Kung, Hong Kong for luxury
residential development.

In July 2011, we also joined hands with our Thai partner
to acquire a piece of freehold land with a site area of
approximately 5,200 square metres on Sathorn Road,
Bangkok. This site, and another 12,600-square-metre
site on Wireless Road that we acquired in 2010, will
both be developed for high-end residential projects.

More recently, in June 2012, we successfully acquired
in an open auction the Land Use Right of a piece of
land in Yao Jia Dang Area in the Jiaxing Economic and
Technology Development Zone of Jiaxing City, Zhejiang,
China. The 41,000-square-metre land will also be used
for residential development.

11

B RN A

EHEREETR BARNFENRESE
MEBCEE B INEDM SR Lt
REEXGERNE - SRR MERML
- BMTRTHEAR S ZETREDN
MRE S - Wit — RPN B IMNEA R
% LAt 5 SR o

B EF— R BRFEREEEEEREH
WY S H50% w1 - I ER20129F
A6 ISEBTEEMREBEMNA T
EREFRHIF L

201296 A B AFINAL7EZ =&k (491.77
BBT) HEMR AN RERBE N AE S
Sathorn °

SEMMNER  BRAEFENEMNERY)
BEFHNRERERKS -

R2011F10A I AT —RURE S
PHE FFIERE - miE#18,600F 5 IR BT +
o ANBEERREFE-
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

These disposals and purchases will allow us to focus
our attention and resources in pursuing a strategy of
delivering unique quality projects at a premium price, so
as to create and maximise values for the Group.

Meanwhile, our other key projects were also progressing
well.

By the end of March 2012, construction works of
Amalfi, Phase 14 of Discovery Bay, Hong Kong were
basically completed. Sales launch is planned for the
third quarter of 2012.

Auberge, Discovery Bay Hong Kong, the deluxe resort
hotel on the waterfront of Yi Pak Bay is scheduled for
opening in late 2012 and will be a welcome addition to
Discovery Bay.

In Shanghai, the Dazhongli project in Jingan district
reached a new milestone with the commencement

of foundation works in November 2011. Piling and
basement works were also in good progress. This
flagship commercial project, planned for completion by
phases from 2015 onwards, will be the Group’s major
growth engine in the years to come.

Outlook

With our strong, lifestyle focused brand equity, we are
confident that the soon-to-be-launched Amalfi will
attract keen interests from buyers and investors from
Hong Kong, Mainland China, as well as overseas.
Auberge, Discovery Bay Hong Kong will further
transform Discovery Bay into a truly international
community and an integrated leisure hub that cannot be
found elsewhere in Hong Kong.

Although the growth momentum in Asia may have
slowed down recently, we are cautiously optimistic about
the Asian and Hong Kong economies. In particular,

the solid market fundamentals and our close tie with
the Mainland Chinese economy should place Hong
Kong in a stronger position to cope with the market
uncertainties.

I e RS E BB R P AT A LB -
EhER ERMEBER TRBEmED
MIEE - ASEED (T AEmEISE
R SNEER

B PE R B - BRAPIRY EL A X R 3R IA B MBS
RuFER -

R2012F3AE - EAM=ES tHHEE
HE DER|WBETIRDEARTRK Wit
ER2012FFE=FHE-

MUR—_BEHNZEEZREEEER=R
EEERBIFRGH R 2012F FIEF % - B KR

WRENDH -

EEE FRBEATEHEANMWETRER
201111 AIEARR - R & H B /) — (&%
PR METHE LM E TR INVER R I -
Itk PR 7 3R I8 B TR AR 20155 #E 70 B BOR
o AERKAFRERASEEIENERS
Ik

Je ¥

IBFESE B E B A R 0 9R K A RE U - B
PIERGHEE S DER] FTmE L LA
IR B BESRSIREFEE - PRI g
MERRREENRE - Z—J7H &R
REBESEE - SIEMRBEERRE
BB E _NERMER SRS ERERE
i

g PR A SN G R 2 5GP - 1B 3P
HREMRBENEBEDABERELE
REE o R B R I APIRAZ R T S B R - LA S A
PEAMKSENETEE KRR EEA
B ERARNTHNTHEARZE-
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We will capitalise on Hong Kong's advantages and
make full use of our unique and combined expertise in
property development, property investment, hospitality
etc to continue exploring new business opportunities
across Asia.

Appreciation

To further strengthen corporate governance, we set up
a Nomination Committee under the Board of Directors
during the year to review structure and composition

of the Board and to make recommendations on any
proposed changes and appointments to the Board.
Meanwhile, Mr Linus Cheung was re-designated as an
Independent Non-executive Director.

| would like to take this opportunity to thank all our
Board Directors for their strategic advice and astute
guidance, which have benefited the Group a lot over
the years. | am also thankful to our business partners
for their unfailing support, our shareholders for their
confidence in the Group, and all staff members for their
hard work and dedication.

As always, we will continue to work hands in hands
with all our stakeholders and we will remain prudent
in conducting and developing our business in Hong
Kong and across Asia, with a view to maximising
profit, sustaining growth, and creating values for our
shareholders.

CHA Mou Sing Payson
Chairman
Hong Kong, 20 June 2012
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Managing Director’s Operations Review

4R KB H TR 0§

The global economic landscape is still in disarray. Some
of the major economies around the world like the United
States and United Kingdom are still struggling. Certain
Eurozone nations are expected to head for a recession.
Even Mainland China sees a weaker-than-expected
growth and Japan is yet to recover from the 2011
earthquake and tsunami.

In light of the market uncertainty, the Group intensified
its diversification strategy in Asia, carefully built up its
land bank and continued to rebalance and enhance its
asset portfolio during the Financial Year 2011/2012.

RIBEBRNATR - 20 T EL R
XBMEEBRESHR FTETRER
BEEZATR EETEANKEER
TREIERIRS9 - T B ARNB2011F K E M E
BWRINAFER:-

ENTIZRIEIN TR - 1:12011/20124F §F
BFEEAN SEESMNMANEEREZ T
L ETGREE - DB E - BIEHIL I T Mo
H WEESERRAELEEASG -
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¢6 Our strong and liquid financial position would

provide us with sufficient resources to continue

to explore and undertake selective and quality

projects in Asia that will contribute to the growth

of the Group. £ MM B2 - MBI & & 5ui - I A 2
i) S 5 4 20 A i N % I R e B R R YRS

BIEH S BB EE N EBENE- I

Our strong and liquid financial position would provide SENFEER RBESRK ERME
us with sufficient resources to continue to explore and EHEREETTDMSBESHKANERER
undertake selective and quality projects in Asia that MIEEEE #E—PHEHRENEBHER
will contribute to the growth of the Group, and take us ERMITALZAE BT ENEERE D%
through the unstable economic climate to meet the RARBREL o

challenges ahead.
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Managing Director’s Operations Review

BRI XD

Hong Kong
B

REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT
DISCOVERY BAY

Real estate development is our core business, and
Discovery Bay, our flagship project in Hong Kong,
remains one of the most prestigious high-end residential
development integrated with resort, dining and leisure
facilities.

Phase 14, Amalfi & Phase 15 Development

Construction works of Amalfi, Phase 14 of Discovery
Bay comprising three mid-rise blocks of luxury units
were basically completed. It will offer about 160 units
of 169,300 square feet GFA, and will be put on the
market for sale in the third quarter of 2012. Boasting
uncompromising design and building quality, Amalfi is
set to become the most modern and stylish residence in
Discovery Bay.

g %

4y

|EIJ ,'?\

iﬁ&?ﬁ‘f&m%lﬁ’ﬁf’%b%ﬁ% mEPEEE
MEEER MREBDARRELNSRE
TERRBEBZ— AKEAER EKEIK
B TE

E+HNHAERIRE+TIHPEEER
WFEFTUMETHRR NER]  A=ER
EREYEREN HRETEDEARTK -
[R5 | SR 416018 807 - 4818 H E S 4
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Construction works of Phase 15 of Discovery Bay with BMEEF+RAAEEEENRLEREREY

187,700 square feet GFA are progressing well and its 187,700 F AR - BET IR R R 4F - Wit E|
sales launch is planned for 2013. R2013FFE °

Auberge, Discovery Bay Hong Kong ERERMEEEE

Auberge, Discovery Bay Hong Kong (“Auberge, VR ZHENNEHSREERAEEENS
Discovery Bay”), the brand new deluxe resort hotel on ERE (M2 B/E]) BREEATT

the waterfront of Yi Pak Bay, will be completed soon and 20124 F K% -
open for business towards the end of 2012.
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Auberge, Discovery Bay is located midway between

the Hong Kong International Airport and Central

district. It will feature over 300 rooms with full-sea-

view, complemented by first-class meeting and banquet
facilities, a resort-style environment, and the award-
winning Spa Botanica, one of the leading spa brands in
Asia. Spa Botanica will also boast a spectacular sea view
and 10 private spa rooms for the ultimate pampering
experience of customers.

With a 16-metre tall white chapel by the seaside,
Auberge, Discovery Bay will offer the first of its kind,
picture-perfect waterfront setting to couples and
wedding planners.

DB North Plaza & DB Plaza

Adjacent to Auberge, Discovery Bay is DB North Plaza, a
new social hub of about 186,000 square feet GFA within
the community. Most of the completed shops and office
spaces have been leased.

DB Plaza, privileged with D Deck, the largest seafront
alfresco dining hotspot in Hong Kong with 20 thematic
restaurants along the waterfront promenade connecting
Tai Pak Beach, achieved nearly 100% occupancy rate.
DB Plaza continues to generate a stable rental income
for the Group.
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The Bounty

The Bounty, a 42-metre European tall ship replica
which resides in Discovery Bay, continues to be one
of the most distinctive icons of Hong Kong waters. It
attracts event planners, multinational corporations,
local enterprises and individuals for corporate events
and private functions, and offers a unique and exotic
experience.
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Discovery Bay Services

During the year, patronage of bus service in Discovery

Bay rose. The demand for external bus service is

expected to increase while the application for a strictly

controlled taxi service is underway. Meanwhile, the

Group's property management company and the four

premium clubs continue to provide professional and

quality services to the residents of Discovery Bay, their tREEE R

guests and club members. MEERTHREENFEABMIG I 78
HERIIETRBOTF RS LA MR
BTN EE RGBS AR BIRE Hl 2 BT AR o
S—hHE SEETHYEERRE QAR
NRREGHMHERE R REERMEL
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Awards & Accolades

Over the last three decades, Discovery Bay has won many
acclaims and made no exception during the year.

In August 2011, Hong Kong Resort Company Limited,

the Group’s subsidiary and developer of Discovery

Bay, clinched the “Best Developer — Urban Design &
Master Planning Award” and “Best Developer — Green
Development Award” in the “CAPITAL The Best Developer
Awards 2011" for its innovative and comprehensive design
and master planning, as well as the adoption of pioneering
green concept, in the development of Discovery Bay.

21

BRI FER
BEZTZER B BEEEY AFE
A ISP o

R20114F8 7 - EE R B A R F 0 S ER
HREEBHEXEGRLF BEWSEER
HRIBAAFMTENRGREBRE AR
BARBEENRRERBS RIELAKE
BHRAAR011PER [ REZXRE - M
MR RAERE | M [HEERSD - RR
BEBR] MIAKE-



HKR International Limited Annual Report 2011/2012

22

Managing Director’s Operations Review
EEBRKEXKERE

In December 2011, the Group also won the “CAPITAL
Outstanding Green Enterprise Award” in the “CAPITAL
Outstanding Green Excellence Awards 2011” for its
achievements in introducing sustainable designs and
pioneering green elements into its development projects like
Discovery Bay.

The Group has a 50% interest in Discovery Bay.

KAP PIN LONG, SAI KUNG

The Group continues to replenish its land reserves in
Hong Kong, and in October 2011 acquired a piece

of government land in Kap Pin Long of Sai Kung for
development of a high-end residential project. The
project is under active planning and site formation works
will commence in 2013.

REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT
FUI' YIU KOK STREET, TSUEN WAN

The Group has maintained a balanced portfolio of
investment properties for stable rental income, and it
is also our strategy to maximise gain through strategic
acquisition and disposal of properties with good
investment potential.
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An industrial building bought by the Group in October EEMR2010F10A AN —ELREERE
2010 at Fui Yiu Kok Street in Tsuen Wan has been AENTEABECLFE BesZs—1E
demolished. It will be rebuilt into a new industrial IRHX93,600F 77 R ABIE A H A8 ok 180 & &L

building with approximately 93,600 square feet GFA or BT TS KE - FEFTR2014F K T -
180 units and is scheduled for completion in 2014.

OTHER INVESTMENT PROPERTIES HMIREME

The Group’s other long-term commercial and industrial SEAMEREF/ENIEAMERELAEN

investment properties continued to record high HHERESD HTRETHHES KA R
occupancy rates and bring in stable rental income. 20123 A31R - KEE2EHENRDER
As at 31 March 2012, the Group’s wholly-owned West BEERLREERHRBAE - HHIEE
Gate Tower in Cheung Sha Wan and CDW Building in 98% K 92% /) i =& -

Tsuen Wan achieved occupancy rates of 98% and 92%

respectively. tEoh - EE B RA201293 A H EM R E MK

HIBPL BBEBEENERKE-
Meanwhile, the Group disposed of Joyce Building in
Wong Chuk Hang in March 2012, realising an attractive
capital gain.
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Mainland China
AR (A 4

REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT

DAZHONGLI PROJECT IN JINGAN
DISTRICT, SHANGHAI

The Dazhongli project in the Jingan district of Shanghai
when completed in 2015/2016 will be our showcase
and flagship project in Mainland China. With a planned
GFA of approximately 323,000 square metres, this large
scale mixed-use development, located in the heart of
Shanghai, comprises two super Grade-A office towers,
three luxury hotels and a prime retail mall.

The Dazhongli project enjoys superb accessibility to
the whole country and the world. It is bounded on the
north by Nanjing West Road, on the west by Shimenyi
Road (across the Four Seasons Hotel), on the south by

HERE
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Weihai Road, and on the east by Qinghai Road (across ZERE MBS KR ERR o N

the Shanghai TV Building). The Yan An Expressway AR EBIE A A% 135 4R A RS Uk
and North-South Expressway are nearby. The Dazhongli HBREEBEE M M E25R & & 1258
project will be connected seamlessly with the Nanjing GEefEEIKkE —ERpERE 2
Xi Lu Station of Metro Line 13 and its affiliated AHPBRBEEAEELBFABEZERBEE
facilities. Metro Lines 2 and 12 will also converge at BIEMERAIB AR ERBE S - &R
an interchange to be built close to the site, which will B RN o

link the Dazhongli project to all major transportation
hubs and nodal points in Shanghai, including the two
international airports in Pudong and Honggiao, the high-
speed railway and the freeway network.
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The foundation works commenced in November 2011.
The working permits for piling and basement works of
Phase 1 have also been secured and the piling works
and basement excavation works for the office tower
zone have commenced. Restoration plan of a historical
building which will become the gateway building to the
project had been submitted for approval.

With its unparalleled scale, diversity and class, the
Dazhongli project is expected to become the most
distinctive social and commercial hub in Shanghai
and one of the most iconic landmarks in Mainland
China. Upon completion, the Dazhongli project would
become home to flagship stores of international
brands, acclaimed restaurants, and headquarters of
multinational corporations. We are confident that it
will generate a strong and steady income stream for
the Group and allow us to benefit from the growth of
Shanghai and Mainland economy.

The Dazhongli project is jointly owned and developed
by the Group and Swire Properties Limited on a 50:50
basis.

THE EXCHANGE, TIANJIN

The Exchange, the Group’s 15%-owned investment
property in Tianjin with a total GFA of over 152,000

sguare metres, comprises a retail mall, two office towers

and a hotel. The Exchange continued to generate a
stable rental income during the year, achieving average
occupancy rates of 99%, 98% and 59% respectively for
the retail mall, office towers and the hotel.
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REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT

In June 2012, through a subsidiary, the Group acquired
in an open auction the Land Use Right of a piece of
land in Yao Jia Dang Area in the Jiaxing Economic and
Technology Development Zone, Jiaxing City, Zhejiang,
for about RMB185 million (approximately HK$226
million). With a site area of about 41,000 square metres,
the land will provide a maximum construction GFA of
approximately 82,000 square metres, and will be used
for residential property development. Construction
works shall commence within one year from the date of
delivery of the land and be completed within three years
thereafter.
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Asia
EED)

\|

REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT
THAILAND

Thailand is one of our key markets in Asia. We have
been actively and strategically increasing our land
bank in the country, with a view to developing premium
projects for a discerning and cosmopolitan clientele.

The Sukhothai Residences, Bangkok

As at 31 March 2012, over 70% of the 196 units in The
Sukhothai Residences, the Group’s high-end freehold
residential development in the Bangkok CBD, were sold
at an average price of THB226,600 per square metre
(approximately HK$5,305 per square foot). The first
batch of the units has been delivered to the buyers, and
the remaining units may be considered for sale soon.

g % e
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Sathorn Road, Bangkok

In July 2011, the Group, together with its Thai partner,
acquired a piece of freehold land with a site area

of about 5,200 square metres on Sathorn Road at

a consideration of approximately THB1.35 billion
(approximately HK$356 million). It is planned to be
developed into a high-end condominium offering some
250 units. Product design and planning are underway
and pre-sale is planned for 2013.

Wireless Road, Bangkok

The Group plans to develop another site in Bangkok
which is a jointly owned project with a Thai partner, after
the Sathorn Road project is released for pre-sale. The
site, with an area of 12,600 square metres on Wireless
Road, was acquired in September 2010.

£ & Sathorn Road
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REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT

JAPAN

In March 2011, the Group completed the acquisition of
Chelsea Garden, an en-bloc 17-unit residential building
in Hiroo of Tokyo, through an associated real estate fund
at a consideration of about JPY3 billion (approximately
HK$283 million). During the year, Chelsea Garden,
together with our other three wholly-owned investment
properties in Japan, namely DIA Palace Sapporo
Higashi Actio (a 39-unit residential building in
Sapporo), Horizon Place Akasaka (a 94-unit apartment
building in Akasaka, Tokyo) and Homat Sun (a low-
rise development with 18 units in Roppongi, Tokyo),
achieved satisfactory occupancy rates and provided the
Group with a stable rental income.

Although the property rental market in Japan is yet to
recover from March 2011 earthquake and tsunami, we
are cautiously optimistic about the reconstruction efforts
in Japan and its economy.
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HOSPITALITY

THAILAND

We pride ourselves on the legendary services provided
by our luxury hotels in Asia.

In Bangkok, financial performance of The Sukhothai
hotel improved significantly although the floods in the
fourth quarter of 2011 had an adverse effect on its
business. During the year, The Sukhothai hotel’s gross
operating profit increased to around THB121.8 million
(about HK$30.7 million), up 74% from the previous
year. Its performance is expected to improve as political
situation stablises. In June 2012, the Group disposed
of the Siri Sathorn serviced residences in Bangkok at
a consideration of THB700 million (about HK$177
million).
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The Sukhothai hotel continued to win international
recognition despite the difficult operating environment.
It was ranked the sixth in “The World’s Best Hotels —
Asia’s Best Hotels” and 36th of the 100 hotels in “The
World’s Best Hotels” chosen by the Institutional Investor
US in November 2011. It was also named one of the
“Top 20 Overseas Business Hotels” in the “Readers’
Travel Awards” organised by Conde Nast Traveller UK in
October 2011 and one of the “Top 125 Hotels in Asia”
in the “Readers’ Choice Awards” held by Conde Nast
Traveler US in November 2011.

B NS IR B ER 8+ {H The Sukhothai)B &
MEE RSB ZT B/ER2011611A
& ZE B Institutional Investor 35657 /& [The
World’s Best Hotels — Asia’s Best Hotels |
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SINGAPORE

Tourist arrivals in Singapore have reached a new high
following the opening of two new integrated resorts. The
Sentosa Resort & Spa, the Group’s luxury spa resort
hotel in the country, attained a more than satisfactory
occupancy rate for the year. It was given “The Best of
Singapore 2012 — The Best Hotels (Resorts) Award”

by Singapore Tatler magazine in February 2012 and
“Singapore’s Leading Spa Resort 2011” by World Travel
Awards in October 2011.

HONG KONG

Auberge, Discovery Bay, the new deluxe resort hotel on
the waterfront of Yi Pak Bay, is scheduled for its opening
in late 2012 (See the section of “Discovery Bay” above
for more details).
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Healthcare & Others
BERRBENMEM

HEALTHCARE

GenRx Holdings Limited (“GenRx”), the Group’s wholly-
owned subsidiary providing premium healthcare
services, continued to strengthen and grow its business
during the year. Its comprehensive service network now
comprises cancer centres, dental clinics, diabetic and
cardiovascular centres, an imaging centre and multi-
specialty outpatient centres in Hong Kong, Macau and
Manila. The termination of operation agreement with a
local hospital has adversely affected the performance of
the cancer treatment business. Meanwhile, to refocus its
future development strategy in Mainland China, GenRx
has discontinued its financially non-viable clinics. On
the bright side, the turnover of GenRx in Hong Kong and
Manila has been picking up and with reorganisation and
consolidation of the healthcare businesses, it is projected
that the bottom line of GenRx will be further improved.
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SANITARYWARE

As the production costs of Imperial Bathroom Products
Limited (“Imperial”) in Mainland China, in particular the
costs of labour, energy and transportation, have been
increasing, the contribution was affected to a certain
extent. To further develop Imperial’s markets in Western
Europe and the US, where the sanitaryware business

is recovering, the Group decided to acquire a piece

of freehold land together with plant and machinery in
Middlewich, Cheshire, UK in November 2011 for the
manufacturing of sanitaryware products in Europe, and
its operation commenced in the first quarter of 2012.
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SECURITIES INVESTMENT

During the year, the Group recorded a net profit

of HK$10.4 million for its investment in securities,
comprising interest and dividend incomes, as well as
gain on disposal of certain listed equity securities.

As at 31 March 2012, the Group had 10,265,500
shares in Sino-Ocean Land Holdings Limited which are
classified as available-for-sale financial assets.

HUMAN RESOURCES

Any corporation is only as good as its people. We value
all our staff and have been working hard to attract,
develop and retain talents.

As at 31 March 2012, the Group had a total of 3,267
employees in Hong Kong, Mainland China and overseas.
During the year, the Group continued to build and

enhance its employer brand, with a revamp of the career

webpage on our corporate website to attract prospective
candidates to join the Group. Internally, we organised a

number of events to promote corporate culture such as

a logo design competition to increase staff’s appreciation
of the Group's Vision, Mission and Values.

Various initiatives have been rolled out to develop

and retain talents. The ongoing talent review and
succession planning process has been expanded to
identify and develop high potential employees at entry
professional level. For senior staff, a pilot run of 360°
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feedback tool has been introduced to enhance their
talent development planning which is supported by
competency-based training workshops.

To further enhance employee relations and
communication, a new electronic communication
platform called “eHR” was launched on the Intranet

to provide staff with easy access to important Human
Resources information. Other communication platforms
such as Senior Staff Workshop were also provided to
encourage dialogue between management and staff.
To help develop a healthy and happy workforce, a
Recreation Committee was established to plan and
organise activities for staff's enjoyment.

34. Revamped career webpage

R EREAA

35. Senior Staff Workshop
=AMEE TS

36. Recreational activity for staff
BTREEE

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

The Group always seeks to enhance its competitiveness
and operational efficiency through advanced information
technology infrastructure and application systems.

During the year, the Group worked on server
consolidation and virtualisation to improve systems
availability, boost resources efficiency and lower
operating costs. New cloud computing solutions to
improve business and IT agility are under review. File
exchange service was introduced to allow employees in
headquarters and overseas to collaborate on the same
project irrespective of office locations. The Content
Management System has also been upgraded to
facilitate revamp of corporate websites.
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Corporate Social Responsibility
PEHEEE

During the year, the Group continued to reach out to the
needy and extend our love and care to the community
through its corporate volunteer team HKR Care & Share.

In April 2011, HKR Care & Share hosted an Easter
party entitled Yummy Easter Carnival for children of
the T.W.G.Hs Residential Child Care Services, whose
families are unable to take care of them due to family
problems or crisis resulting from iliness or death.

In October 2011, HKR Care & Share took a group of
underprivileged children from Caritas Integrated Family
Service Centre - Tung Tau on a Discovery Bay tour
entitled Joyful Autumn @ Discovery Bay, allowing the
children to discover and appreciate the natural beauty
and multicultural lifestyle of Discovery Bay in the great
outdoors.
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In February 2012, HKR Care & Share, joined by teenage
volunteers from the T.W.G.Hs Residential Child Care
Services, threw a lunch party for elderly people who
have shown early symptoms of dementia, treating them
to some good food and great performances.

Besides bringing joy and love to the children and
elderly, these activities also provided our volunteers
with invaluable opportunities to get in touch with the
needy and better understand the society we live in. It is
a heartwarming and engaging experience that will also
enhance staff's team spirit and sense of belonging.

In March 2012, the Group sponsored the Programme
Opening Performance of Bavarian Radio Symphony
Orchestra at the 40th Hong Kong Arts Festival in order
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to bring world-class performance to Hong Kong and to
help raise the public’s interest in arts and culture. We also
sponsored The Bounty cruise as a prize to help raise fund
for the Hong Kong Society for the Protection of Children
and the Hong Kong Cancer Fund during the year.

41 & 43. Joyful Autumn @ Discovery Bay
MBEELmRE
42. Lunch party for elderly
ER-FE-BUF

In recognition of the Group's continued contribution

to the community, the Hong Kong Council of Social
Service awarded the Group the “Caring Company” logo
for the seventh consecutive year. The Social Welfare
Department also awarded the Group the “Gold Award for
Volunteer Service” in December 2011.

PROSPECTS

We are well aware of the challenges ahead. But we also
see opportunities. We have implemented strategies to
get ourselves prepared at a time of international financial
instability and in an increasingly interconnected global
market place — both to manage the risks identified and
to pave the way for further growth and development.
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We will continue to intensify our diversification strategy
in Asia and expand our reach to markets that offer
good opportunities and return. We will also continue
to enhance our asset portfolio and focus on quality
projects.

Having pursued a tradition of prudent management

for decades, we will leverage on our very unigue and
combined expertise in property development and
investment, hospitality management and healthcare
services to enable the Group to establish a strong
foothold in new markets, collaborate with new partners,
and capture new development and investment
opportunities across Asia. Our goal is to deliver the
projects, products and services of the highest quality to
the market at premium pricing, and also deliver on our
promise of creating an innovative living space for our
customers.

| would like to take this opportunity to thank our Board
Directors for their guidance and leadership over the years;
our business partners for their help and support; and our
staff for their dedication and contribution to the Group.

We shall continue to work relentlessly with all stakeholders

to grow the Group’s business and create values for our
shareholders and the communities we serve.

CHA Mou Zing Victor
Deputy Chairman & Managing Director
Hong Kong, 20 June 2012
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Chairman
Mr CHA Mou Sing Payson

JP, DSSc (Hons) (Aged 69)

Mr CHA was appointed executive director in 1989, the

deputy chairman in September 2001 and the chairman of

the Company on 15 May 2007. He is the chairman of the
nomination committee of the Company which was newly set

up in late March 2012. Since 1995, Mr CHA has been the
managing director of HKR Asia-Pacific Pte Ltd, a subsidiary

of the Company, and is now in charge of its operations and
management. He has also been serving as director of a number
of other subsidiaries of the Company since its inception in 1977
and has over 40 years experience in property development.

Mr CHA is the chairman and non-executive director of the
Company'’s associated corporation, Hanison Construction
Holdings Limited, and an independent non-executive director
of New World Development Company Limited, both of them are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). He is an independent non-executive director of
Eagle Asset Management (CP) Limited, manager of Champion
Real Estate Investment Trust which is listed on the Stock
Exchange, an independent non-executive director of Hong
Kong International Theme Parks Limited, owner and operator
of Hong Kong Disneyland Resort, the executive chairman and
CEO of Mingly Corporation (“Mingly”) and a director of Asia
Television Limited (“ATV”). Mingly is, and ATV was once, under
the control of members of the Cha Family. Mr CHA is also a
committee member of the Eleventh National Committee of

the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”). He is a brother of Ms
WONG CHA May Lung Madeline, Mr CHA Mou Zing Victor and
Mr CHA Mou Daid Johnson and an uncle of Mr CHA Yiu Chung
Benjamin who are also directors of the Company. Mr CHA is
also a director of CCM Trust (Cayman) Limited and LBJ Regents
Limited, both are substantial shareholders of the Company
within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO")
and together whose interests in the Company represent the
substantial interests of the Cha Family in the Company.
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Deputy Chairman and Managing
Director

Mr CHA Mou Zing Victor

BA, MBA (Aged 62)

Mr CHA was appointed executive director in 1989, the
managing director in September 2001, the deputy chairman on
15 May 2007 and a member of the remuneration committee of
the Company since 2 December 2004. He was also appointed
the joint managing director of HKR Asia-Pacific Pte Ltd in
1996. He has been serving as director of a number of other
subsidiaries of the Company with the earliest appointment
back to 1978. Mr CHA is responsible for the overall and day-
to-day management of the Group. Mr CHA has been involved
in textile manufacturing and real estate businesses for over 30
years. He is an independent non-executive director of SOHO
China Limited, an alternate independent non-executive director
of New World Development Company Limited, both companies
are listed on the Stock Exchange, and a director of Mingly
Corporation and United Nigerian Textiles Limited (formerly,
United Nigerian Textiles PLC which was privatised and delisted
from the Nigerian Stock Exchange in October 2011). Mr CHA
is a member of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Committee of Zhejiang Province. He is the father of Mr CHA
Yiu Chung Benjamin, a brother of Ms WONG CHA May Lung
Madeline, Mr CHA Mou Sing Payson and Mr CHA Mou Daid
Johnson who are also directors of the Company.
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Executive Director
Mr CHA Yiu Chung Benjamin

BA, MBA (Aged 38)

Mr CHA was appointed executive director of the Company in
September 2010. He is now head of the Asia Pacific business
unit and director of a number of subsidiaries of the Company.
He joined the Group in 2002 and has been with the Asia
Pacific business unit, involving in the Company’s investment,
development and asset management of projects in Thailand,
Singapore, Hong Kong, Shanghai and Japan. Mr CHA is also

a non-executive director of Hanison Construction Holdings
Limited, an associated corporation of the Company listed on
the Stock Exchange. He started his career in real estate and
hotel development with the development division of Mandarin
Oriental Hotel group. Mr CHA is a non-official member of the
Harbourfront Commission of the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region (the “HKSAR Government”). He
holds a bachelor degree in international politics and economics
from Middlebury College and a master degree in business
administration from the Stanford Graduate School of Business.
Mr CHA is the son of Mr CHA Mou Zing Victor and a nephew of
Mr CHA Mou Sing Payson, Mr CHA Mou Daid Johnson and Ms
WONG CHA May Lung Madeline, all of them are directors of the
Company.

Executive Director
Mr CHUNG Sam Tin Abraham

FCPA (Aged 66)

Mr CHUNG was appointed executive director of the Company
in 1994 and is also director of a number of subsidiaries of

the Company. He has been serving in the Group since 1978
and is the head of finance office responsible for oversight

of the Group’s finance and accounting, tax, insurance and
information technology functions. Mr CHUNG is a certified
public accountant (practising), a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and an associate
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.
He has over 35 years experience in financial management and
property development in Hong Kong.
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Executive Director
Mr TANG Moon Wah

BA (Arch Studies), BArch (Aged 58)

Mr TANG was appointed executive director of the Company in
December 2004 and is also director of a number of subsidiaries
of the Company. He has been serving in the Group since

1985 and is the head of China business unit and head of
projects responsible for project management of real estate
development in Hong Kong and the PRC and for oversight of
master planning, conceptual and major designs and technical
advice on acquisitions. Mr TANG has over 30 years extensive
experience in property development. He has been a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Architects since 1981, Authorised
Person since 1982 and Registered Architect since 1991.

Non-Executive Director
The Honourable Ronald Joseph ARCULLI

GBM, CVO, GBS, OBE, JP (Aged 73)

Mr ARCULLI was appointed director in 1989 and has been

an independent non-executive director of the Company since
1993 before he was re-designated as non-executive director

in June 2005. He is the senior partner of King & Wood
Mallesons. Mr ARCULLI retired from the chairmanship of the
board of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (the
“HKECL") on 23 April 2012 but remains as an independent
non-executive director thereof. He is also an independent non-
executive director of Hang Lung Properties Limited and SCMP
Group Limited, and a non-executive director of Power Assets
Holdings Limited, Hutchison Harbour Ring Limited, Sino Hotels
(Holdings) Limited, Sino Land Company Limited and Tsim Sha
Tsui Properties Limited, all of them, together with the HKECL,
are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr ARCULLI is the convenor
and non-official member of the Executive Council of the HKSAR
Government but he will step down from such offices upon the
restructuring of the Executive Council on 1 July 2012. He is
also a member of the board of directors of The Community
Chest of Hong Kong, a member of the Consultation Panel and a
board member of the West Kowloon Cultural District Authority.
He also holds directorships in other public and private
companies in Hong Kong and overseas.
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Non-Executive Director
Mr CHA Mou Daid Johnson

BA, MBA (Aged 60)

Mr CHA was appointed director in 1989 and re-designated as
non-executive director of the Company in December 2004.

He has been serving as director of a number of subsidiaries of
the Company with the earliest appointment back to 1978. Mr
CHA is also a non-executive director of Hanison Construction
Holdings Limited, an associated corporation of the Company
listed on the Stock Exchange, a director of Mingly Corporation,
an independent non-executive director of Shanghai Commercial
Bank Limited and director/non-executive director of a number
of other public and private companies in Hong Kong and China,
and is active in many non-profit making organisations. He has
over 30 years experience in investment management. Mr CHA
is a brother of Ms WONG CHA May Lung Madeline, Mr CHA
Mou Sing Payson and Mr CHA Mou Zing Victor and an uncle
of Mr CHA Yiu Chung Benjamin who are also directors of the
Company. He is also a director of LBJ Regents Limited which

is a substantial shareholder of the Company under Part XV of
the SFO and whose interest in the Company forms part of the
interests of Cha Family in the Company.

Non-Executive Director
Mr CHEUNG Tseung Ming

BSc, MBA, MAcc, MICE, MI Struct.E, CPA (Aged 70)

Mr CHEUNG was re-designated as non-executive director of the
Company upon his retirement from the Group with effect from
1 November 2010. Prior to his retirement and re-designation,
Mr CHEUNG was an executive director of the Company since
September 2001 responsible for the management of the
Company'’s hospitality subsidiaries and related investments

in the Asia Pacific region. Mr CHEUNG is a member of the
Institution of Structural Engineers and the Institution of Civil
Engineers in the United Kingdom and a member of the

Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and CPA
Australia.
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Non-Executive Director
Ms WONG CHA May Lung Madeline

(Aged 72)

Ms WONG was appointed director in 1989 and re-designated
as non-executive director of the Company in December 2004.
She has been serving as director of a number of subsidiaries
of the Company since its inception in 1977. Ms WONG is a
deputy chairman of Mingly Corporation and also director/non-
executive director of a number of other public and private
companies in Hong Kong and overseas, including Hon Kwok
Land Investment Company, Limited and Chinney Investments,
Limited, both are listed on the Stock Exchange, and United
Nigerian Textiles Limited (formerly United Nigerian Textiles
PLC which was privatised and delisted from the Nigerian Stock
Exchange in October 2011). She is a sister of Mr CHA Mou
Sing Payson, Mr CHA Mou Zing Victor and Mr CHA Mou Daid
Johnson and an aunt of Mr CHA Yiu Chung Benjamin who are
also directors of the Company. Ms WONG is also a director of
CCM Trust (Cayman) Limited and LBJ Regents Limited, both
are substantial shareholders of the Company under Part XV of
the SFO and together whose interests in the Company represent
the substantial interests of Cha Family in the Company.

Independent Non-Executive Director
Dr CHENG Kar Shun Henry

GBS, BA, MBA, DBA(Hons), LLD(Hons) (Aged 65)

Dr CHENG was appointed director in 1989 and re-designated
as independent non-executive director of the Company in
1993. He is the chairman and executive director of New World
Development Company Limited, chairman and managing
director of New World China Land Limited, chairman of NWS
Holdings Limited, chairman and non-executive director of

New World Department Store China Limited, chairman and
executive director of Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited,
chairman of International Entertainment Corporation and non-
executive director of Lifestyle International Holdings Limited, all
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of them are listed on the Stock Exchange. Dr CHENG resigned
as the chairman and executive director of Haitong International
Securities Group Limited (formerly known as Taifook Securities
Group Limited) which is listed on the Stock Exchange in
January 2010. He is also director of a number of private
companies in Hong Kong and overseas. He is the chairman

of the advisory council for The Better Hong Kong Foundation
and standing committee member of the Eleventh National
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference of the PRC. In 2001, Dr CHENG was awarded the
Gold Bauhinia Star by the HKSAR Government.

Independent Non-Executive Director
Dr The Honourable CHEUNG Kin Tung Marvin

GBS, SBS, OBE, JP, DBA (Hons) (Aged 64)

Dr CHEUNG was appointed independent non-executive director
of the Company in September 2004. He is a fellow member

of both the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England

and Wales and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Dr CHEUNG is an independent non-executive
director of Hang Seng Bank Limited and HSBC Holdings plc,
both are listed on the Stock Exchange with HSBC Holdings
PLC also being dual listed on the London Stock Exchange. He
ceased to be an independent non-executive director of Hong
Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and Sun Hung Kai
Properties Limited, which are listed on the Stock Exchange, in
April 2011 and December 2009 respectively. Dr CHEUNG is

a non-official member of the Executive Council of the HKSAR
Government but he will step down from the office upon the
restructuring of the Executive Council on 1 July 2012. He is
also the chairman of the Airport Authority Hong Kong, chairman
of the supervisory committee of Tracker Fund of Hong Kong,
chairman of the council of The Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology. Dr CHEUNG was awarded the Gold
Bauhinia Star by HKSAR Government in 2008.
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Independent Non-Executive Director
Mr CHEUNG Wing Lam Linus

BSSc, JP (Aged 64)

Mr CHEUNG was re-designated as an independent non-
executive director of the Company with effect from 26 March
2012. Prior to his latest re-designation, Mr CHEUNG was
appointed independent non-executive director in January
2006 and re-designated as a non-executive director of the
Company in December 2008. He was the chief executive

of Hong Kong Telecommunications Limited (later “Cable &
Wireless HKT Limited” (“Cable”)) from 1994 to 2000 and
deputy chairman of PCCW Limited (following a merger with
Cable) from August 2000 to February 2004. Mr CHEUNG is
an independent non-executive director of China Unicom (Hong
Kong) Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange, and
was an independent non-executive director of Taikang Life
Insurance Co. Ltd. from 2005 to 2011. He is also the chairman
of the board of directors of HKU School of Professional and
Continuing Education and the chairman of the board of
governors of Centennial College.

Independent Non-Executive Director
Ms HO Pak Ching Loretta

FCIH (Aged 65)

Ms HO was re-designated as an independent non-executive
director of the Company with effect from 10 April 2010. Prior to
her latest re-designation, Ms HO was appointed as an executive
director of the Company in 1994 and re-designated as a non-
executive director on 10 April 2008 upon her retirement of

all executive roles in the Group. She is a fellow member of

the Chartered Institute of Housing, Asian Pacific Branch,

and has over 40 years experience in property development,
investment and management. Ms HO is currently a member of
the executive committee, chairman of remuneration committee
and member of the special committee on elderly housing of the
Hong Kong Housing Society.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
EEREEERBABZERE

Independent Non-Executive Director
Dr QIN Xiao

PhD Econ. (Aged 65)

Dr QIN was appointed as independent non-executive director
of the Company in July 2009. He is an independent non-
executive director of China Telecom Corporation Limited, which
is listed on the New York Stock Exchange and dual listed on
the Stock Exchange. Dr QIN was appointed an independent
non-executive director of AIA Group Limited in late September
2010 which securities were listed on the Stock Exchange in
late October 2010. He was also appointed as a non-executive
chairman of Amex Resources Limited on 2 April 2012 which
is listed on Australian Securities Exchange. Dr QIN retired as
the chairman of China Merchants Group in August 2010 and
ceased as the chairman and non-executive director of China
Merchants Bank Company Ltd., which is listed on the Stock
Exchange and dual listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, in
September 2010.

Senior Management
Mr CHAN Chi Ming

BSc (Aged 55)

Mr CHAN joined the Group in 1980. He is the head of Hong
Kong business unit and head of development and marketing
responsible for oversight of the Discovery Bay operations

in transport, club and city management services, property
investment and development, sales, marketing, leasing and
management of real estate in Hong Kong and Pearl River
Delta. Mr CHAN is director of a number of subsidiaries of
the Company and has over 30 years experience in property
development, sales and marketing of real estate.
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The directors (the “Board” or the “Directors”) of HKR
International Limited (the “Company”) announce the audited
final results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2012.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates and jointly
controlled entities are set out in note 41 to the consolidated
financial statements on pages 217 to 229.

Results and Dividend

Results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2012 are
set out in the consolidated income statement on page 109.

The Directors declared the payment of an interim dividend
of HK8 cents per share for the year ended 31 March 2012
(2011: HK7 cents) to the shareholders whose names appear
on the registers of members of the Company on 2 August
2012 and payable on 8 August 2012. There is no final
dividend proposed by the Directors for the year ended 31
March 2012.

The interim dividend represents the total dividend of HK8
cents per share (2011: HK18 cents) payable by the Company
for the year ended 31 March 2012.

Closure of Registers

The main and branch registers of members of the Company
will be closed on 1 and 2 August 2012 and on 29 and 30
August 2012 for the interim dividend and 2012 annual
general meeting (“AGM”) respectively. During the period, no
transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the
interim dividend and attending the 2012 AGM, all transfers of
shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company share registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 31
July 2012 and 28 August 2012 respectively.

53

Directors’ Report
EEGRE

HKR International Limited (& 7% B 2 B X

SEBRRAR) ([AAREZE ([EF
gl [EF])RERRRAIREWBEAF

(B [AEE])BZE20129F3A31A L F
BB ZE2FEE-

FEEH
ARRZEBEBBRE R XL EH
BAA BEATRAREHERL 25
R E217E E F020H 2 A B AN
541 -

S S

AEBEHRE012F3A3ALFRE XS
FNFI9E 2B RERA -

EEEM2012948 A28 B YN AN BIME
Zf 2R ERE E20126F3A31H L4
E R HARG B ARSI IL (201148 : 778(L)
W A5 R2012F8 A8H k% - EE & T iE %
B E20129F3 A31 8 I F R KB

B o
N

ZHPHIRR BB R RIS E201243 A31
BItEERE 2 #EFR8E I (20114
18781l -

W 455 0 BB 4 28 P e T A

AR ER2012BEBF RS ([RRF
g|) ARAIZBRHBREERBERDE
o RIR20126E8 A1 H K2 H KM201248 A
298 K30B EEHERNDBFEELFE-
AHERE ERUERF HR S & E20120%
REE FARMBEXHERMBARE
BIEASD BIR201297 A31H K& 201248 A
28H T 4B300 Sk AR X EAR R R 2 &
BROBFECRBEBTRBLFELER
NAE It ABEARRFNBERI8IHE MF
D17HB1712E-1716% » P B FE -



HKR International Limited Annual Report 2011/2012

54

Directors’ Report
TERHE

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the
year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on pages 113 to 115.

Share Capital

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note
31 to the consolidated financial statements on page 200.

Directors

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were set out on pages 42 and 43.

Mr CHEUNG Wing Lam Linus was re-designated from non-
executive director to independent non-executive director on 26
March 2012.

In accordance with the Company’s articles of association (the
“Articles”) and the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”), Mr CHA Mou Sing Payson, Mr CHA Mou
Zing Victor, Mr CHA Mou Daid Johnson, Dr CHENG Kar Shun
Henry, Mr CHEUNG Wing Lam Linus and Dr QIN Xiao shall
retire by rotation at the 2012 AGM. All the retiring directors,
being eligible, have offered themselves for re-election. Other
remaining directors will continue in office.

None of the Directors offering themselves for re-election at the
2012 AGM has a service contract which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).
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The non-executive directors including the five independent
non-executive directors of the Company were not appointed for
a specific term but their respective terms of office are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the AGMs of the
Company in accordance with the Articles. The rotation clause
sets up a mechanism to ensure that all Directors shall retire at
least once every three years and be eligible for re-election.

Each of the independent non-executive directors has made
an annual confirmation on independence pursuant to rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all
independent non-executive directors meet the independence
guidelines as set out in the Listing Rules and are independent
in accordance therewith.

The Directors’ and senior management’s biographical details
are set out on pages 44 to 52.

Directors’ Emoluments

Particulars of Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 12 to
the consolidated financial statements on pages 164 and 165.

Directors’ Interests in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

As at 31 March 2012, the interests and short positions of

the Directors and chief executive of the Company and their
respective associates in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFQ")) as recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
which was adopted by the Company were as follows:
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(1) The Company

Long positions in shares of HK$0.25 each

(1) A4

KRR EEO.25/8 TR (7.2 4F B

Number of Ordinary Shares

LERYA
Approximate
Percentage
of Issued
Personal Family Corporate Other Share Capital
Name of Director Capacity Interests Interests Interests Interests Total R BTHRA
EEEH L) BA#EE RiGH#H NEEE HirigE s By ZEAEML
CHA Mou Sing Payson Beneficial owner, interests 3,113,113 - 2624600 633,137,861 638,875,574 4731
e of a controlled (Note a) (Note b)
corporation and beneficiary of (fiska) (Fi3D)
discretionary trusts
ERBAEAN REEEERR
BEEEXEA
CHA Mou Zing Victor Beneficial owner and 760,253 - - 629,498,383 630,258,636 46.68
B, beneficiary of discretionary (Note ¢) (Note b)
trusts (WisEe) (Fi3D)
ERBAARBBEERHEA
CHA Mou Daid Johnson Beneficiary of - - - 628,200,885 628,200,885 46.52
EE discretionary trusts (Note b)
BEEAXHEA (Ft3Eb)
CHA Yiu Chung Benjamin Beneficiary of - - - 618,895,387 618,895,387 4583
Egh discretionary trusts (Note b)
BEEAXHEA (Ft3Eb)
WONG CHA May Lung Founder and/or beneficiary of - - - 627,487,463 627,487,463 46.47
Madeline discretionary trusts (Notes d&e)
TEXE MBETAIAR/&ZamA (MtsEdRe)
Ronald Joseph ARCULLI Beneficiary of a trust 241,472 - - - 241,472 0.02
BE EREZEA
CHUNG Sam Tin Abraham Beneficial owner 315,084 - - - 315,084 0.02
#ELH ERBEA
HO Pak Ching Loretta Beneficial owner 85,600 - - - 85,600 0.01
{OKis)=) ERBEEA
TANG Moon Wah Beneficial owner 135,200 - - - 135,200 0.01

G

ExlBA
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Notes:

(a)

(b)

The shares were held by Accomplished Investments
Limited, a corporation 100% owned by Mr CHA Mou Sing
Payson.

The shares belonged to certain but not identical
discretionary trusts of which CCM Trust (Cayman) Limited
and LBJ Regents Limited were the corporate trustees,
and the relevant directors were among the members of
the classes of discretionary beneficiaries.

As at 18 April 2012, the number of shares changed to
1,120,253 shares.

577,842,756 shares belonged to certain but not identical
discretionary trusts of which CCM Trust (Cayman) Limited
and LBJ Regents Limited were the corporate trustees,
and the director was among the members of the classes
of discretionary beneficiaries.

The director was, under two separate discretionary trusts
of which CCM Trust (Cayman) Limited and LBJ Regents
Limited were the corporate trustees, the founder and
member of the classes of discretionary beneficiaries
thereof. Such trusts were deemed to be interested in
49,644,707 shares in aggregate.
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(2) AH U 35 1] — B A e 42 e
A R 2 ]

REREEO.I0E TR Z 4B

(2) Associated Corporation — Hanison
Construction Holdings Limited

Long positions in shares of HK$0.10 each

Number of Ordinary Shares

LER%E
Approximate
Percentage
of Issued
Personal Family Corporate Other Share Capital
Name of Director Capacity Interests Interests Interests Interests Total EEBITRA
et St BAER RIE#E NEER Hipie s ay  ZHOES
CHA Mou Sing Payson Beneficial owner, interests of 668,830 - 563,877 107,836,435 109,069,142 22.37
EHE a controlled corporation and (Note a) (Note b)
beneficiary of discretionary (MizEa) (MtzEb)
trusts
ERBEREA RBZEERR
WEERREA
CHA Mou Zing Victor Beneficial owner and beneficiary 163,336 - - 107,150,201 107,313,537 22.01
B, of discretionary trusts (Note b)
ERBEBARBBERARRAA (BizEh)
CHA Mou Daid Johnson Beneficiary of - - - 107,150,200 107,150,200 21.98
EE discretionary trusts (Note b)
BEEARAEA (BizEb)
CHA Yiu Chung Benjamin Beneficiary of - - - 105,150,973 105,150,973 21.57
ety discretionary trusts (Note b)
BEEARAEA (BizEb)
WONG CHA May Lung Founder and/or beneficiary of - - - 106,996,924 106,996,924 21.95
Madeline discretionary trusts (Notes c&d)
TEXRE WEETETAR/SE@EA (Bisrcad)
Ronald Joseph ARCULLI Beneficiary of a trust 51,878 - - - 51,878 0.01
BEER EREREA
CHUNG Sam Tin Abraham Beneficial owner 58,018 - - - 58,018 0.01
E0H EREBA
HO Pak Ching Loretta Beneficial owner 11,690 - - - 11,690 0.002

ftHg

ERfEAA
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Notes:

(@)  The shares were held by Accomplished Investments Limited, a
corporation 100% owned by Mr CHA Mou Sing Payson.

(b)  The shares belonged to certain but not identical discretionary
trusts of which CCM Trust (Cayman) Limited and LBJ Regents
Limited were the corporate trustees and the relevant directors
were among the members of the classes of discretionary
beneficiaries.

(c) 105,150,973 shares belonged to certain but not identical
discretionary trusts of which CCM Trust (Cayman) Limited
and LBJ Regents Limited were the corporate trustees and the
director was among the members of the classes of discretionary
beneficiaries.

(d)  The director was, under another discretionary trust of which
LLBJ Regents Limited was the corporate trustee, the founder and
member of the classes of discretionary beneficiaries thereof.
Such trust was deemed to be interested in 1,845,951 shares.

Save as disclosed above and for certain directors holding
non-beneficial interests in the share capital of some of the
subsidiaries of the Company as nominee shareholders, as at
31 March 2012, none of the Directors or chief executive of
the Company or their respective associates had any interests
or short positions in any shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any associated corporations
(within the meaning of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code contained in the Listing Rules.
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Directors’ Interests in Competing
Business

During the year, the interests of the Directors in businesses
which competed or were likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the businesses of the Group as required to be
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules were set out as follows:

(1)  The Honourable Ronald Joseph ARCULLI is an
independent non-executive director of Hang Lung
Properties Limited (“Hang Lung”) and also the non-
executive director of Hutchison Harbour Ring Limited
(“Hutchison”), Sino Hotels (Holdings) Limited (“Sino
Hotels”), Sino Land Company Limited (“Sino Land”) and
Tsim Sha Tsui Properties Limited (“TST Properties”).
The businesses of Hang Lung, Hutchison, Sino
Hotels, Sino Land and TST Properties involve at least
some of property investment, property development,
property management, treasury investment and hotel
management and ownership. Hang Lung, Hutchison,
Sino Hotels, Sino Land and TST Properties are all listed
on the Stock Exchange.

(2)  Mr CHA Mou Sing Payson is the chairman and non-
executive director of Hanison Construction Holdings
Limited (“Hanison”), an associated corporation of the
Company. He is also an independent non-executive
director of New World Development Company Limited
(“New World”), and Eagle Asset Management (CP)
Limited (“Eagle Asset”), manager of Champion Real
Estate Investment Trust (“Champion”) and Hong
Kong International Theme Parks Limited (“Theme
Parks”), owner and operator of Hong Kong Disneyland
Resort. The businesses of Hanison, New World, Eagle
Asset, Champion and Theme Parks involve at least
some of property investment, property development,
property management, treasury investment and hotel
management and ownership. Hanison, New World and
Champion are all listed on the Stock Exchange.
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(3) Mr CHA Mou Zing Victor is an independent non-
executive director of SOHO China Limited (“SOHO")
and the alternate to Mr CHA Mou Sing Payson, an
independent non-executive director of New World. The
businesses of SOHO and New World involve at least
some of property investment, property development,
property management and hotel management and
ownership. SOHO and New World are both listed on the
Stock Exchange.

(4) Mr CHA Mou Daid Johnson is a non-executive director
of Hanison whose group’s businesses consist of
property investment, property development and property
management. Hanison is listed on the Stock Exchange.

(5) Mr CHA Yiu Chung Benjamin is a non-executive
director of Hanison whose group’s businesses consist of
property investment, property development and property
management. Hanison is listed on the Stock Exchange.

(6) Ms WONG CHA May Lung Madeline is a non-executive
director of Chinney Investments, Limited (“Chinney”)
and Hon Kwok Land Investment Company, Limited
(“Hon Kwok”) whose groups’ businesses consist of
property development, property investment and property
management. Chinney and Hon Kwok are both listed on
the Stock Exchange.

Save for the independent non-executive directors and save as
disclosed above, none of the Directors was interested in any
business apart from the Group’s businesses which competed
or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group during the year.
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Directors’ Right to Acquire Shares or
Debentures

The existing share option scheme of the Company was
approved and adopted by the shareholders of the Company on
8 September 2011 (the “2011 Scheme”). The listing status of
shares to be granted under the 2011 Scheme was granted by
the Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange on 9 September
2011. Under the 2011 Scheme, options may be granted, inter
alia, to the Directors. Details of the 2011 Scheme are set out in
the paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” below and note
32 to the consolidated financial statements on page 200.

Upon the adoption of the 2011 Scheme, the share option
scheme adopted in 2002 (the “2002 Scheme”) was
terminated on 8 September 2011. There was no grant to, and
hence no beneficial exercise by, the Directors of any option
under both the 2002 Scheme and the 2011 Scheme during
the year.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.
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Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 March 2012, the following persons (other than a
director or chief executive of the Company) had interests or
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in the Company’s shares of HK$0.25 each
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Approximate
Percentage of

Number of Issued Share
Ordinary Capital
Name of Shareholder Capacity Shares (LB EITHIRA
BRE AR 51 LTEBHEE ZWMHOBET
CCM Trust (Cayman) Limited Corporate trustee 560,153,905 41.48
EEXFEA (Note a)
(MfEa)
LBJ Regents Limited Corporate trustee 106,137,275 7.86
FEZFA (Note b)
(Mt5Eb)
Invesco Hong Kong Limited Investment manager/ 95,032,578 7.04
SIEREERER R A advisor of various accounts (Note ¢)
BEKE/ZEKEP 2R (Mf5Ec)
Notes: ihg=2

(@) 560,153,905 shares were held by CCM Trust (Cayman) Limited
as corporate trustee of certain but not identical discretionary
trusts of which members of the classes of discretionary
beneficiaries comprise the late Dr CHA Chi Ming's issue.

(b) 106,137,275 shares were held by LBJ Regents Limited as
corporate trustee for certain but not identical discretionary trusts
of which members of the classes of discretionary beneficiaries
comprise the late Dr CHA Chi Ming’s issue.

(c)  The long position interest in 95,032,578 shares were held by
Invesco Hong Kong Limited as investment manager and/or
advisor of various accounts.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2012, no other
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

(a)  560,153,9050% f&% 1% 75 8 CCM Trust
(Cayman) Limited UEBIZFEAF D AE
FArRMBERFE MREHEZREA
BEEHMEERE LT 2R -

(b)  106,137,275% %15 T3 A LBJ Regents
Limited WEESZFEA B D BE T TREE
EEdE MZENEX=ABEERE
ERBE %M

(c)  95,032,578& &0 2 if B HEw Ty B = B
EEBERATMERRELERZEKP
ZEEREE-

B EXWEEEIN R20125F3 8311 @ &
PR BB A7 SR B At < B b 2 30K
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Share Option Scheme

Particulars of the 2011 Scheme as required to be disclosed
under the Listing Rules are set out below:

(1) Summary of the 2011 Scheme

(a) Purpose

The purpose is to provide the participants who have
been granted options under the 2011 Scheme to
subscribe for ordinary shares in the Company with
the opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in
the Company and to encourage the participants to
work towards enhancing the value of the Company
and its shares for the benefit of the Company and
its shareholders as a whole.

(b) Participants

All directors (including any executive and non-
executive directors), full-time employees and
consultants of the Company, its subsidiaries and/or
its associated companies are eligible to participate
in the 2011 Scheme.

(c) Maximum number of shares available for
issue

A maximum number of 135,027,436 shares of
the Company may be issued upon exercise of all
options granted or to be granted under the 2011
Scheme.

Ji Je it 3
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(d) Maximum entitlement of each

participant

The total number of shares of the Company issued
and to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted and to be granted to each participant
(including both exercised and unexercised options)
under the 2011 Scheme or any other share option
scheme (if any) adopted by the Company in any
12-month period must not exceed 1% of the shares
of the Company in issue unless otherwise approved
by the shareholders of the Company.

Where any grant of options to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company, or any of their respective
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules), would
result in the shares of the Company issued and

to be issued upon exercise of all options already
granted and to be granted to such person in any
12-month period up to and including the date of
the grant:

(i)  representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue; and

(i) having an aggregate value, based on the
closing price of the shares of the Company as
stated in the daily quotations sheets issued
by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant in
excess of HK$5.0 million,

such grant of option shall be subject to prior
approval of the shareholders of the Company who
are not connected persons of the Company as
defined in the Listing Rules.
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(e)

Period within which the shares must be
taken up under an option

An option must be exercised within 10 years from
the date on which it is granted or such shorter
period as the Board (or the relevant committee
thereof) may specify at the time of grant.

Minimum period, if any, for which an
option must be held before it can be
exercised

At the time of the grant of an option, the Board (or
the relevant committee thereof) must specify the
minimum period(s), if any, for which an option must
be held before it can be exercised.

Period open for acceptance of an option
and amount payable upon acceptance

The offer of the grant of an option (of which the
date of grant must be a business day of the Stock
Exchange) must be accepted within 14 days from
the date on which the offer letter is delivered to the
participant and a consideration of HK$1.0 must be
paid upon acceptance.

(e)
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(2)

(h) Basis of determining the subscription
price of an option

The subscription price of an option shall be no less
than the higher of:

(1)

(iii)

the closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the daily quotations
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the
date of grant;

the average closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the daily quotations
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
five business days of the Stock Exchange
immediately preceding the date of grant; and

the nominal value of a share of the Company
on the date of grant.

Remaining life

The 2011 Scheme has a life of 10 years and will

expire on 7 September 2021 unless otherwise

terminated in accordance with the terms of the
2011 Scheme.

Details of options granted and
available for grant

No option was granted under the 2011 Scheme since

its adoption. The total number of shares in the Company

available for grant of options under the 2011 Scheme is
135,027,436 shares which represents 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company at the date of this annual
report (i.e. 20 June 2012).
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Continuing Connected Transactions

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group entered
into the following transactions which constituted continuing
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules:

2010 Construction and Renovation
Services Framework Agreement

The Company and Hanison entered into the Construction and
Renovation Services Framework Agreement dated 20 January
2010 (the “2010 Agreement”) which governs the outline
terms upon which members of the Group and Hanison and its
subsidiaries (the “Hanison Group”) proposed to be engaged in
various construction projects (the “Construction Transactions”)
and various interior and renovation projects (the “Renovation
Transactions”) during the three financial years ending 31
March 2013 with total values to be subject to the following
annual caps.

Annual caps

the total value of the Construction Transactions in terms of
revenue recognition shall not exceed the following:

1 April 2010 — 31 March 2011 HK$600.0 million

1 April 2011 - 31 March 2012

HK$400.0 million

1 April 2012 — 31 March 2013 HK$400.0 million
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the total value of the Renovation Transactions in terms of
revenue recognition shall not exceed the following:

1 April 2010 - 31 March 2011 HK$50.0 million
1 April 2011 — 31 March 2012 HK$50.0 million
1 April 2012 — 31 March 2013 HK$50.0 million

The Directors are of the opinion that the 2010 Agreement
represents business that is in the ordinary and usual course of
the Group and reflect normal commercial terms that are arm'’s
length and are fair and reasonable so far as its shareholders
are concerned and are in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole.

The 2010 Agreement, the terms thereof, the transactions
contemplated thereunder and the annual caps on the total
values of the Construction Transactions and the Renovation
Transactions (as set out above) were approved by an ordinary
resolution passed by the independent shareholders of the
Company at an extraordinary general meeting held on 9 March
2010.

In the event that the total value of the Construction
Transactions or the Renovation Transactions exceeds the
relevant annual cap amount for any year as set out above,
such transactions will be subject to review and re-approval by
independent shareholders of the Company at the next AGM or
at an extraordinary general meeting convened for the purpose.
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In accordance with rule 14A.37 of the Listing Rules, the
Directors have duly approved, and the independent non-
executive directors of the Company have reviewed the

internal auditor’s report and the independent auditor’s letter
pursuant to rule 14A.38 and confirmed that the above
continuing connected transactions (the “Continuing Connected
Transactions”) were carried out in accordance with the
following principles:

(a) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(b) on normal commercial terms or terms no less favourable
than terms available to (or from) independent third
parties; and

(c) in accordance with the terms of the relevant agreements
governing the Continuing Connected Transactions on
a fair and reasonable basis and in the interest of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole.

The Board has engaged the independent auditor of the
Company to report on the Continuing Connected Transactions
for the year ended 31 March 2012 pursuant to rule 14A.38
of the Listing Rules. The independent auditor of the Company
has provided a letter to the Board confirming that:

(a) for the year ended 31 March 2012, the aggregate
amount paid and payable by the Group in respect of the
Construction Transactions in terms of revenue recognition
did not exceed the annual cap of HK$400.0 million as
set out in the previous announcement dated 20 January
2010; and

(b) for the year ended 31 March 2012, the aggregate
amount paid and payable by the Group in respect of the
Renovation Transactions in terms of revenue recognition
did not exceed the annual cap of HK$50.0 million as
set out in the previous announcement dated 20 January
2010.
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Directors’ Interests in Contracts of
Significance

Save as disclosed above, no contract of significance to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

Continuing Disclosure Requirements
under Rule 13.21 of Chapter 13 of the
Listing Rules

In accordance with the continuing obligation set out in rule
13.21 of Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules, the following are

the details of the loan agreement with covenants relating to
specific performance on the controlling shareholders of the
Company as at 31 March 2012 pursuant to rule 13.18 thereof.
There exists no reporting obligation by the Company under
rules 13.17 and 13.19 of the Listing Rules.

The Company is the borrower of a loan agreement entered
into on 18 September 2007 (the “Loan Agreement”) for a
transferable revolving credit facility in an aggregate principal
amount of HK$2,500.0 million with final maturity date falling
five years after the date of the Loan Agreement.

The Loan Agreement provides that the existing controlling
shareholder of the Company as defined below as Cha

Family, being a single largest shareholder (direct or

indirect shareholding) in the Company on the date of the

Loan Agreement together with its associate(s) shall be the
Company'’s single largest beneficial shareholder at any time
until the final maturity date and/or so long as the loan remains
outstanding.
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As at the date of the Loan Agreement, CCM Trust (Cayman)
Limited, LBJ Regents Limited and CDW Holdings Limited (all
being substantial shareholders of the Company within the
meaning of the SFO), Mingly Asia Capital Limited (not being

a substantial shareholder within the meaning of the SFO)

and Mr CHA Mou Sing Payson, Mr CHA Mou Zing Victor,

Mr CHA Mou Daid Johnson and Ms WONG CHA May Lung
Madeline (all being directors of the Company) together had

an aggregate interest in 686,284,267 shares in the Company,
representing approximately 50.83% of the issued share capital
of the Company and collectively treated as a single controlling
shareholder of the Company under the term “Cha Family”. The
term Cha Family extends to include the interest of Mr CHA Yiu
Chung Benjamin after he became a director of the Company in
September 2010.

As at the date of this report, Cha Family holds an aggregate
interest in 673,149,146 shares representing approximately
49.85% of the issued share capital of the Company and

it remains a single largest beneficial shareholder of the
Company.

Continuing Disclosure Requirements
under Rule 13.22 of Chapter 13 of the
Listing Rules

In accordance with the requirements of rule 13.22 of Chapter
13 of the Listing Rules, the following are the details of financial
assistance and guarantees given for facilities granted to
affiliated companies of the Company as at 31 March 2012
pursuant to rule 13.16 thereof.

(1) Asat 31 March 2012, the Group advanced to Tung
Chung Station Development Company Limited
(“TCSDCL") an aggregate amount of HK$849.4 million.
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TCSDCL is engaged in the development of Tung Chung
Station Package Il Project in Lantau Island, Hong Kong
in which the Group has 31% interest. The last phase of
the development was completed in 2009 and TCSDCL
is currently interested in the 2-story commercial centre
and 480 residential car parking spaces. The advances
were provided by the Group in the form of shareholder’s
loans in proportion to the Group’s shareholding interest
in TCSDCL, for the purpose of funding the working
capital requirements of TCSDCL. The advances are
unsecured, non-interest bearing and have no fixed term
of repayments.

(2) Asat 31 March 2012, the Group advanced to Dazhongli
Properties Limited and its subsidiaries (“Dazhongli
Group”) an aggregate amount of HK$4,820.6 million.

Dazhongli Group is engaged in the development of
certain properties in Jingan District, Shanghai, the PRC
in which the Group has 50% interest. The advances were
provided by the Group to Dazhongli Group in the form of
equity and loans in proportion to its shareholding interest
therein, for the purpose of financing the development
expenditure of Dazhongli Group. The advances are
unsecured, non-interest bearing and have no fixed terms
of repayments.

(3) Asat 31 March 2012, the Group also advanced to
several affiliated companies an aggregate amount of
HK$507.6 million.

As at 31 March 2012, the aggregate amount of advances
provided to and guarantees given for these affiliated
companies by the Group amounted to HK$6,177.6 million and
represented 42.6% of the consolidated net tangible assets of
the Group of HK$14,495.8 million as at 31 March 2012.

(2)

(3)
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The financial information of these affiliated companies at 31
March 2012 are set out in notes 18 and 19 to the consolidated
financial statements on pages 176 to 183.

Management Contract

No contract for the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of any business of the Company
was entered into or existed during the year.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the
Company’s Listed Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The aggregate turnover attributable to the Group'’s five largest
customers was less than 30% of the total value of the Group’s
turnover.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five
largest suppliers were less than 30% of the total value of the
Group’s purchases.

None of the Directors, any of their associates, or shareholders
of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
interest in the Group’s five largest customers.

Investment Properties and Property,
Plant and Equipment

Details of the changes in the investment properties and
property, plant and equipment of the Group during the year
are set out in notes 15 and 16 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively on pages 168 to 175.
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Properties Held for/under
Development, Sale and Investment
Purposes

Details of changes in properties held for/under development
purposes of the Group during the year are set out in note 24 to
the consolidated financial statements on page 191.

A summary of major properties held for/under development,
sale and investment purposes is set out on pages 235 to 240.

Donations

During the year, the Group made charitable and other
donations amounting to approximately HK$6.0 million (2011:
approximately HK$3.0 million).

Human Resources

As at 31 March 2012, the total number of employees of the
Group in Hong Kong and overseas was 3,267 (2011: 3,268).
The Group has always regarded human resources as one of
the most important assets. It aims to provide a quality working
environment that attracts, retains and develops the right
people and to build a talented workforce with capabilities and
commitment to support our business growth. For key initiatives
during the year, please refer to pages 36 and 37.

Retirement Benefits Schemes

Information on the Group’s retirement benefits schemes is
set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements on
pages 216 and 217.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
although there is no restriction against such rights under the
laws of the Cayman Islands.
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Sufficiency of Public Float

According to information available to the Company, the
percentage of the Company’s shares which are in the hands
of the public exceeds 25% of the Company’s total number of
issued shares.

Corporate Governance

The Company’s Corporate Governance Report is set out on
pages 77 to 101.

Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 234.
This summary does not form part of the consolidated financial
statements.

Review of the Annual Report by Audit
Committee

The Group’s annual report for the year ended 31 March 2012
has been reviewed by the audit committee established in
compliance with rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the relevant
provisions of the CG Code.

Independent Auditor

A resolution will be proposed at the 2012 AGM of the
Company to re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, being
eligible and offering themselves for re-appointment, as the
independent auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
RREFS

CHA Mou Zing Victor

Deputy Chairman & Managing Director
Bl L [EFE FAACTE
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Hong Kong, 20 June 2012
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Corporate Governance Report

The board of directors (the “Board” or the “Directors”) of the
Company presents its corporate governance report for the year
ended 31 March 2012.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Company acknowledges the importance of good corporate
governance practices as a core element towards the success
of its business operation and it has been the Company’s
policy to manage the affairs of the Group in accordance

with appropriate regulatory standards and practices on good
corporate governance.

In the opinion of the Board, the Company has complied
with the code provisions and the enhanced code provisions
effective from 1 April 2012 and onwards of the Corporate
Governance Code (“CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) during the year ended 31 March 2012,
except for certain deviations from the code provisions A.4.1
(non-executive directors should be appointed for a specific
term), E.1.2 (chairman of the board should attend annual
general meeting) and some enhanced code provisions that
have been effected on and after 1 April 2012. Details of the
deviations with the considered reasons relating to the code
provisions A.4.1 and E.1.2 are duly set out below in the table.

Summarised below in the table are the corporate governance
principles and the code provisions containing in the CG Code
with which the Company is obliged to comply, and if not, with
considered reasons given. The Company has not yet complied
with the code provisions with remarks “N/A” under the column
“Compliance” in the below table during the year ended 31
March 2012 as those provisions were not effective until 1 April
2012.
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EERRE

A Directors )
Al The board Exg
Principle EA

The board should assume responsibility for
leadership and control of the issuer and is
collectively responsible for promoting its
success by directing and supervising its
aftairs.

EBFRRRFFARERETANEL UEEEEEREREEFTAEFHLE
RETARY)

Corporate Governance Practices of the Company

Code Provisions Compliance (including any deviations and considered reasons)
F AR &5 ANAZEEERER (ARENRERRERAR)

All Regular board meetings should be held v/ Regular Board meetings are held on a quarterly basis and ad hoc Board meetings are
at least four times a year involving active held as required. For year ended 31 March 2012, 6 Board meetings were held.
participation, either in person or through THESEeEBE AR N YNGR ERARRIESZEE - REZE012F
other electronic means of communication, 3ABIALEER HBERTAREEELH -
of a majority of directors. A regular meeting
does not include obtaining board consent Electronic means of communication is available for all Directors to attend every Board
through circulating written resolutions. meeting.

THEZEAREFEAREINA B PRESTERETRASALERESZE SR

BHABAERLRERNESRALE

YEAETRAAFEGLE-EZETE Attendance records of the Board meetings held during the year are set out in the

HeaY MeRNERERRE ARG section below headed “Attendances of AGM, Board and Committee Meetings”.

Exefa- %?ﬁ%@@%Zﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁW%Tﬁ(%%E@~§$&§E§@%Zﬁ%$J
— Q o

A.l1.2 All directors are given an opportunity to v/ All Directors are consulted as to whether they wish to include any matter in the agenda
include matters in the agenda for regular before the agenda for each regular Board meeting is issued.
board meetings. REEHESEERZRRULN 2RESHEAALTAEMEERZT AR
EREFEAHEROIBIFEIAES Ao
eEHeRER.

A.l3 Notice of at least 14 days should be given v/ Dates of regular Board meetings in a particular year usually held in March, June,
of a regular board meeting. For all other September and November are scheduled towards the end of the immediately
board meetings, reasonable notice should preceding year to give all Directors adequate time to plan their schedules to attend the
be given. meetings.

BREZETHEZRELEL 4R SFEREHESEEE —MN3A 68 9ARILARIT WENAI—FFKER

M ERBREMHAESERE BE AERRTHE RRESERNERTHLRESS -

HEREM.
At least 14 days formal notice would be given before each regular Board meeting.
Reasonable advance notice would be given for other Board meetings.
RERERTCHES S SR PURENEXBE A ESEERNE R LS
BrErEt-
According to the Company's articles of association (the “Articles”), a Director may
waive notice of any meeting and any such waiver may be prospective or retrospective.
REANRZRAN ([ERA1]) ESTHEEMGHR RS MARETRE
SR EREEL

Al4 Minutes of board meetings and board v/ Minutes of Board meetings, the audit committee meetings and other Board committees

committees meetings should be kept by

a duly appointed secretary of the meeting
and should be open for inspection at any
reasonable time on reasonable notice by
any director.
BEAZENERNEREFESZSRE
TZEEEMERLS BREMESHL
AEBM EARAMERLSRHEREER
MEBHERERH-

meetings are kept by the company secretary. Same practice will be adopted for the
nomination committee which was set up on 26 March 2012.

EZe BENZEQRANESERE Qv eA IR ARNERRT - R2012F
3RABERUZRERZEENERAMEAER

Minutes of the remuneration committee meetings are kept by the head of the human
resources department who is the secretary of the committee.

FHZE e e nRAFARZEeNEL ANERBIERE

Copies of all executed minutes and/or written resolutions are distributed to the Directors
as from time to time and are available for inspection by Directors/Board committees’
members as required.

BEEZERLEHR/REOREZAAETRERTES TAINEGREREE
/222 ZBEKBEH-
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Corporate Governance Practices of the Company

Code Provisions Compliance (including any deviations and considered reasons)
FAEX BF ANAZEEERER (BREMNREREZEER)

A.l5 Minutes of board meetings and board v/ Minutes of Board meetings and Board committees meetings record and contain
committees meetings should record in sufficient details of matters considered and decision reached including concerns raised
sufficient detail the matters considered or dissenting views expressed by the Directors.
and decisions reached including concerns EEERESCR e S BB RN R LB EES B H B RAENR
raised or dissenting views expressed by B EPRRESRENENREIRENRYEER -
directors.

EZeREBETZEENSHRN BY Draft versions of minutes of Board meetings are sent to the chairman before circulated
BF LAMERSERERNATEER T to other Board members for comments prior to each next Board meeting.
AR EREZEEEF R AN EReeRLBN AR ARG EIREHNEIR T —AESERAMERTS
RESRENREER - EFeNEEH-
Draft minutes of Board committees meetings are sent to all Board committees
members for their comments within a reasonable time after meetings are held.
EZRZEQV e LERR NEeRERENSERARN EXTEESEZR
EEKEEMN-
Final versions and signed minutes of Board/Board committees meetings are sent to all
Directors for record between the interval of two meetings.
R /EReRE e LBV SRRRERE SRR EAE VAR
2RRESELH.

A.l.6 There should be a procedure agreed by the v/ The Board has adopted written terms of reference of the Board and/or Board
board to enable directors, upon reasonable committees for Directors to seek independent professional advice on need basis upon
request, to seek independent professional request at the Company's expense, to assist them to discharge their duties.
advice in appropriate circumstances, at the ESCERMNESE R /NETCZE GV EERRER UFEESEXNEER
issuer’s expense. BABUELER URHRSEARE SHRBEAA AR
EZeREYNTERR BESRAEE
*’ﬂE@%W\&T EXBUZEE
REBRBEOA
The board should resolve to provide
separate independent professional advice
to directors to assist them perform their
duties to the issuer.

ERERIASIIRESRUBUIEE
R ABBnMBETEEETANEL.

A.l1.7 If a substantial shareholder or a director v/ Material transactions with connected persons, in general, would be considered
has a conflict of interest in a matter to be at physical Board meeting whereat the Directors, including INEDs, may consider,
considered by the board which the board if appropriate, granting approval in principle for the proposed transactions and
has determined to be material, the matter authorising the final forms thereof be further reviewed and approved by way of
should be dealt with by a physical board circulation of resolutions to all Directors or by an independent Board committee set up
meeting rather than a written resolution. for that purpose.
ERARRIESEEZEHTERNS —BERT BREATRIZEARGERESCEHEE 22 (REBE)R
HIFAEZERRBANTIRER 5 3 LAZERNEEHRTRA AR SRS I#EWQ i%u@ﬁ/mx
MEEENRTEEeeR (MAEEDR ZHR BRI BVESER R et — SENRMAEBMR HBE 2 RIET
&) AR He
Independent non-executive directors The Articles provide for voting and quorum requirements conforming to this code
(“INEDs") who and whose associates, provision whereby interested Directors are required to abstain from voting and shall not
have no material interest in the transaction be counted in the quorum.
should be present at that board meeting. BAAFTRFAATIBEIZERARREEASHE Bt RERR I ESEN
ERGPAG REBE NTRBE AT G BRERPFNEEABA
MBVEHNTES ([BE])EZLES
BMEZEgER.

Al8 An issuer should arrange appropriate v/ Directors’ and officers’ liabilities insurance has been arranged by the Company with

insurance cover in respect of legal action
against its directors.
FIARHEEF A @ HLNERTE
{EEENRRT -

coverage in respect of legal action against directors of the Group. Annual review on the
coverage will be conducted in accordance with the Directors’ risk exposure arising out
of corporate activities.
ARREHARESE A RHNEETIARERREERSAABEERR
WEEHARREDMA S| HNEFALNER ETRBERR
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EERRE

A2 Chairman and chief executive officer IRERITHAHK
Principle EA
There should be a clear division of BEVRERRES HERENFRESTIE  THENEEFREL—A -
responsibilities to ensure a balance of
power and authority, so that power is not
concentrated in any one individual.

Corporate Governance Practices of the Company
Code Provisions Compliance (including any deviations and considered reasons)
AR BF ANAZEEERER (BREMNREREEER)

A2.1 The roles of chairman and chief executive v/ The roles of chairman, deputy chairman and managing director of the Company
should be separate and should not be have been taken up by two different individuals who are brothers. Mr CHA Mou Sing
performed by the same individual. Payson is the chairman and Mr CHA Mou Zing Victor is the deputy chairman and
IRETRAHNABEERS L E managing director of the Company. Their respective roles and responsibilities were
A AREEE- set out in writing during the year. The chairman is mainly responsible for setting the

Company's direction in consultation with the Board and for the high-level oversight
The division of responsibilities between of management. While the managing director, with the support of executive directors
chairman and chief executive should be (“EDs"), is responsible for strategic planning of different business functions and day-to-
clearly established and set out in writing. day management and operation of the Group.
TRETHAH EBRENS TRFER ARAER BERRESLLE BUAMEBRALSZTRALEE S
WA EESIE BEEARAARIZER SRRAERLARFREEFLLE MESEORSE
RBE ERFRNEEH - TRFEGENFAZTEGR HEARMNAM I
REBEREEERENTIE NESALBAENTES ([RE])NHHTE
BEARETREBBE RRERERBEERNEE

A2.2 The chairman should ensure that all v/ With the assistance of the EDs, the management and the company secretary, the
directors are properly briefed on the issues chairman seeks to ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at
arising at board meetings. Board meetings and receive adequate documents and information about the Group in a
IRERREZCRE LMEESIEE timely manner.

AEEAIHFIE - EHE BERERAFNENGY T FRBENERZEESHRIZAGNESS
BRREBER URKANERERASERN X RES

A2.3 The chairman should be responsible for v/
ensuring that directors receive, in a timely Starting in May 2012, the management has been sending out a monthly management
manner, adequate information which must update report to all Directors to update them on the business of the Company.
be accurate, clear, complete and reliable. M0G0 AfG EEEEMRBESXEFAERENRENREAARES
IREAERRESRERITANE RS EA-

i A BER L AEREH R
)

A2.4 The chairman is to provide leadership for v/ The chairman of the Board provides leadership and governance of the Board so as to
the board and ensure that the board works create the conditions for the Board to work effectively and perform its responsibilities.
effectively and performs its responsibilities ESeIREERERESS AESOREANEENKYE UBTERE:
with all key and appropriate issues are
discussed by it in a timely manner. The chairman leads meetings, ensures that all key and appropriate issues are
ITRAREES O NEREZCAMILE discussed by the Board in a timely manner.

B BERTTEERE YRKHMAEE TREIFER URRRERAEFERRENERETH

MBS FIRETH
All Directors are consulted as to whether they wish to include any matter in the agenda.
The chairman of the Board designates the company secretary to draw up the agenda
by taking into account the matters, if any, proposed by the other Directors for inclusion
in the agenda. The chairman of the Board finally reviews and approves the agenda
before the agenda for each Board meeting is issued.
PEEFYRANSTAEMNFERERIAZEN - ESQETRRRAANERTE
ERReRaERERLERRENTE (WA)IASZEA BREFSEEN
AR AGEESEIRBRENNER T EXTES.

A.2.5 The chairman should take primary v/ The chairman of the Board, with the support of the company secretary, takes primary

responsibility for ensuring that good
corporate governance practices and
procedures are established.
IEEATERR BRAAMNTREMN
EEERERARERF -

responsibility to establish good corporate governance practices and procedures of the
Company.

ERRIRARANENBY TRRRYUARARFLREREAREFZE R
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Corporate Governance Practices of the Company

Code Provisions Compliance (including any deviations and considered reasons)
AR ¥ ARAZEEERER (BRENRERERER)
A.2.6 The chairman should encourage directors v/ Directors are encouraged to express their viewpoints to the Board's affairs and voice
with different views to voice their concerns, their concerns, if any.
allow sufficient time for discussion of issues ESYRBENESENSHREAERRBINER (NF) -
and ensure that board decisions fairly
reflect board consensus. Directors are provided sufficient time for discussion on issues in the meetings and the
IEESHETRAERANESHRENA chairman directs discussions towards the emergence of a consensus view and then
HRIMER RTELEER RER sum up discussions so that all Directors understand what has been agreed.
W ARERESSNRTHAERKE REZE EXEGAMNBHNREE TRFTEIREILSRERE £2
SemAH. €3§$%ﬁ¢ﬁﬁﬂwﬁ’l$ﬂo
A2.7 The chairman should at least annually hold N/A Directors, including INEDs, are invited to communicate directly with the chairman of
meetings with the non-executive directors NER the Board whenever required.
(“NEDs") (including INEDs) without the SRR EN AR ENERAES eI RHE
EDs present.
IREZVGFRINTES ([FHE]) The chairman of the Board acknowledges this new requirement and will arrange
(REBE) BT RIBHELRENE meeting. The compliance with such new requirement for the year ending 31 March
ER 2013 will be set out in the Corporate Governance Report (“CG Report”) containing in
the 2012/2013 annual report.
EZeTRBEREENRTLERHEE% R2013F3A31 Et%iﬁ;ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ
ERFE BHIIN20122013FEFRTHEEERRE ([REERRE]) R
A28 The chairman should ensure that v/ The chairman of the Board is accountable to shareholders and ensures that there is an

appropriate steps are taken to provide
effective communication with shareholders
and that their views are communicated to
the board as a whole.

IRERRENEER SRR ERRN
BHHE D RBERIRE S R A EERE
HE=g-

effective communication with the shareholders and their views are communicated to

the Board as a whole.
%ﬁﬁe}*ﬁﬂﬁiﬁ E RERARSHNER FHMNNERTEEEREES

El

A shareholder communication policy was established by the Board in late March
2012 which sets out the Company's policy for maintaining an on-going dialogue with
shareholders and investment community. The policy is subject to regular review by the
Board to ensure its effectiveness.

AEARRERRRBEEERERN  EEGR201243 8 T ERRERBE
A #6380 SRR SR AR TE AR i A RRAR LA A

Shareholders are invited at any time to send their enquiries and concerns to the Board
by addressing them to the company secretary whose contact details are as follows:
REATAEMKEEAAINENEZSREMERER  EHEERET

By Email By Mail By Telephone/Fax
B B B/ BE
Email: cs@hkri.com The Company Secretary Tel:  (852) 2238 1188

BH : cs@hkri.com
23/F, China Merchants Tower,  Z:&: (852) 2238 1188
Shun Tak Centre, EE: (852) 2521 0705
168-200 Connaught Road
Central, Hong Kong
ARWE
BREEBEREBEERA
BB THiET168- ZOOEﬁ
FEPLAERAE23E

The company secretary is responsible for forwarding communications relating to
matters within the Board’s direct responsibilities to the Board and communications
relating to ordinary business matters, such as suggestions, inquiries and customer
complaints, to the relevant executive officers of the Company under the direction of the
chairman of the Board.

ARNERE R HREE e B AR S ENARNEBETEE g RESY
TR2ETMEBREEBZSENERN S NES EANEPRF EETA
AAIEEMITHAS

(852)

HKR International Limited Fax:  (852) 2521 0705
(852)
(852)
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PEREARME

Code Provisions
SR

A2.9 The chairman should promote a culture
of openness and debate by facilitating the
effective contribution of NEDs in particular
and ensuring constructive relations
between EDs and NEDs.
FRERBAR BE RO (2
EF (BhHE) HESSELEN
BE UHERNERENE 2 MERER

Compliance
B
v/

Corporate Governance Practices of the Company
(including any deviations and considered reasons)
ANAZEEERER (BRENRERERER)

The chairman of the Board has discharged this responsibility properly.
EFRTRCRENETERE

HERB &
A3 Board composition ETg4N
Principle EA

The Board should have a balance of
Skills and experience appropriate for the
requirements of the ssuer’s business and
Should include a balanced composition of
EDs and NEDs (including INEDs) so that
independent juagment can be effectively
exercised.

Code Provisions

TR

A3.1 The INEDs should be identified in all
corporate communications that disclose the
names of directors.
EREHEESHANDABAT X
HEABES R -

Compliance
oy
v/

EFERREZTARBNAGEZERDNES HELAHNE (BEBE)H
AR EZRITIE A BGEHF AL BT A BT -

Corporate Governance Practices of the Company
(including any deviations and considered reasons)

FRRAZEEERER (AREMREREREE)

The Board currently comprises fourteen directors, five are EDs and nine are NEDs of
whom five and hence, with more than one third of the Board, are INEDs. It constitutes
a balanced Board with strong independent element. Each Director possesses skills and
experience appropriate to the business of the Group and their particulars are duly set
out in the heading of “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” in this
annual report.

EzenRmTNEESAN ERAENERNLIHNE MFREFERE (U
HER=H—MEFTENE) RES -SSR RFVEERE BABREBILK
T -REFYABRAAREER Z RERER EF 2 BEFEHFIRAFRA
[EZRREEEABZRE] —BA-

Composition of the Board, by name and category of directors is disclosed in all
corporate communications.

Bz dn ESHARERNERTERRBAARE-

Alist of the composition of the Board, audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee has been published on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

B39 ENZEe FHZEeRREZEENKEZECHENARAIRER
P48, -

A3.2 An issuer should maintain on its website
and on the Stock Exchange’s website an
updated list of its directors identifying their
role and function and whether they are
INEDs.

BT NFETE EL AR R B S B At £ 3%
RESHNEZSHERE" I@%Hﬁ
ENBE LREREREEE

An updated list of the Company's Directors identifying their role and function and
whether they are INEDs is maintained on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

ARASMTHESACANEE IRARTBENESENERERFENAR
A R 32 P 0 4 o
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A4 Appointments, re-election and removal R EENESR
Principle FA
There should be a formal, considered and HEBNZAEFEILERN KEEZREVAZHE SECHHFHESEFT
transparent procedure for the appointment E TEEFLEGEE THEANEEE.
of new directors and plans in place for
orderly succession for appointments. All
directors should be subject fo re-election at
regular intervals.

Corporate Governance Practices of the Company
Code Provisions Compliance (including any deviations and considered reasons)
F A& X By ANRZEEERER (BRENRERERAER)

A4l NEDs should be appointed for a specific X The Articles have provisions for rotation and re-election of all Directors. As required by
term, subject to re-election. the Articles, at each annual general meeting (“AGM”), one-third of the Directors for
FHENZARERTAY UEARRE the time being, or if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number
HEE. nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation provided

that every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three

A4.2 All directors appointed to fill a casual v/ years and any Director appointed by the Directors shall hold office only until the next
vacancy should be subject to election by following general meeting of the Company (in the case of filling a casual vacancy) or
shareholders at the first general meeting until the next following AGM (in the case of an addition to the Board) and be eligible to
after appointment. Every director, including offer for re-election.
those appointed for a specific term, should ERMRSEBESARARAREREE 2K ERAAUATE NEERRE
be subject to retirement by rotation at least FRE(REFE]) L ERAEAESZ =N — (HEEFHAVIF=AREE
once every three years. ASBEARTRIR=A—2ES) ARERT SR ESHES - FRERTR
A RERBREZRMBEZENESEE PR MEEZZEENEZEHEZARR TRRRAS AL (NBEFE
BXZERMERRRAG LRI RTE BEHR) AEZETERRFEAL (NBEESMEKE) TAEREREF.
B-BRES (@éﬁ?ﬁijﬁ%%%)%

WL EPE=F R All NEDs and INEDs of the Company were not appointed with specific term, but are
subject to the aforesaid rotation clause in the Articles.
ARAIZBIHERBENERTRAAH HAETERANA LGERE L
T

A4.3 Serving more than 9 years could be N/A Re-election of each eligible Director is subject to separate resolution to be approved by
relevant to the determination of a NED's TEA shareholders in the AGM of the Company.

independence. If an INED serves more
than 9 years, his further appointment
should be subject to a separate resolution
to be approved by shareholders. The
papers to shareholders accompanying that
resolution should include the reasons why
the board believes he is still independent
and should be re-elected.
EETFHENBYNR [EEE=E
BIF| RUMEA—BERAR-EBEEL
ERBRIF HERDEETEINB RS
KRABRREZ BB BIZRER—
RBERBRROXGT EHEEZE R
REZBALTNBBELA T REESEL

EEBEAARNESARARARREENBLRER AR BB

Directors acknowledge this new requirement effective on 1 April 2012. The compliance
with such new requirement for the year ending 31 March 2013 will be set out in the CG
Report containing in the 2012/2013 annual report.

EERMEEN2012F4 A1 B EBMFRT - 2013F3A31 A I REE T
HEMFE  BHIIN2012203FEFRTNLEE REN-
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PEREARME

A5 Nomination committee R&ZEE
Corporate Governance Practices of the Company
Code Provisions Compliance (including any deviations and considered reasons)
AR ¥ ANAZEEERER (BRENRERTRER)

A5.1 Issuers should establish a nomination v/ A nomination committee was set up in late March 2012 comprising Mr CHA Mou Sing
committee which is chaired by the Payson, the chairman of the Board, who acts as the chairman of the committee and
chairman of the board or an INED and three INEDs namely, Dr The Honourable CHEUNG Kin Tung Marvin, Ms HO Pak Ching
comprises a majority of INEDs. Loretta and Dr QIN Xiao.

BTARRUREZES AEZSLR REZEGN012F3A TAKY KEREESCLREMBAL (RRIEZE
;%ﬁ}ﬁﬁiﬁﬁ KEENBELAS 2IR)R=ZLAE ARREREL WHARLRFERL

A5.2 The nomination committee should be v/ Written terms of reference of the nomination committee have been duly adopted by the
established with specific written terms Company when the committee was set up.
of reference which deal with its authority ARARREEEERUNEAREEARELE -
and duties. It should perform at least the
prescribed specific duties. The terms of reference of the nomination committee require, inter alias, the nomination
REZRESNKIUKESE HARNE committee comprises not less than 3 members with a majority of INEDs and the
BHE BRGPAHBRENEM REZ chairman must be either an INED or the chairman of the Board. The principal role
BeRESBOMIANSERE and function of the nomination committee is to consider and recommend to the Board

suitably qualified persons to become members of the Board. The committee is also
responsible for reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board on a regular
basis and when required.

E%é SERESERT (AReE) REZEGRTINZEESAK AP A
BAOKEVERBERER AN ABEXEZ ST RER - REZEQFERH
RBREAERRNEFSHEABSHERTEEESNAL ZEENEEEH
FERTERRIEFTENRE  ABRAK-

A5.3 The nomination committee should make v/ The terms of reference of the nomination committee (including its role and function)
available its terms of reference explaining are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
its role and the authority delegated o it by REZEQHEGE (REERBRESE) TRAR A RE XA AEER -
the board by including them on the Stock
Exchange's website and issuer’s website.

REZ B QIR RET AR
FRREARESE REAARRESE
ERTHMES -

AS5.4 Issuers should provide the nomination v/ The nomination committee is entitled to seek independent professional advice, at the
committee sufficient resources to perform Company's expenses, if it considers necessary in order to perform its duties.
its duties. Where necessary, the nomination REZECHREEAAREIRENTS HRBUEXER BRABRADARE-
committee should seek independent
professional advice, at the issuer's expense,
to perform its responsibilities.

ETAERREZEERETRBRAE
TEBE -RAZEERTBERNES
E ESKBEVEXER BRAETA
Ffto
A5.5 Where the board proposes a resolution N/A Directors acknowledge this new requirement effective on 1 April 2012. The compliance

to elect an individual as an INED at the TERA
general meeting, it should set out in the
circular to shareholders and/or explanatory
statement accompanying the notice of the
relevant general meeting why they believe
he should be elected and the reasons why
they consider him to be independent.
FESERNREAE LRZAZRER
EATRBE FERRAGES Pﬁ e
BB A u&/i SR BT
Eﬂ§$w BEZAALIIERNK
AR E%%At%?%ﬂ\iﬁ’]ﬁl

with such new requirement for the year ending 31 March 2013 will be set out in the CG
Report containing in the 2012/2013 annual report.
E=WREEN201254A 1B £ MR TE - R2013F3A31 B IERFFETZM
MEMFE  BHFIN20122013FEFRTNLEE R REN-
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A6 Responsibilities of directors BEEER
Principle B
Every director must always know his LBEEZRRACHRERFTAEZNBE URETANEETH EKEE
responsibilities as a director of the issuer RER-
and its conduct, business activities and
development.
Corporate Governance Practices of the Company
Code Provisions Compliance (including any deviations and considered reasons)
AR BF ANAZEEERER (BREMNREREEER)
A.6.1 Every newly appointed director should v/ The Board is responsible for the management of the Company, which includes
receive a comprehensive, formal and formulating business strategies, directing and supervising the Company’s affairs. EDs
tailored induction on appointment, and are in charge of different businesses and functional divisions in accordance with their
subsequently he should receive any respective areas of expertise.
briefing and professional development ESeREANAICER BRENELCERE FEREBADRZEH -HER
necessary to ensure that he has a proper BEENEZEEAETRBANER KRB
understanding of the issuer's operations
and business and is fully aware of his Upon appointment, every Director is given comprehensive documentations of the
responsibilities under statute and common business operation of the Group and regulatory and statutory requirements as director
law, the Listing Rules, legal and other together with brief meetings with senior executives and department heads of the Group.
regulatory requirements and the issuer's BEEENEZARSERERASEAEBEE 2EXN M RIEAESHB K
business and governance policies. BIRERBRE TEASESRITBAE RPIHIEEEHERH-.
BENEANESHRERZERESGS
A EXFREAEMBMOMEAN B Directors are provided with continuous updates on latest changes or material
NEESHEANAREELE  IUER development in the statutes, the Listing Rules, corporate governance practices relating
T AR EERER DB ESE to the duties and responsibilities of directors and are encouraged to participate
B URTRRHEASE LR R T EA- in continuous professional development seminars to update their knowledge for
A EEREMEE T AR BT discharging directors’ responsibilities.
ARVETS R ATRE TR o ESTRGERESHE RBBNER  EMRA CEERERNKINEIRE
ABREGENAN AREINERD2AFEEXERMNE UENKER
TESBENHH-
A6.2 The functions of NEDs should include the v/ The written terms of reference of NEDs have incorporated the functions of NEDs as
prescribed specific duties. prescribed.
FRERNB OB AN ERE - FREEAREGER DEHEMTROE TR
A6.3 Every director should ensure that he can v/ Directors continue to give appropriate time and attention to the affairs of the Company.
give sufficient time and attention to the ESRHERALAIEHA TEERARET
issuer's affairs and should not accept the
appointment if he cannot do so.
BREZEERAL(T 595 A RAsie A
BRRETANER TATEERZE.
A6.4 The board should establish written v/ The Company has adopted the Model Code (including amendments as effected from

guidelines no less exacting than the

Model Code as set out in Appendix 10

to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”)

for relevant employees in respect of their
dealings in the issuer's securities.
EXQRNEBREEEERTARSER
REEMEES| Bl NBEZ T LA
AR ER10pTH B2 2E SF A (TE2ESFAIL)

TE,

R

time to time) as its own code of conduct to regulate securities transactions by Directors.
All Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Company, that they
have complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code during the year
from 1 April 2011 to 31 March 2012 (both days inclusive). The Model Code has been
extended to and has become equally applicable to dealings in the securities of the
Company by members of senior management and relevant employees who are likely in
possession of unpublished price-sensitive information in relation to the Company.
RARBRMTETA (BBEAREMZ B ERREARAESETESRR S
TR EARAEL AREAR ADAI2BESHERR KREN2011F4
RIBZ20126F3A318 24 (BRMABEEN) —EETEETRINES 2 RE
£ REFAEBREZEAKEANGEERABREATHABRARRERMT
BRESFEH 2 BEHES -
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EERRE
Code Provisions
F AR X
A.6.5 All directors should participate in

continuous professional development

to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. This is to ensure that their
contribution to the board remains informed
and relevant. The issuer should be
responsible for arranging and funding
suitable training, placing an appropriate
emphasis on the roles, functions and duties
of a listed company director.
MEESR2EREREER ERIE
MEABRRE DEREEELTAES
EEARIEAENER THES ST
Bt BT AR ERHSENEILR
HERALE URBYEELTARES
WAL BEREE-

Directors should provide a record of the
training they received to the issuer.

BEERAFTARMMAEXIEINLE

Compliance
&y
v/

Corporate Governance Practices of the Company
(including any deviations and considered reasons)

FARZEEERER (BREMRERERER)

Directors acknowledge of the new requirement under code provision A.6.5 of the

CG Code regarding continuous professional development. The compliance with such
requirement for the year ending 31 March 2013 will be set out in the CG Report
containing in the 2012/2013 annual report.
EZEROZEATAURXACOREBREZERRMNITET - N201353A31H
IEREEETFHZRTE ZFE  HEFIR20122013F EF RPN XERRERN

The Company will make funding arrangement upon Directors’ request for suitable
trainings.

ARAIEARESNERG A BNRIREER L

Directors have been informed of the new requirement in providing their training record
to the Company effective on 1 April 2012. Details of how each Director complies with
such requirement for the year ending 31 March 2013 will be set out in the CG Report
containing in the 2012/2013 annual report.
ESCERE2012F4A1BEBABAARD AIREELEZNTRE - SEZRN
@gﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%iﬁ%?%ﬁiZﬁ%%ﬁﬂmmwmw¢§¢ﬁ¢ﬁ¥§
VEE =N

A.6.6 Each director should disclose to the v/ Each Director has informed the Company in a timely manner for any change, the
issuer at the time of his appointment, and number and nature of offices held in public companies or organisations and other
in a timely manner for any change, the significant commitments.
number and nature of offices held in public EEZERERARDAFABMETBRNSE HEREMERREZEER
companies or organisations and other BRAARAR-C
significant commitments. The identity of the
public companies or organisations and an The Company will disclose the changes, if any, in accordance with regulatory and
indication of the time involved should also statutory requirements.
be disclosed. The board should determine ARABEREARERAERBEEE (0F) -
for itself how frequently this disclosure
should be made.
BEESENEXZARAETAREE
RARDASEEEEBRMLNSEA RIS
AR HEMEREE e A EMEEE
RERE - WWHINTERES RORRD
Al AGMATENRETEEEEARE
P RNEH E2QRETREERS
AEH— IR -
A.6.7 INEDs and other NEDs, as equal board v/ NEDs including INEDs have regularly attended and participated in the Board and
members, should give the board and Board committee meetings.
any committees on which they serve the FHERRBENE EHLERSHESERESEREE8E -
benefit of their skills, expertise and varied
backgrounds and qualifications through Attendance records of Board and Board committee meetings during the year and of the
regular attendance and active participation. 2011 AGM are set out in the below section headed “Attendances of AGM, Board and
They should also attend general meetings Committee Megtings”.
and develop a balanced understanding of RER EEEREZCREC LR R0IREFS 2 HELHFEFIR T [RE
the views of shareholders. Feg EEeRTECEIIHER] &
BEREMIFHNEFREANEEEFR
EMNNEEENE EEALRESS
RERRHEZEEMENZEENEH
WEBLEEE ERE FEDHR
TRMERRERIEL TR I
BREAE HARRENEREALN
THee
A.6.8 INEDs and other NEDs should make a v/ NEDs including INEDs, continue to make appropriate suggestions and comments on

positive contribution to the development of
the issuer's strategy and policies through
independent, constructive and informed
comments.
BERHMINERERREEL R
FUERBRENE RGBT ANTERER
BRMEL EEER

the Company's strategy and policies at the Board/Board committee meetings.
FHEREBERENESE /EFRZECRRHA AR Z KRB RECKREE
BERERER-
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Supply of and access to information

87

AREHRRER

Principle

Directors should be provided in a timely
manner with appropriate information in the
form and quality to enable them to make an
informed decision and perform their duties
and responsibilities.

Code Provisions
SRR X

For regular board meetings, and as far as
practicable in all other cases, an agenda
and accompanying board papers should be
sent, in full, to all directors. These should
be sent in a timely manner and at least 3
days before the intended date of a board or
board committee meeting (or other agreed
period).
ExerHeanARRARgE U E
2HREERERES WEIEGEE
TEFEFEETZE88R AHN3K
Al (BN EMERA) AL - ESGH
e B EDE ATHER T I ERA
R

Compliance
¥
v/

RA
EZRRIEHEENEREY AVARZERREFMHFELEFHEHDEN
TIERE WaETRBERE L.

Corporate Governance Practices of the Company
(including any deviations and considered reasons)
ARAZEXERER (BRENRERERER)

Board papers are sent to all Directors/Board committee members at least 3 days (or
such other period as agreed) before the relevant meetings.
ESe N ERERENAES =X (AN BT AR 222 8ES E%

EZRERE-

Management should supply the board and
its committees with adequate information,
in a timely manner, to enable it to make
informed decision.
EEERMNEZERAETZESRER
ROERER NEESHENEEEEH
BROER TELAE

The board and each director should have
separate and independent access to the
issuer’s senior management to enable him to
make further enquiries for information other
than that was provided where necessary.
EXeREBUEFREETHEEETAR
REBASNELRERNET ERA
ERENERIMEE—FER-

The Company continues to supply the Board and the Board committees with adequate
information in a timely manner.

ARABETRENESEREZER B QERRHERENER

There are formal and informal contacts between the Board and the senior management
from time to time at Board meetings or other events.

EEENEEERARTHREZ SR NS AREARFEERNRR -

A73

All directors are entitled to have access

to board papers and related materials

to enable the board to make informed
decisions on matters placed before it.
Queries raised by directors should receive a
prompt and full response, if possible.
MAEESNEREMNES S RIEHE
M REZ e REES WA SHE
AR RBENRE SR E SR T AR
B WERARELLRREEAEE-

Board papers, minutes of meetings and related corporate documentation are made
available for inspection by all Directors.

BzeNit eRLSREBNARXHAHEBESEM-

All Directors are entitled to have access to the senior management who will respond to
queries raised by the Directors promptly.

2REEEUIRESEEEAR URBMALRDEESMRER-
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EER/ME

B. Remuneration of Directors and Senior Managementand EERFHEEABNFHERESETIH
Board Evaluation

B.1 The level and make-up of remuneration and disclosure ~ FFMi R ZEAI K ERARK
Principle EA
The issuer should disclose fts directors’ BIANBREBEAEZNEHERAMEZIEENFR  RR G IEHHEEGEH
remuneration policy and other BF U EARENE REBEZZHFENKR
remuneration related matters with formal
and transparent proceaure for setting policy
on EDs’ remuneration and all directors’
remuneration packages.

Corporate Governance Practices of the Company
Code Provisions Compliance (including any deviations and considered reasons)
SF AR XX &5 ANFZLEERER (ORENERRZRAR)

B.1.1 The remuneration committee should v/ The remuneration committee of the Company was established on 2 December 2004
consult the chairman and/or chief executive and is regulated by the terms of reference approved by the Board from time to time.
about their remuneration proposals for The terms of reference of the remuneration committee were revised during the year to
other EDs and have access to independent make in line with the recent amendments of the CG Code and the related Listing Rules
professional advice if necessary. effective on 1 January 2012 and 1 April 2012. The full text of the revised terms of
HMZ B e AN ENTMEEZ reference of the remuneration committee is available for viewing on the websites of the
ERER/FAHEEH RNEEE EA Company and the Stock Exchange.

SRBUZEER- ARAZEMEE R2004F 12287 WHEZ 4 ERTREL 2 B
BIFRE -REN FHME S MBS ED BT ARAR201241 A18 R2012F
B.1.2 The remuneration committee’s terms of v 4R1BRENZ CEBRTAREE LMRAINER  CETNEHHE S SRES

reference should include, as a minimum,
the prescribed specific duties.

HMZE e BiEREEE DB EMTH
ZRERE-

B2 2 XA A R R B TR E -

The terms of reference of the remuneration committee require, inter alias, the
remuneration committee comprises not less than 3 members with a majority of INEDs.
On 26 March 2012, Dr The Honourable CHEUNG Kin Tung Marvin ceased to be
member of the remuneration committee and the current members of the remuneration
committee are Mr CHA Mou Zing Victor, Dr CHENG Kar Shun Henry, Mr CHEUNG
Wing Lam Linus and Dr QIN Xiao with Dr CHENG takes a lead role as the chairman
thereof.

FMZEeBESERT (EPeR) FHEEgBE TP R=RESAK AP
ABAMENEBBE -M2012F3A268 RERBLIBEEREWEEEKE -
REFHMZESNKE AERM LA BREB LT RAREERZERL Hb
SR+ ATMEEETR EEFEAG.

The principal role and function of the remuneration committee is to exercise the powers
of the Board to review and determine the remuneration packages of individual EDs
and senior management, including salaries, bonuses, benefits in kind, share options
and other plans. Such factors as remuneration paid for comparable positions, time
commitment and responsibilities of the EDs and senior management as well as the
Company's remuneration policy will be considered.

FMEEQ T ERBRBEATRESSR UEERRAENAERSEE
BABZEMER BfEHe A4 EVHR BRERAMTE -FHEEEK
ERENERSEEBEABUELBRBUMGT 2HM MAE 2 BEREE MU
RARRZGHMBRER R
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B.1.3

Code Provisions
A

The remuneration committee should make
available its terms of reference, explaining
its roles and the authority delegated to it

by the board by including them on the
Stock Exchange’s website and the issuer’s
website.
FMZEeREMRARETARE LA
FARESE REAACKRESEER
THAES

The remuneration committee should

be provided with sufficient resources to
perform its duties.
ﬁ%ééﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁuﬁﬁﬁﬁ

e

Issuers should disclose details of any
remuneration payable to members of senior
management by band in their annual
reports.
FIAREEERNREMSRBESR
ERASHHEFE-

Compliance
B
v/

89

Corporate Governance Practices of the Company
(including any deviations and considered reasons)
ARAZEEERER (BRENRERERER)

During the year under review, no remuneration committee meeting was held but
there were three rounds electronic communication exchanges among the committee
members to review and approve proposals in respect of (a) internal guideline on ex-
gratia payment for senior executives; (b) 2011/2012 bonus proposal for the Company
including EDs and senior management; and (c) extension of the employment contract
of an ED. The records of the circulated electronic communication of the remuneration
committee during the year are duly set out in the below section headed “Attendances
of AGM, Board and Committee Megtings”.

REBEFEN FMESeWRERTER BETT ZASTRASHRIE
BHEEEREAERAES 2 AHES: (DEEHERBEERAS ZARA
01120125 E 2 A E  ROER—EHEZEEANH - NENFTHEEEE
FEABM AEFHIINTX [RREE ESERZEQBRAIHLFER| —R-

Directors’ remuneration (save for directors’ fees which are subject to shareholders’
approval at general meeting) is determined with reference to prevailing market
situation, their respective duties and responsibilities in the Group and the Group’s
remuneration policy. Under the terms of reference of the remuneration committee,

the remuneration committee should make recommendation to the Board on the

policy and it has the delegated responsibilities to determine the specific remuneration
package of the EDs and the senior management. The EDs are entitled to salary and
discretionary bonus which are subject to individual and the Company’s performance
and contribution to retirement scheme under each of their respective employment
contracts as an executive of the Company. The NEDs are entitled to a director’s fee for
their service which was determined by the Board, pursuant to the authority given by the
shareholders at general meeting from time to time, with reference to their duties and
responsibilities in the Company and the prevailing market situation. Currently, a sum of
HK$100,000 per annum being the basic fee for acting as a NED and additional fees of
HK$100,000 per annum will be paid to each member, who is NED, of each of the audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination committee of the Company.
ExMe (RESHERREAG LRAEN N2ZEMR RESXERASE
BERBE ARASEZHMRRMET - REFHEE S BREE HMZE
BEEMBENESZERIES TAREACETAERSBERAS 24
MFd - RERES BHERRRTHARMEENES S A KGR RE AR
ARARRMER META KRR EHS FRETUR ESHNEHESE
READARRTBRREAE LREZEN U2 ERRARR ZBBREEN
RBAIMAMERE RAXN TFHRE 2 EXNEAEF100,0008 7T MIEHEE
RADRIEREES HNZEGRREZECZEVENFENS (RBHEZE
€35) AEF100,0004 T

In general, the managing director, who is a member of the remuneration committee,

is involved in recommending proposals on the remuneration of other EDs for due
consideration and approval by the remuneration committee. However, he abstains
from voting when his remuneration is considered by the remuneration committee. His
remuneration is recommended by the chairman and reviewed and determined by the
remuneration committee. No Director will participate in the discussion and review of
his own remuneration. The remuneration committee can access to professional advice
if considered necessary. Remuneration details of the Directors and senior management
for the year ended 31 March 2012 are disclosed in note 12 to the consolidated
financial statements on pages 164 and 165.

—RiME EFLLR (KAKATMNZS N E ) g EthnE s M2 RR MR
FoRM REMESSZRANEH RURKERR -SSRLB/MEHLR
Be UTHFMZEeRNRET HESEN2EMRRENRESE 2 EM.
FMEE G NERRER ERECREXER -HZ2012F3A31RILFE 2 ES
M FERELI64E RELIOE 2 A M B REMFI2HE -
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EERRE

Accountability and Audit

MEREY

C.1

Financial reporting

M ER

C.l1

Principle

The board should present a balancead,
clear and comprehensible assessment of
the company’s performance, position and
prospects.

Code Provisions
SRl

Management should provide sufficient
explanation and information to the board to
enable it to make an informed assessment
of financial and other information put
before it for approval.
ERERNESSRERDNERLE
K REZ @A R RR G MMEN &
BREMER (LB RRNTE -

Compliance
&5
v/

B
EFRETE BHREENTELANZE BEXRAR -

Corporate Governance Practices of the Company
(including any deviations and considered reasons)

FRRZEEXERER (BRENRERREBER)

Directors are provided with sufficient explanation and Company's business and
financial information to support them in decision making.

EENEREANBENEBARAEB LY BNERAB REEIIAE

C.1.2

Management should provide all members
of the board with monthly updates giving a
balanced and understandable assessment
of the issuer's performance, position and
prospects in sufficient detail to enable

the board as a whole and each director to
discharge their duties under rule 3.08 and
Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules.
ERERGARNESENEREENE
R HHBRETANRER  BHHRK
AIRMDERSRERNTE AB R
REERET EMRAEIBERET=F
PR EMBE -

N/A
TR

The first monthly management update report has been sent to all Directors in May
2012.
BNEREEAENRECR012F5AXE2BES-

€.13

The directors should acknowledge in

the CG Report their responsibility for
preparing the accounts, and there should
be a statement by the auditors about their
reporting responsibilities in the auditors’
report on the financial statements.
EERECKELRETARMMBET
REMERE RERTELE B BRE
MBS R st MM B R E L
BH o

Unless it is inappropriate to assume that
the company will continue in business,

the directors should prepare the accounts
on a going concern basis, with supporting
assumptions or qualifications as necessary.
BRIERR R A S REL 2 XBIL e
2 A EEHRENREEALARE
REBER EZBRTE EHURRIR

=z
BER-

Where the directors are aware of material
uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the issuer’s ability to continue as a
going concern, they should be clearly and
prominently disclosed and discussed at
length in the CG Report.
EEEMEREATHASHABERThE
BREVERTABELENEN EF
RECEE ARG FEBERE LA
WL ETHABR R

Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the accounts for financial year
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and the Group and
of the results and cash flows of the Group for the year then ended.
EXRRERSAEANGENNEEGHEEY A THREARARARE S
RARASEHZZA LEFENEERRERE KA -

In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March

2012, the Directors have (a) selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently; (b) made judgments and estimations that are prudent and reasonable;
and (c) prepared accounts on the going concern basis. The Directors are not aware of
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
upon the Company's ability to continue as a going concern as referred to in this code
provision C.1.3. The statement of the Company's independent auditor about their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements of the Company for
the year ended 31 March 2012 is contained in the independent auditor’s report on
pages 107 and 108.

ERH012F3A3N B ILFRGRUBREE EFQERTRENEHBRLE
BER: OFHBERSENANMMES : RONFELENELERHRE - AR
FARNCI3ERM S  EF W EEREMNEATAREHABE AT ERETE
ARANBELER N - ARANBUREMR AL AIBE01243A31B LFE
GANBRRZARELERAHNEL7E RELBE MB U ZE MRS -
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Code Provisions Compliance (including any deviations and considered reasons)
AR ¥ ARAZEEERER (BRENRERERER)

C.14 The directors should include in the N/A Separate statement containing a discussion and analysis of the Group’s performance
separate statement containing a discussion TERA an explanation of the basis on which the Company generates or preserves value over
and analysis of the group’s performance the longer term and the strategy for delivering the Company's objectives is set out in
in the annual report, an explanation of the Managing Director's Report of this annual report in order to comply with this code
the basis on which the issuer generates provision C.1.4 effective on 1 April 2012.
or preserves value over the longer term BETFR2012F4A 1B REBZ ATRIBENC.LANBAE RAFRESLLBRE
(the business model) and the strategy for HEMREAEERBOTREST HARRAIRRELNREBEER ZBER
delivering the issuer's objectives. ERADEHEHRE -

EZREFRAFNRRONTEBRRNE
MAUGRA - BRABETAHRREESRE
BENER (EBEX) RERETAM
VB IZERR o
CHIS The board should present a balanced, clear / The Board endeavors to present a balanced, clear and understandable assessment of

and understandable assessment in annual
and interim reports, other price-sensitive
announcements and other financial
disclosures required by the Listing Rules. It
should also do so for reports to regulators
and information disclosed under statutory
requirements.
FHESEREFERERTHRSE A
o RIRESEE MRS RBE ET
RARTEATRENAMABERA A
RERRIEL TE EMRA HERA T
Foltsh EMEEMEEERINRE
£ RRBEDIRE RENERAELRE
B -

the Group’s position in all corporate communications.

EZ@RINMAARBATHAREMNIEL TE BH R HRNEROFE -
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TEERRE
.2 Internal controls nEEE
Principle B8

The board should ensure that the issuer
maintains sound and effective internal
controls to safeguard shareholders’
investment and the Issuer’s assets.

Code Provisions Compliance
FAHX B

The directors should at least annually v/
conduct a review of the effectiveness of the
issuers” and its subsidiaries” internal control
systems and report to shareholders that
they have done so in the CG report. The
review should cover all material controls,
including financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management
functions.
EZEZLBERA—RETAREM
BRANABERZGRTAR UER
EERREPRRRERD ETHE H
Ril-BRERNEAEMEEENEES
H SEMBEE EEEEREAER
KRB EEEE

EEORERETANNHERFARRERENAFH WRERZORERET
ABRE

Corporate Governance Practices of the Company
(including any deviations and considered reasons)

FRARAZERERER (AREMREREREE)

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound and effective system of internal
controls, which includes financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions. The Company has an internal audit department which is
responsible for performing independent reviews on the effectiveness of the Group’s
system of internal controls and reports audit findings to the audit committee and the
Board regularly.

EXQAFRAREZERCABERZS OFENE CERTEEARARER
g - ARRRANFEZHT ARBURAARENDEERG 2 e WE
B AR ASERNERZEERESZCESR

During the year, the internal audit department carried out reviews on (a) operation of
Bathroom & Kitchen Supplies Pty. Ltd., (b) upgrading of Fare Collection System, (c)
tendering operation in Discovery Bay Services Management Limited, (d) operation of
outsourced workers' logon to the intranet, (e) operation of The Sentosa Resort & Spa,
(f) security and interface setting of new HR software and control of HR document, (g)
tendering mechanism of continuing connected transactions and (h) other business
units with audit follow-up. With the implementation of follow-up measures after the
reviews, the effectiveness in area with irregularities gradually improves. Findings on the
reviews and the relevant recommendations had been presented to and accepted by
the audit committee in November 2011 and June 2012. The Company has adopted
an internal audit charter in 2008 to formulate the processes and procedures of internal
audit function for strengthening of the control framework.

RER - REPEZPIE 5t (a) Bathroom & Kitchen Supplies Pty. Ltd. 8% ; (b) Y
BESOAR: OWREREERER R AMRIEEE: (d) ShIT AR Intranet
#)IE{E : (e) The Sentosa Resort & Spaf)&1& : (f) FTHI A N &R E R HRZEHIA
HERXENREERAARE : (QIEHER HMRITEA : R(h)EthE 5
HEZREETR BEERIAETORERLR TE R B8 R3ERKN-
A AR REEEZER2011F11 A R2012F6ARNERE B G 2RI B HAE
o RARM200BFESRMNBEZRE  AHIFT R ERIN 8L BIE R F RN

EET R

The Board, through the work of the audit committee and the internal audit department,
has conducted an annual review on the effectiveness of the system of internal control
of the Company and its subsidiaries and considers that the Group's internal control
system for the year ended 31 March 2012 was effective and adequate.
EXCRRAERZ G RNHERLFINIE AN R RANE R RN e
EZEREETFERY EFeRAAEBHE2012F3A31AILFE 2 NHE
BERBEARRR

The board's annual review should v
in particular, consider the adequacy

of resources, staff qualifications and

experience, training programmes and

budget of the issuer's accounting and

financial reporting function.

ESeHFHTRAE ERRZEET

ANEE RUBERRE ATANER 8
TEARRER UREIFAEXMEIIR
EREBEERDRA-

The Board, through the audit committee, discusses the internal control system with
management to ensure that the management has performed its duty to have an
effective internal control system. This discussion includes the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function.

EZepAERE R AERENRNNEEAR UHREEEERTHRYE
MENBERZGNBE SO BEARANS TR BERBE A ENER 8
TEARNER UREIMERNEIREREERE M-
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c3 Audit committee ENZBY
Principle BA
The board should establish formal and EZRESIERIHESRASFERERINATHEFFEAZTACEATEES
transparent arrangements to consider BEEL IFEREBHENZH - IRE L TR B E R ARG MG
how it will apply financial reporting and EEE-
Internal control principles and maintain an
appropriate relationship with the issuer’s
auditors. The audit committee established
under the Listing Rules should have clear
ferms of reference.
Corporate Governance Practices of the Company
Code Provisions Compliance (including any deviations and considered reasons)
F AR &5¥ ANAZEEERER (ARENRERRERAR)

C3.1 Full minutes of audit committee meetings v/ Minutes of the audit committee meetings are kept by the company secretary as

should be kept by a duly appointed secretary of the audit committee.
secretary of the meeting. Draft and final ERZEC R LBMFABREEENE ZARNERE
versions of minutes of meetings should be
sent to all committee members for their Draft and final versions of minutes of the audit committee meetings are sent to all
comment and records, within a reasonable committee members for their comments and records within a reasonable time.
time after the meeting. ENE BB LB ARG RN ERERE A BREANEXTEREE
BRZEENTEEARBEREARE SRERMRFE.
VERWERT - BRLEN R R&KE
ERETEZR —RABREANTRER
ZERRBKE TREKEREER
REERELLEZR -

C3.2 A former partner of the issuer’s existing v/ During the year, the audit committee has been reformed to comprise three members
auditing firm should be prohibited from namely, Dr The Honourable CHEUNG Kin Tung Marvin, Mr CHEUNG Wing Lam Linus
acting as a member of its audit committee and Ms HO Pak Ching Loretta with Dr CHEUNG as the chairman of the committee.
for a period of 1 year from the date of his RER BRZESEENER BEEZ4KE PR AREREL RARLE
ceasing (whichever is the later): ezt AP RELREZECER-
BRABEEH BT ARE OB ARA
FEBAEUATHE (MARREEAE) None of the above audit committee members is a former partner of the external auditor.
BA—FN TREFRTAERZES FEERZEENEHIINEREMZAIERRA -

B E :

(a) to be a partner of the firm; or

(a) MARLERRZDAGHEANBE:

(b) to have any financial interest in the
firm.

(b) MTEZEZARMBHENRS-

(C3383) The audit committee’s terms of reference v/ The audit committee of the Company was established on 17 July 1998 and is regulated
should include at least the prescribed by the terms of reference approved by the Board from time to time. The terms of
specific duties. reference of the audit committee were revised during the year to make in line with
ERZEEVBREEAZVOEIHY the recent amendments of the CG Code and the related Listing Rules effective on 1
BEBE- January 2012 and 1 April 2012. The full text of the revised terms of reference of the

audit committee is available for viewing on the websites of the Company and the Stock

C34 The audit committee should make available v/ Exchange.

its terms of reference, explaining its role
and the authority delegated to it by the
board by including them on the Stock
Exchange’s website and the issuer's
website.

ERZE RN NP KRBT AR
FRRERREE REEARRERE
BRTHNEN-

ARRAERZEGRIBFTAITAKYL REFSHER IR ERZ BESER
RE-NER BZZBENBESED EARLAN201261 A1 M20129F4 A1
RRERZCEERTARER LTRANER SETNERZReREERL
B XAIAAR R RSP 5
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Corporate Governance Practices of the Company

Code Provisions Compliance (including any deviations and considered reasons)
F AR X ¥ ARAZEEERER (BRENRERERER)

G335 Where the board disagrees with the v/ The audit committee has recommended to the Board to re-appoint Deloitte Touche
audit committee’s view on the selection, Tohmatsu as the external auditor subject to shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming
appointment, resignation or dismissal of the AGM. The Board endorsed the audit committee’s recommendation on the re-
external auditors, the issuer should include appointment of the external auditor.
in the CG report a statement from the audit ENZEOREEE AR BERA ST ARDRIMNERHA - ZEHE
committee explaining its recommendation ERARABRENEERRFSHE - ESCERUBLRZEEEINERER 2
and also the reason(s) why the board has RBi#Ee
taken a different view.

NEFETREERZECHTE Z

£ BESBEMNERSMEENER
ETARECEEAREPIHEREZE
SRAERENER URESERHTRE
EROER-

C.3.6 The audit committee should be provided v/ The audit committee is entitled to seek independent professional advice, at the
with sufficient resources to perform its Company's expenses, if it considers necessary in order to perform its duties.
duties. ERZECARRERARETRENBHRBUEEER ERAARAIAE.
%ﬁééﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁuﬁﬁﬁﬁ
=

C3.7 The terms of reference of the audit v/ The principal role and function of the audit committee is to assist the Board in meeting

committee should also require it:

ERZESNBERETARE:

(a) to review arrangements employees
of the issuer can use, in confidence,
to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting,
internal control or other matters. The
audit committee should ensure that
proper arrangements are in place for
fair and independent investigation
of these matters and for appropriate
follow-up action; and

(@) RABTAREMNTRE:BITA
EE ARG BER REPEES
HivhE A AR EETAR
LT BREESRRREEER
B RETAHEEERELATE
VNMAERFEREZTE: &

(b) to act as the key representative body
for overseeing the issuer’s relations
with the external auditor.

() FERITARINEZEE 2 FMNFE
RE ARER_ZZANBE.

its responsibilities for ensuring an effective system of internal controls and compliance,
and in meeting its external financial reporting objectives.

BERZEE I ERBRBE AN ESZERTEARA R N EERTEH
EZBE REFHYNREMBZERN-

During the year, the audit committee held two meetings together with the senior
management and the independent auditor and had considered the independent
auditor's projected audit and non-audit services fees, their independence and the
nature and scope of the audit, reviewed and discussed the continuing connected
transactions and internal controls, the interim and final financial statements together
with the management's findings and responses and the independent auditor’s reviews
and reports before submission to the Board for approval. The attendance records of the
audit committee meetings held during the year are set out in the below section headed
“Attendances of AGM, Board and Committee Meetings”.

REN BREECUAREEEABRBYREMBIMAGHE UERBUK
PRz B RFERRE EAER EAhBUMREREEGE TRRER
E=eiER BHARIRFEAER S RADER FHR2EMBERE AR
EREERREENBULEM BERRRE -REN BEREEQQRLHE
ZHINTXRREE EXERZEGERLHER] R
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D. Delegation by the Board EZgRINER
D.1 Management functions BRI &
Principle EA
The issuer should have a formal schedule BN —IEAH BT 8 WL ER R EFLH ERPLHEREE
of matters specifically reserved to the board TELAE
and those to the management.
Corporate Governance Practices of the Company
Code Provisions Compliance (including any deviations and considered reasons)
F A& o ANRZEEERER (ARENREREBRER)

D.1.1 When the board delegates aspects of v/ The Board has set out level of authority and express terms of reference of the
its management and administration relevant Board committees and reserves the rights to oversee and decide all other
functions to management, it must, at the non-delegated matters, in particular, major acquisitions or disposals, and connected
same time, give clear directions as to the transactions.
management's powers, in particular, where ESeERNBESRECHEENARIR ARBEERE TREAENEE AT
management should report back and FAEEMARE/SELERFENBERHERBER S
obtain prior board approval before making
decisions or entering into any commitments The Board also delegates certain management and administration functions to the
on the issuer's behalf. management as it considers appropriate from time to time, with directions as to the
HEZSREEERIBYE S ERNEN powers of management including circumstances where management shall report to
ERTERER VARKREREMNE and obtain prior approval from the Board.

N TEMNES  FRREERER EZeNTRETEREERRAE ETERRITBMEE RERE ZENRME

MEFGERURERRETAELER el AREREANESEERRNGESES AR ELER

RERG LEMFEEAERGESZ S E

EZHAEC The Board may revisit such delegations as from time to time to ensure clear directions
and powers are given and proper reporting procedures are followed.

D.1.2 The issuer should formalize the functions v ESeRTRENTEABKE RRE TEHES REN  TETHEERRE

reserved to the board and those delegated [fe
to management and review those
arrangements periodically to ensure that
they remain appropriate to the issuer’s
need.
BIARABLRE TESSNRA R
LT T EIRERBMAL D RIHE R K
FEE BERA AR BRI A EITA
WEE-

D.1.3 The issuer should disclose the respective v/ During the year, written terms of references of the Board, Board committees and
responsibilities, accountabilities officers have been duly adopted by the Company. Apart from the terms of reference of
and contributions of the board and audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination committee, the Company
management. will consider to disclose other terms of reference on the Company's website.
BIAEREESCEERELANE RER ARREERRMESS ESEZERaEERAS  EAMESE-
B ARBNAHETARERELE REGZE® FHEESSRRAZECNBRESEE AARKEREADAINA
e AR EM A BESDE -

D.1.4 Directors should clearly understand v/ Once a NED consents to act as Director, a formal appointment letter will be issued to

delegation arrangements in place. Issuers
should have formal letters of appointment
for directors setting out the key terms and
conditions of their appointments.
EFREEBRERTOENER T %
TABBERANESZAE JHEBZ
ENEZ R RBE-

the relevant Director setting out the key terms and conditions of the appointment.
EFHERSHAES ZARESHER KPR AT ERTREHNIEER

2,

Directors clearly understand delegation arrangements through (a) the written terms

of reference of the Board and various executive committees and (b) the clearly
documented role and responsibilities of chairman, deputy chairman and managing
director, EDs and NEDs including INEDs.
EFRBQEFERENTZEENZEARELERDTR BERRESLL
;!; HBERENE (BREBE) MBKNEE 2 BRXE  BWRRENBRNT
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TEERRE
D.2 Board committees EZEETMZEE
Principle EA

Board committees should be formed with
specific written terms of reference which
deal clearly with the committees’ authority
and auties.

BERETAZ RN U BTEEAN N ERELE BEHINERSHENR
BE-

Corporate Governance Practices of the Company

Code Provisions Compliance (including any deviations and considered reasons)
FAREX BF ANAZEEERER (BRENREREEER)

D.2.1 Where board committees are established v/ The Board has set up the remuneration committee, audit committee, nomination
to deal with matters, the board should give committee (newly formed on 26 March 2012) and other executive committees namely,
them sufficiently clear terms of reference finance committee, investment/ divestment committee and repurchase/ reissue
to enable them to perform their functions of shares committee and all of them have duly adopted respective clear terms of
properly. reference. The Board will from time to time review the terms of reference of such
FERUEREERESE EECEAA committees and reform and renovate some of them to align with better corporate
HZEeRERNERNEESE FH governance standard. The composition of each Board committee will also be reviewed
EEEETRE and updated upon changes of personnel. Each of the Board committees is entitled

to seek independent professional advice, at the Company's expenses, if it considers

D.2.2 The terms of reference of board v/ necessary in order to perform its duties. The Board will from time to time on need basis
committees should require them to report pass resolutions to set up special executive committees with clear terms of reference to
back to the board on their decisions or deal with the business of the Company.
recommendations, unless there are legal or ESECRUIMNEE S BREES REZEE (R201243A26A 3K ) kA
regulatory restrictions on their ability to do HTEEE AR ANKEES RE HEZEERRNER BEIZES:
50 (such as restriction on disclosure due to EZESD A RMERRNBEEE -ESe TRENRERE e BEER
regulatory requirements). WHEREITEFETHR F2HAEECER AR - SEZZ 88 ZAMKIT
EXRE TS ZEeNBEBERATZ BEASEDMERN REN EFEREEGHERARRRBTREMBHK
EZEENERCRRHATIER BUBEER BRAAAAAE EXREREMRBARZRKMEHE
BREZSZEEEENEERAFARM BESE BINTZES URBADA 2 £
A1 I 3R (19140 B B2 48 7 1 R 6 488
K

D.3 Corporate Governance Functions EEE R

Corporate Governance Practices of the Company
Code Provisions Compliance (including any deviations and considered reasons)
F AR &F ANAZEEERER (BRENRERRERAR)

D.3.1 The terms of reference of the board (or a v/ The corporate governance functions are assumed by the Board and the specific duties
committee or committees performing this prescribed by this code provision are included in the written terms of reference of the
function) should include at least prescribed Board.
specific duties. CEREREHRETSRE KTUEETHABRECAERESSNEAR
E2e (BTUHRENZES) OBHE EHER-

HERZDOETACEERE
D.3.2 The board should be responsible for v/ The Board, with the support of the company secretary, is performing the corporate

performing the corporate governance duties
set out in the terms of reference in D.3.1
or it may delegate the responsibility to a
committee or committees.
EZ2RARRETDIIEBEGEREMN
PEERBE MAKEERET—{E%
SEZEg-

governance duties as set out in this code provision D.3.1 and safe guard the relevant
policies and practices which are being enforced properly.
EZeNRANENBRE T ERTATARXDIIMHNCXERBE  TRR
HRNERNEREE BT
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E. Communication with Shareholders HERERKEE

E.l Effective communication BHERE
Principle EA
The board should be responsible for EESEREARFRERIE -
maintaining an on-going dlialogue with
Shareholders.

Corporate Governance Practices of the Company
Code Provisions Compliance (including any deviations and considered reasons)
F A& o ANRZEEERER (ARENREREBRER)

E.1.1 Issuers should avoid “bundling” resolutions v/ A separate resolution has been and will continue to be proposed on each substantially
unless they are interdependent and linked separate matter at a general meeting.
forming one significant proposal. ARAERBRERRREREEERBY 2 SEARNREAER
BITAEEE B RSR RIEFHER
ERZAREREREE SRRAK—
HERES

E.1.2 The chairmen of the board and board X At the AGM of the Company held on 8 September 2011, Mr CHA Mou Sing Payson,
committees shall attend the AGM to be who is the chairman of the Board and Dr CHENG Kar Shun Henry, who is the
available to answer questions thereat. chairman of remuneration committee and once was the chairman of audit committee,
The chairman of the independent board were unable to attend. However, Mr CHA Mou Zing Victor, the deputy chairman and
committee (if any) should also be available managing director of the Company, took the chair of that meeting and one member
to answer questions at any general meeting of the audit committee and one member of the remuneration committee were present
to approve a connected transaction or any thereat to be available to answer any question.
other transaction that requires independent ARREECIREMB AR A N TN E e RERERZ BT RERMA
shareholders' approval. R HRAATN011FIBSE B2 REFE AT A ARNEEREE
EZeIRRESRETNZECIRE FRESLEESRREAEIZRREG L IR NERZEERFMEEEY
HERRFEUERRE S FEERM- F—2KELRRRFE AREEMRRE-
ESRETHNBVEES (WE)NERE
MEEEMBEA TR ZRRRAE LE There is no transaction during the financial year ended 31 March 2012 requiring
BB BRER SR EMEMELEY independent shareholders' approval.
RRBENZ S o R2012F3A31R LM F R BEEARHTEBUREIE -
Management should ensure the external The external auditor, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, attended the AGM of the Company
auditor attend the AGM to answer held on 8 September 2011 to answer questions about the conduct of the audit, the
questions. preparation and content of the auditor's report, the accounting policies and auditor's
EEERERINEREMLBEREF SN independence.
B & 1R o INEREEZES e BER T B RAITE HEARAR2011FIABRRIT L RRFE

UBIEEBAEN TIE RHREMREREINT BRI REZHRE L
}—EFS] °

E.1.3 The issuer should arrange for the notice to v/ The Company's notice for the 2011 AGM convened on 8 September 2011 was sent out
shareholders to be sent for AGM at least 20 to the shareholders on 18 July 2011, more than 20 clear business days in advance.
clear business days before the meeting and There was no other general meeting held in the year under review.
to be sent at least 10 clear business days ARARIR2011F9A8B B 22011 EF S AECN201167A18A « e ZHE1T
for all other general meetings. AZR0EEEAAXERE -REBFEAN  WEFRTEMRREAS
RRREEME BOTARTHEASE
TRZED R20EEERRRREZX B
MAfAEMRRAGMS MAEAE
BONESRIOEEEREXBA-

E.1.4 The board should establish a shareholders’ v/ In March 2012, the Board has adopted a shareholders” communication policy. The

communication policy and review it on a
regular basis to ensure its effectiveness.
EFeRHERRBABER 1 EHRE
AR EL B o

policy is subject to review on a regular basis to ensure its effectiveness.
2012937 EF SR RMRRBBICK - ZHF BT HE LR ABRREEH
o
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EERME
E.2 Voting by poll DY EW 33
Principle EA

The Issuer should ensure that shareholders
are familiar with the detailed procedures for

AR AEERREATARE D A TH RN HAES

conducting a poll.
Corporate Governance Practices of the Company
Code Provisions Compliance (including any deviations and considered reasons)
F AR XX a5 ANFZEEERER (ARENRERRERAR)

E.2.1 The chairman of a meeting should v/ Procedures for conducting a poll were properly explained to all shareholders at the
ensure that an explanation is provided of AGM held on 8 September 2011.
the detailed procedures for conducting R2011F9ABRBRITHRRF S LEMABRR IR E HBRETRERRNER -
a poll and answer any questions from
shareholders on voting by poll.

AEERERRESE FRRRERUR
SHRETRANFART  WEERR
BEARER ARARSEMRR -

F. Company Secretary NAE
Principle EA
The company secretary is to support the RN EETLZREECURREZSHE L AIEANR TR W REBEESHK
board by ensuring good information flow EREF HRBEBEBSBEER UiTBARNEECEHE R ERTAER
within the board and that board policy VEHEFHABEIREZER
and procedures are followed and is
responsible for advising the board through
the chairman and/or the chief executive
on governance matters and should also
facilitate induction and professional
development of directors.

Corporate Governance Practices of the Company
Code Provisions Compliance (including any deviations and considered reasons)
F AR o5y ARRAZEEERER (BRENRERERER)

ESIWI! The company secretary should be an v/ The company secretary is Ms MAK Sau Ching, who is an employee of the Company

employee of the issuer and have day-to- and has day to day knowledge of the Company. She is well aware of the requirement
day knowledge of issuer’s affairs. Where an under rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules and has been complying and will continue to
issuer engages an external service provider comply with such requirement for the year ending 31 March 2013 and report regularly.
as its company secretary, it should disclose AARERRRAEEBEFELT RHARAN AR SHEMAE  MEF LD
the identity of a person with sufficient A3 20K WE BT RAER2013F3A3N AL REEHBETEENR
seniority at the issuer whom the external E REBER-
provider can contact.
RRMERRETANES HETAN
BEEHEMRH BT AEIMERBH
BEEARAWE EREEAD—GAH
FZINERIS R R B = AL A T8 &
e

F.1.2 The board should approve the selection, v/ The selection, appointment or dismissal of the company secretary are approved by the
appointment or dismissal of the company Board.
secretary. NEMENERE RIRBEEYMESESE-

REMENRE ZEIREREHES
Rk

F.1.3 The company secretary should report to the v/ The company secretary reports to the chairman on Board/Board committee matters
board chairman and/or the chief executive. and to the deputy chairman and managing director on administrative matters of the
ARNERRESCER K/ RITHREH Company.

B - ARNERTREREHESE EZCZ 8@ FHRNEITERESZALRE
EREAARNRAETHER
F1.4 All directors should have access to the v/ Directors have direct access to the advice and services of the company secretary for

advice and services of the company
secretary to ensure that board procedures,
and all applicable law, rules and
regulations, are followed.
FEESEINEARNENERNZA
twE RS ARREZSRF LAMEER
EE RAIRAOILEGET.

on-going discharge of their duties and responsibilities.

EERBERTHRARES HUERRAARNE NRGEERRRS-
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Attendances of AGM, Board and
Committee Meetings

Directors’ attendances in the AGM held on 8 September 2011
and the meetings of the Board, audit committee, remuneration
committee and nomination committee held during the year

99

BOAEST - SR B 6
e i

REBFEAN 2011F9A8R BT 2 RE
FELREZS ERLREQ FMHZES
FIRZREEEFEHRCESHFERHI W

under review are set out below: I
Remuneration AGM
Committee (held on
Audit Meeting/ Nomination 8 September
Committee Circulated Committee 2011)
Board Meeting  Communications Meeting ¢ 201149A8H
Name of Director Meeting EKEEE HMEES REEEE 87z
EEEE EEA-A-F gH  gH/EHEAR g5 BEEY
The Honourable Ronald Joseph EFEZE! 4/6 212 - - v
ARCULLI !
Mr CHA Mou Sing Payson® BHE L 6/6 - - N/ATN3E A X
Mr CHA Mou Zing Victor * Y 6/6 - 3/3~ - v
Mr CHA Mou Daid Johnson ERELE 6/6 - - - X
Mr CHA Yiu Chung Benjamin ERPEE 6/6 - - - v
Dr CHENG Kar Shun Henry ! BREIF ! 1/6 12 3/3~ - X
Dr The Honourable CHEUNG Kin RERBL 2 6/6 212 3/3~ N/AT 38 X
Tung Marvin *@?2
Mr CHEUNG Tseung Ming REWLE 4/6 - - - X
Mr CHEUNG Wing Lam Linus *# SRR A 5/6 172 33~ - X
Mr CHUNG Sam Tin Abraham BOHELE 6/6 - - v/
Ms HO Pak Ching Loretta *@ g gz Lo 6/6 - - N/AT 38 v
Dr QIN Xiao #@1 REEE Lol 4/6 1/2 3/3~ N/A 8 A X
Mr TANG Moon Wah HmELsE 6/6 - - - v
Ms WONG CHA May Lung Madeline T&XEER+ 4/6 - - - X
* members of audit committee * BEZLZEENE
# members of remuneration committee # FWEZEEKE
e members of nomination committee e RELZEEKE
. nomination committee was newly set up on 26 March 2012 and . IRBZEB@R2012F3 268 # A » &

no meeting was held during the year ended 31 March 2012
! ceased as a member of audit committee on 26 March 2012
2 ceased as a member of remuneration committee on 26 March 2

2012

~ comprising 3 rounds of circulated communications and no

meeting was held

ZE20123A31HILFERNIIELRITEH
! R201263 26 B NRIEEEZEZESNE
R201263 A26 B THIEEHFMEE K E

~  BROIREHBALREETEHE
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Auditor’s Remuneration

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu is the independent auditor of the
Company. The remuneration for audit services provided by
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu to the Group for the year under
review was estimated at HK$7.9 million (2011 (actual):
HK$7.6 million). In addition to the audit fee, the Company had
appointed Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu for the interim results
review and the other non-audit services particularly for tax
compliance which amounted to approximately HK$2.9 million
(2011 (actual): HK$3.5 million) for the year under review.

Shareholders’ Rights

Pursuant to article 72 of the Articles, apart from being
convened by the Directors, extraordinary general meetings
shall also be convened on the written requisition of any two
shareholders of the Company representing not less than 5%
of the issued share capital of the Company at the time of
requisition. Shareholders wishing to do so must serve a duly
executed written requisition to the Company’s principal place
of business in Hong Kong at 23/F, China Merchants Tower,
Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong
Kong (the “Principal Place of Business”) specifying the objects
of the meeting. If the Directors do not within 21 days from

the date of deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene
the meeting, those shareholders themselves may convene the
general meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible,

as that in which meetings may be convened by the Directors,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by those shareholders
as a result of the failure of the Directors shall be reimbursed to
them by the Company.

A% B T <

R eWER T GFEITAARRZEL
THE - REBEFER B HERT S
AHERTTRHE T AR E 2B R 22
SR79BEB T (20114 (BK) 768
BET) BREZEAI ARBNEESF
B K298 8B T (20114 (EK) : 35
BEBTL) ZERY R GFTEITTIR
HPHRAFAREMIFRRRS L5
T8 75 FR e

i SHE A

RIEA QB ZRMAE721E  BREFHIK
CHRAIM AR EEERF AR
ZREBRRREEITRAT DRE%HI IR
ZEMERMAR ZMBREAERED
EXREDAFEERE-EEERKEH
BRERENAGZEER BLEEENER
EERBHEENAEENEERAAT
ERTBLEME it AT ETHED
168-2005% 1= LR B AE231E ([
TEEMB|) HAREERENRBRRE
M EskixiE QBRI RAENETAEF
BRERAE AZMEEREHIHENRE
AETAMRRS (BERAEEAESRE
FMRRERAAER) - AR RZBREZ
ERFALMSIBN—IEEER-
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In addition, any shareholder acting on his own or together with
other persons whose shareholding interests in the Company

in aggregate represent not less than 5% of the issued share
capital of the Company (other than the person to be proposed)
may nominate a person to stand for election as a director at
general meeting in accordance with article 120 of the Articles.
Any shareholder wishing to do so must serve (i) a written
notice of intention to propose such person for election as a
director; (ii) a notice executed by that person of his willingness
to be elected; and (iii) the information of that person as
required to be disclosed under rule 13.51(2) of the Listing
Rules to the Principal Place of Business between the period
commencing from the date after the dispatch of the notice of
the general meeting appointed for such election and end on
(and exclude) the date that is 7 days prior to the date of such
general meeting. The Company shall issue an announcement
and/or a supplementary circular, if applicable, to inform

the shareholders the biographical details of the candidate
proposed if a valid notice to propose a person to stand for
election as a director is received.

Investor Relations

A printed copy of the memorandum and articles of association
of the Company has been published on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

There has been no change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 March 2012.
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BE REAXBERMAFE1200F £
PRERINAE A Bk B E A A T HEHA
RRFDBITRADTDRE%E (KERS
ZALERIN) - HEERE — R AT REERK
G LERES - HAFEMFLIER 2R
BRARBRASBREREZHEEER
EERTEHN7/R (TEEERER) L
RETNEXHRNRRARZEFBETRERM
HOREREZALTBEREZZEEE
FAMNE: (MHZALTRERTREEE
ZBAE  R(iDRE LT RAIE13.51(2)
GHREATERBEZABIZALZER fH
WRIEMERELBRRER - BALEE
EZZAREANE KRR HEHAE R
SHBFBE ER - AMNERRBEHES
BAZBEEFTB

BoE A B AR

RRBIEBERRAM K& ERADRE ENR A
B TS AR 2 7] N Bt 2 BT e A8 s

20123 A31HIEFE - AAFMNEFEEX
HIR BB -
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Financial Highlights

BT 2

2012 2011
For the year ended 31 March B E3A31BLEE HK$'M HK$'M
Results EF BEET B&BTT
Turnover - 1,664.1 1,800.7
Profit attributable to owners of ZAY/NSIE? Y DN w
the Company 747.2 1,647.9
Dividends paid (=31 e 148.5 256.5
Earnings per share (HK cent) BRRAZF CBW) 55 122
At 31 March ®m3A31H HK$'M HK$'M
Financial Position MR BEET BEET
Total assets EESE 23,180.5 21,333.9
Total liabilities BEBE 7,364.1 6,457.1
Equity attributable to owners RARHA ANEGER
of the Company 14,495.8 13,571.7
Net asset value per share (HK$) EREEFE(ET) 10.7 10.1

Net Asset Value Per Share (HK$)

HRE EFE (BT)

12

10

2008

2009

2010

2011

2012
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Shareholders’ Funds

As at 31 March 2012, the shareholders’ funds of the Group
increased by HK$924.1 million to HK$14,495.8 million (2011:
HK$13,571.7 million). The increase was mainly due to an
upward fair value revaluation of investment properties, disposal
of certain investment properties and profit contribution from
operating units. The overall gross profit margin for the Group
was 28.2% (2011: 28.5%).

Major Cash Flows to/from Investing
Activities

During the financial year, the Group continued to capitalise one
of its major development projects located in Jingan, Shanghai,

the PRC, in which the Group holds 50% equity interest, for
HK$345.0 million.

The Group invested HK$177.0 million in a property
development project in Thailand, in which the Group has a
49% interest. In Hong Kong, the Group acquired a piece of
land in Sai Kung at a total consideration of HK$55.0 million.
In the United Kingdom, the Group acquired a piece of land
together with manufacturing plant and machinery at HK$67.0
million.

In addition, project companies under the Tung Chung project,
in which the Group has 31% interest, repaid HK$39.7 million
shareholders’ loan to the Group during the year.

Major Cash Flows from Operating
Activities

During the year, receipt of deposits in connection with the
sales of residential units located in The Sukhothai Residences

in Bangkok, Thailand contributed approximately HK$15.0
million cash to the Group.
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During the year, a piece of land in the PRC and an investment
property in Hong Kong was sold. The respective sales brought
HK$93.1 million and HK$615.0 million cash to the Group.

The Group also disposed of certain residential investment
properties located in Hong Kong and Shanghai, the PRC that
contributed a total of HK$37.6 million cash to the Group.

All the investment properties of the Group generated
approximately HK$214.0 million operating cash during the
year.

Financial Liquidity

As at 31 March 2012, the Group had total cash and securities
investment of HK$2,927.7 million (2011: HK$2,590.4 million)
whilst total bank borrowings and other loans were HK$4,412.8
million (2011: HK$3,523.1 million). The major changes

in bank borrowings and other loans were reflected in the
capitalisation of certain development projects and acquisitions
located in the PRC, Hong Kong, Thailand and the United
Kingdom.

Gearing

The Group’s gearing ratio maintained at a low level of 12.3%
(2011: 8.4%) as calculated by the Group’s consolidated net
borrowings to the shareholders’ funds as at 31 March 2012.

Banking Facilities

As at 31 March 2012, the Group had adequate internal cash
and banking facilities, both secured and unsecured, to finance
its development projects and operations. As at 31 March
2012, the unutilised credit facilities stood at approximately
HK$2,207.5 million (2011: HK$3,420.3 million).
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The maturity profile of bank borrowings and other loans were
84.0% (2011: 43.2%) falling within one year, 4.9% (2011:
47.7%) falling between one to two years, and 11.1% (2011:
9.1%) falling between two and five years as at 31 March 2012.

Treasury Policy

The Group has centralised treasury functions and adopted

a conservative approach for its treasury management. With
majority of assets and liabilities denominated in HK dollars
and US dollars, the Group has limited exposure to foreign
currencies. To manage foreign currency exposure in certain
investments overseas, the Group has maintained naturally
hedged positions and made currency swap arrangements as
appropriate. The Group’s banking facilities are principally on
floating rate basis and interest rate swaps will be employed
to manage interest rate risk for its short to medium term
borrowings when appropriate and necessary.

It is the policy of the Group to restrict the use of financial
derivatives for speculative purpose.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 March 2012, certain subsidiaries of the Group had
pledged property, plant and equipment with a carrying value of
HK$3.7 million (2011: HK$9.2 million) and bank deposits of
HK$3.1 million (2011: HK$2.9 million) respectively to secure
banking facilities granted to that certain subsidiaries.

In addition, a fixed and floating charge was created over the
assets and undertaking of one of the Group’s subsidiaries (total
asset value as at 31 March 2012 was HK$72.9 million (2011:
HK$82.3 million)) to secure banking facility granted to that
particular subsidiary.
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Certain subsidiaries of the Group had subordinated the inter-
company debts due from two subsidiaries in the total amount
of HK$666.8 million as at 31 March 2012 (2011: HK$506.7

million) to secure banking facilities granted to that particular

two subsidiaries.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group’s contingent liabilities relating to a corporate
guarantee given, to the extent of the Group’s proportionate
share, in respect of a banking facility granted to an investee
company, increased by HK$6.1 million to HK$166.5 million as
at 31 March 2012 (2011: HK$160.4 million).

Saved as the aforesaid disclosure, the Group did not have
other contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2012.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Deloitte.
BED

TO THE MEMBERS OF HKR INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
ERAEXBBRERRRAA

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of HKR
International Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages

109 to 233, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 March 2012, and the consolidated
income statement, consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
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Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,

the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31
March 2012 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
EE e FEMRS GRHERIT
Certified Public Accountants
HEEFE

Hong Kong, 20 June 2012
&5 20126 A20H

RITETEERBIANRE RRITERZIA
FEREGRAMBRRESTFAEMNE
K58 RR PR At o

B RITIE P AEEUE B & B IS R
RATEBUE LB BEE MM EZEE - PTiX
FA VAR Fr BIOR 0 A2 SRR B9 ) 7 - B 1T E
BARMFFERMEY R A M B MRFE
EXERRAANER - £ HEZFRRE
@%%A%Fﬁﬁ%“ﬂ%%§%ﬁﬁ
RPHERE SRR AN RS - L
HEEENEZERF BXFHQ TW%
EHI B MERRER - BRI BEFGE
FrEf A2 @t RS E M REFAEDN

GG AEN  ARFHERS BB
%mﬁﬁiﬂﬁi

RITHE RFIFAER m%ﬁ%%%ﬁi
MEE W SAITHEZE RIRHE

=97

KRITRA HREMNBRECBRET YK

%S Jﬁfﬁﬁ N F bR B B & ERR2012

FIA MBI EM AR EEEHE%ZA

iifﬁﬁm%'ﬁﬂfﬁimi WEILREE
AP BBEREZ ARE -



BREEEXBEBREEARAR 2011/2012 F;

109

Consolidated Income Statement
e W

For the year ended 31 March 2012 #HZE201243A31HIEFE

2012 2011
NOTES HK$'M HK$'M
Bt T BEET BEAETT
Turnover B 5 1,664.1 1,800.7
Cost of sales 5 & A (1,195.0) (1,287.7)
Gross profit E A 469.1 513.0
Other income HlA 6 120.9 94.1
Administrative expenses TERAX (440.0) (431.8)
Other gains and losses H bl & B8 7 41.2 94.3
Change in fair value of REMERATEEE
investment properties
Realised gains on disposals HERZBEER NS 11, 15 252.8 640.2
Unrealised gains REI] 2 W 11, 15 375.4 750.8
Finance costs WBER 8 (63.2) (42.2)
Share of results of associates DAGEE N A EE 18 90.8 150.1
Share of results of jointly controlled 2315 F£ B2 %I B B2 248
entities 19 69.9 79.3
Profit before taxation B A BT % A 9 916.9 1,847.8
Taxation I8 10 (61.2) (63.9)
Profit for the year REEm 855.7 1,783.9
Attributable to: T e -
Owners of the Company ZIN/NSIEZ RN 11 747.2 1,647.9
Non-controlling interests FEVE R 108.5 136.0
855.7 1,783.9
Earnings per share FRAEH 14
— Basic (HK cent) — B (A 55 122

— Diluted (HK cent) —#5E OBL) N/A FiE B 122
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

re 2 HWE R

For the year ended 31 March 2012 #ZE201243A31H L5 E

2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEATT
Profit for the year RE 855.7 1,783.9
Other comprehensive income (expense): E 2 mEUE (FAX) :
Exchange differences arising from MERINEREE 2
translation of foreign operations bE =58 40.5 228.3
Share of exchange reserve of associates D {HE#E &L N 7 2 [E X FE & 1.4 0.8
Share of exchange reserve of DMERREHIERE 2
jointly controlled entities PE W 215.6 207.2
Available-for-sale financial assets: AHHESREE:
Fair value changes during the year FARFEED (7.3) (19.1)
Reclassified to profit or loss HEREFVPERER
upon disposal - (9.2)
Deferred tax arising from NEEEELE
fair value changes IR IR (0.2) (0.4)
Other comprehensive income AEEHMEE WK =
for the year (net of tax) (MBRFIER) 250.0 407.6
Total comprehensive income for the year — ZN4FJE & m Uizt 42 58 1,105.7 2,191.5
Total comprehensive income attributable to: T I {5 2 E Uk 25 42 %8
Owners of the Company PIN/NETE Z =N 996.6 2,043.9
Non-controlling interests e AR A 2 109.1 147.6
1,105.7 2,191.5
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
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N M /\jﬂvﬂ%)l:iji ;H/%%

At 31 March 2012 201243 H31H

2012 2011
NOTES HK$'M HK$'M
B 5T BEET BEATT
Non-current assets EMBEE
Investment properties KEYE 15 6,135.2 6,133.1
Property, plant and equipment e 16 2,642.3 2,460.1
Prepaid lease payments TENBEER R 17 29.7 35.8
Interests in associates iR lN ol e 18 535.7 514.1
Interests in jointly controlled HEEHIE
entities WE 19 6,845.9 6,011.2
Amount due from an associate JE B 2 N B 3R I8 18, 25 122.5 104.2
Held-to-maturity investments FEEHEE 20 83.9 84.2
Available-for-sale financial assets ~ At HE SR EE 20 53.1 60.6
Other assets Hith & & 21 125.6 129.4
Deferred tax assets EEFIEEE 27 5.5 7.6
16,579.4 15,540.3
Current assets BN A E
Inventories FE 22 145.8 160.7
Properties held for sale RIELEME 717.8 17.5
Trade receivables FEUWE ZER R 23 82.1 110.8
Deposits, prepayments e TENKIE
and other financial assets NEMEREE 25 186.9 180.4
Properties held for/under BELEZBE
development for sale BRERPYE 24 2,546.0 2,727.4
Amounts due from associates JiE ST Bgs 2 B 5K I8 18, 25 59.0 91.1
Amounts due from jointly & LA £ [R] 428 1) B B 3 TE
controlled entities 25 58.0 36.3
Taxation recoverable AR B 7 3K 14.8 23.8
Held-to-maturity investments BFEIHEE 20 158.8 62.6
Financial assets at fair value ERFEFABRZ
through profit or loss SREE 20 - 0.2
Pledged bank deposits EHEFIRITFER 25 3.1 2.9
Bank balances and cash IRTTEHRERE 25, 35 2,628.8 2,379.9
6,601.1 5,793.6
Current liabilities mBEE
Trade payables, provision and FERHE SRR B
accrued charges NIEETE R 26 777.4 919.8
Deposits received and other Bz e kH A
financial liabilities TRBaE 30 609.2 621.2
Amount due to an associate JE 1B 8 A B R IE 30 23.0 55
Taxation payable FESFR IR 54.6 58.6
Bank and other loans due within ~ —F AR H 2 R17 &
one year HER 28 3,704.9 1,521.1
Other liabilities due within one year —F R 2|7 H i B & 29 14.9 6.3
5,184.0 3,132.5
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A M IEARR R
At 31 March 2012 #201243A31H

2012 2011
NOTES HK$'M HK$'M
B 5T BEAET BEAT
Net current assets MENE EFE 1,417.1 2,661.1
Total assets less current liabilities @& EF B EE 17,996.5 18,201.4
Non-current liabilities EREaE
Bank and other loans due —F BRI ZIETR
after one year Hin B 28 707.9 2,002.0
Other liabilities due after one year —42F|H Y BB (& 29 1,315.7 1,177.9
Deferred tax liabilities ELERHIEAE 27 156.5 144.7
2,180.1 3,324.6
15,816.4 14,876.8
Capital and reserves BEARR B
Share capital N 31 337.5 337.5
Reserves EE 14,158.3 13,234.2
Equity attributable to owners of KABIES AE(ERER
the Company 14,495.8 13,571.7
Non-controlling interests FE 72 AR 2 1,320.6 1,305.1
15,816.4 14,876.8
The consolidated financial statements on pages 109 to 233 F109E ZEFE2BE MG SV BHRERE
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of KEEGN20129F6 A208 #t/# R IEHET)
Directors on 20 June 2012 and are signed on its behalf by: B -UWAHTINESKEEE:
CHA Mou Zing Victor CHUNG Sam Tin Abraham
Deputy Chairman & Managing Director Executive Director
Bl F EFE FABATE HITEE

BN &0 M
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GARREHRE

For the year ended 31 March 2012 #HZ=201243A31HIEFE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

FAAREAER
Investment
property Asset  Investment Capital Non-
Share Accumulated revaluation General Share revaluation revaluation Distributable  Exchange redemption controlling
capital profits reserve reserve  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve Total interests Total
REME HEEfR REER THIER EAME iR

BE  BHER  EfRE TERE RHEE L1 e Hh ERBRE L1 At B &t
HK$'M HKSM HK$M HK$'M HKSM HKSM HKSM HK$ M HKSM HK$M HK$'M HKSM HK$M
BEET RBEET BEAT BEET BEAL BEET BEARL BEET ABSET BEET BEET BEAT BEET

(notea)  (note b) (note ¢) (note d)

(ika)  (Fiztb) (Bste) (FizEd)
At 1 April 2010 #201054A1R 3375 72215 14048 783 15379 1321 584 450.7 560.0 31 11,7843 11575 129418
Profit for the year TERET - 16479 = = = = = = = - 16479 1360 17839

Exchange differences arising from #EENEBELZ
translation of foreign operations ~ [E X EE - - - - - - - - 216.7 - 216.7 116 2283
Share of exchange reserve of MEBEDRIZER B

associates

- - = = - - - - 08 - 08 = 08

Share of exchange reserve of AEHREHEEZ
jointly controlled entities (note &) [ 3 4 f& (it ke ) - - - - - - - - 2072 - 2072 - 2072
Fair value changes on available- Al ESREE L

for-sale financial assets

RYEED = = = = = = (19.) = = = (19.0) = (190)

Reclassified to profitor loss upon & A ¢ i S R A RS

disposal of avalable-for-sale v iy

financial assets = = = = = = 9.2) = = - 92) - 92
Deferred tax arising from fair value /1 ESRBEENT(E

changes on available-for-sale BYHFEL 2 ELHE

financial assets - - - - = = (04) = = = (04) = (04)
Total comprehensive income T2 ENE (FX) 8%

(expense) for the year - 16479 - - - - (287) - 4247 - 2,0439 1476 21915
Transfer to investment property ~ FRAKEBATEFRE

revaluation reserve relating to HRERENESHEHE

unrealised net fair value gain (PHZELL)

during the year (Note 11(i)) - (810.4) 8104 - - - - - = = = = =
Transfer from investment property  §AEEBATFEFHEER

revaluation reserve relating to BRANEBHGEE

et fair value loss realised (PHEFLLG)

during the year (Note 11(ii)) - (126.5) 1265 - - - - - = = = = =
Dividends paid RS = (256.5) = = = = = = = = (256.5) = (256.5)
Transfer upon disposal of HEWBARNER

a subsidiary - 658.3 - (783) = (129.3) = (450.7) = = = = =

At 31 March 2011

R201143A31H 3875 8343 23417 - 15379 28 27 = 9847 31 135717 13051 148768
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
maEnEEREK
For the year ended 31 March 2012 #ZE201243A31H ItEE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

FATREAER
Investment
property Asset  Investment Capital Non-
Share  Accumulated  revaluation Share  revaluation  revaluation  Exchange  redemption controlling
capital profits reseve - premium reserve reserve reserve reserve Total interests Total
hEnE BEEf  HEEH EXER ER
Bx  REH  EhEE  RHEE L BE  EnbE L @it (354 Foe
HKS'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M
BE#T AEST  BEAn  EBER  BEEn  EEAT  BESn  AEET  AERR REEn EEER
(note a) (note d)
(H&ta) (Hgd)
At 1 April 2011 HR201F4A1R 3375 8333 23417 15379 28 27 984.7 31 135717 13051 14,8768
Profit for the year TEERF - 7472 - - - - - - 7412 108.5 855.7
Exchange differences arising from BERNEREL B ER
translation of foreign operations - - - - - - 39.9 - 39.9 0.6 40.5
Share of exchange reserve of associates D EBEATZERER - - - - - - 14 - 14 - 14
Share of exchange reserve of MEARBHERZERERE
jointly controlled entites (note e) (Hite) - - - - - - 2156 - 2156 - 2156
Fair value changes on avallable- IRECRER/ATERD
for-sale financial assets - - - - - (73 N - (73 - (73)
Deferred tax arsing from fairvalue T HELREEATEEY
changes on available-for-sale FEEZERLHE
financial assets - - - - - 02 - - (0.2) - (0.2)
Total comprehensive income TEE2ENE (R 48
(expense) for the year - 741.2 - - - (7.5) 256.9 - 996.6 109.1 1,105.7
Transfer to investment property FRRERATEFIEERE
revaluation reserve relating to TEMEERE (M)
unrealised net fair value gain
during the year (Note 11(1)) - (438.4) 4384 - - - - - - - -
Transfer from investment property FREERATEFUEERA
revaluation reserve relating to net RAMEE(REE (ML)
fair value gain realised during
the year (Note 11(ii) - 176.3 (176.3) - - - - - - - -
Acquisiion of additional interest BENBLRER
in a subsidiary - 76.0 - - - - - - 76.0 (93.6) (17.6)
Dividends paid EIRRS - (148.5) - - - - - - (148.5) - (148.5)
At 31 March 2012 R2012%3A31A 3315 8,746.9 2,603.8 1,537.9 28 22.2 1,241.6 31 144958 13206 158164




Notes:

(a)

Investment property revaluation reserve represents the Group’s (a)
accumulated post-tax unrealised net fair value gain on the

investment properties of the subsidiaries, jointly controlled

entities and associates recognised in profit or loss, and then

transferred from accumulated profits to investment property

revaluation reserve. Upon the relevant investment property

being disposed of and the fair value gain becoming realised, the
relevant net fair value gain will be transferred to accumulated

profits.

General reserve mainly represents reserve created by way of (b)
capital reduction in a scheme of arrangement of the Group

under its former listed vehicle namely HKR Properties Limited

pursuant to a special resolution passed at the Extraordinary

General Meeting (the “Scheme of Arrangement”) in 1988. The

general reserve was transferred to accumulated profits upon

disposal of DP Properties Limited during the year ended 31

March 2011.

Distributable reserve was arisen from the cancellation of the (c)
share capital and the share premium account of HKR Properties

Limited in the financial year of 1989/1990 under the Scheme

of Arrangement. The distributable reserve was transferred to
accumulated profits upon disposal of DP Properties Limited

during the year ended 31 March 2011.

Capital redemption reserve is the amount equivalent to the (d)
nominal value of the shares cancelled upon repurchase of the
Company’s shares which was transferred from accumulated

profits. The reserve may be applied by the Company in paying

up its unissued shares to be allotted to members of the

Company as fully paid bonus shares in accordance with the

articles of association of the Company and the Companies Law

of the Cayman Islands.

Share of exchange reserve of jointly controlled entities during (e)
the year included an amount of HK$53.1 million (2011:

HK$49.9 million) arising from translation of interests in jointly

controlled entities and an amount of HK$162.5 million (2011:
HK$157.3 million) exchange gain arising from loans that form

part of net investment in foreign operations.
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2012 2011
NOTE HK$'M HK$'M
B 5E BEBT BEATT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BEEB
Profit before taxation BR 5% AT & A 916.9 1,847.8
Adjusting items, net FEIEE FEE (a) (682.3) (1,541.8)
Operating cash flows before Rt ABEESEFA 2
movements in working capital KERSME 234.6 306.0
Decrease (increase) in inventories &84 (1€ 40) 5.4 (17.0)
Decrease in properties held for sale = {EH & ¥ 55 4 - 13.1
Decrease (increase) in trade FEUE 5 R R
receivables (3 0) 24.8 (16.3)
(Increase) decrease in deposits, e A FRIEREA
prepayments and other TREE (Bm)md
financial assets (23.7) 117.4
Increase in properties held for/ BIEHEZBE
under development for sale ZE R AP ) I 0 (476.9) (931.2)
Decrease in amounts due from JIE LS B 8 &) SR IEDR A
associates - 9.5
Increase in amounts due from JE W 2k [ 2= | B B8 5K I8
jointly controlled entities 0 (21.7) (18.1)
Decrease in mortgage instalment  FEUIZ B D B R
receivables 2.5 9.2
Decrease in trade payables, ERE SRR BiER
provision and accrued charges FEST & AR (141.9) (29.2)
(Decrease) increase in Bliize REM
deposits received and other eHasE Cld)Em
financial liabilities (12.0) 48.0
Increase (decrease) in amount JE T B & 2 &) SR IE 38 N
due to an associate OR) 17.5 (4.5)
Decrease in derivative financial PTEEMTARD
instruments - (1.4)
Cash used in operations E2EMARE (391.4) (514.5)
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid ENBEBFEH (26.6) (36.3)
Overseas tax paid ETEINRIR (17.3) (35.2)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING & EZEXFHAREFHA
ACTIVITIES (435.3) (586.0)
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2012 2011
NOTE HK$'M HK$'M
B 5 BEBT BEATT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Proceeds from disposal of HEREMEZ
investment properties Fr{S 3k 38 649.3 101.0
Redemption of held-to-maturity BEOFE I EEE
investments 408.2 170.8
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE  FE K&
plant and equipment JAE 2 FTi5 I8 77.4 136
Interest received 2 S 47.5 26.1
Repayment of loans by associates & QA TEEER 38.4 70.9
Capital redemption (contribution) BEEER (HE)F
to an associate N 36.0 (72.7)
Proceeds from disposal of HE—HRBAFZ
a subsidiary Fr{S3k38 15 10.5 1,372.3
Dividends received from 2 U R RIS
an associate 10.0 9.0
Proceeds from disposal of financial H&&ZAFEFAEBZRZ
assets at fair value through profit @@l & E TS IE
or loss 5.3 128.4
Decrease in other assets H A& ER D 1.4 0.1
Redemption of available-for-sale ~ BE A HELRMEE
financial assets - 9.2
Option fee refunded BREREES - 0.1
(Increase) decrease in pledged BRI TR (38 00)
bank deposits L (0.2) 56.4
Capital contribution to a jointly HE T HRZEHELRE
controlled entity (6.3) (6.3)
Additions of investment properties AEIRE W (21.5) (1,026.4)
Additions of property, REWME WEREE
plant and equipment (342.6) (124.6)
Additions of held-to-maturity NEFEINERE
investments (506.1) (126.9)
Loans to jointly controlled entites B 7k T 2L [B] 42 I & 22 (542.9) (799.9)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING #EXFHAREFHA
ACTIVITIES (135.6) (198.9)
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2012 2011
NOTE HK$'M HK$'M
B 5E BEBT BEATT
FINANCING ACTIVITIES =
New bank borrowings raised HIEIRITEE 2,118.0 3,189.6
Advance from non-controlling KB IR IR
shareholders 125.7 284.8
Club debentures issued FEEMES 2.7 4.5
Repayment of obligations EEREHEAE
under finance leases (0.3) (1.5)
Redemption of convertible bonds &[] A] #2 % & 55 - (834.3)
Acquisition of additional interest ~ 1ZE& I B A AlAE
in a subsidiary (17.6) -
Interest paid =R (48.2) (25.5)
Dividends paid EfTIRE (148.5) (256.5)
Repayment of bank and EERITREMER
other loans (1,210.1) (1,406.8)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM MEXEBRBRE&ETHE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 821.7 954.3
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND ReERBEEEEEBRZ
CASH EQUIVALENTS 1 nEE 250.8 169.4
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS &#ZEH&E R
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR He%EER 2,379.9 2,055.4
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE EZF#Ez &
RATE CHANGES (1.9) 155.1
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS &£ XzZH&EXK
AT END OF THE YEAR H&EEEEEB 35 2,628.8 2,379.9
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2012 2011
NOTES HK$'M HK$'M
B 5T BEAET BEAT
Note: s
(@) Analysis of adjusting items, net (a) WEBEBZFEZIW
Depreciation of property, M BE &
plant and equipment BB ITE 9 153.8 152.8
Interest expense MERX 8 52.6 29.3
Impairment loss recognised B R EEE 7 20.2 10.0
Net allowance for doubtful debts RRBEFE 7 3.7 4.0
Release of prepaid lease A E R E
payments 9 1.0 1.2
Reversal of provision for loans e EEARESRR
to an investee B #E 7 - (85.3)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RENBARZ
U 2= 15 - (634.1)
Net gains from financial SREEAEFRS
assets/liabilities 7 (5.1) (7.8)
Interest income FEUA 6 (47.5) (26.1)
Share of results of jointly 21l 2[R 2
controlled entities EEXE (69.9) (79.3)
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, TEME  HE R
plant and equipment Bz () BB 7 (72.1) 0.5
Share of results of associates Bak(E) A WNCIE (90.8) (150.1)
Realised gain on disposal of HEREMFEZ
investment properties B & IH Was 15 (252.8) (6.1)
Unrealised gain in fair value of KEMEZANTFEZ
investment properties REIR Uz 11 (375.4) (750.8)
(682.3) (1,541.8)
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 #ZE201243A31H L5 E

1. General

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability and its shares are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The address of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in
the Corporate Information section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is also the functional currency of the
Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the development,
management and provision of essential and recreational
services for residential housing and leisure projects in
Discovery Bay, Lantau Island, other property development,
property investment, hotel operation, manufacturing, securities
investments and provision of healthcare services.

The Group’s associates and jointly controlled entities are
principally engaged in property development, property
investment and construction.
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2. Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new
and revised Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”s),
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”s),
amendments and interpretations (“INT”s) (hereinafter
collectively referred to as “new and revised HKFRSs”) issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA™).

Amendments to HKFRSs  Improvements to HKFRSs issued

in 2010
HKAS 24 (as revised Related party disclosures
in 2009)
Amendments to Prepayments of a minimum

HK(IFRIC*) — INT 14 funding requirement

HK(IFRIC) — INT 19 Extinguishing financial liabilities
with equity instruments

* IFRIC represents the IFRS Interpretations Committee

The application of these new and revised HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material effect on the amounts
reported in the consolidated financial statements and/or
disclosures set out in the consolidated financial statements.
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Up to the date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of new and
revised HKFRSs, which are not yet mandatorily effective for the
current accounting period. The Group has not early adopted
any of these standards, with the exception of the amendments
to HKAS 12 titled “Deferred tax: Recovery of underlying
assets”. The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2012, but as permitted by the
amendments, the Group had adopted the amendments for
the annual period beginning 1 April 2010. The directors of the
Company anticipate that the application of the other new and
revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on the results
and financial position of the Group.

3. Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis, except for certain properties and
financial instruments, which are measured at fair values, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the
Company has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.
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The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated income statement from
the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of

disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein.

Allocation of total comprehensive income to
non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary

is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance (effective from 1 April 2010
onwards).

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.
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When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it (i)
derecognises the assets (including any goodwill) and liabilities
of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts at the date

when control is lost, (ii) derecognises the carrying amount

of any non-controlling interests in the former subsidiary at

the date when control is lost (including any components

of other comprehensive income attributable to them),

and (iii) recognises the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest, with any resulting difference being recognised in
profit or loss attributable to the Group. When assets of the
subsidiary are carried at revalued amounts or fair values and
the related cumulative gain or loss has been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, the
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets (i.e. reclassified

to profit or loss or transferred directly to accumulated profits
as specified by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39 “Financial
instruments: Recognition and measurement” or, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a jointly controlled entity.

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the investor has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in joint
venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is
not control or joint control over those policies.
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The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method,
investments in associates are initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of the associates.
When the Group’s share of losses of an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in that associate (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s

net investment in the associate), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of that
associate.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with
respect to the Group'’s investment in an associate. When
necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance
with HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets” as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use

and fair value less costs to sell) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount
of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with its associate, profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the associate are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of interests in the associate that are not
related to the Group.
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Joint ventures

Jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment of
a separate entity in which venturers have joint control over
the economic activity of the entity are referred to as jointly
controlled entity.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entity
are incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method,
investments in jointly controlled entities are initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost

and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the
profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the jointly
controlled entities. When the Group’s share of losses of a jointly
controlled entity equals or exceeds its interest in that jointly
controlled entity (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
jointly controlled entity), the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of that jointly
controlled entity.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with
respect to the Group’s investment in a jointly controlled entity.
When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance
with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs to
sell) with its carrying amount, any impairment loss recognised
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.
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When a group entity transacts with its jointly controlled

entity, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with
the jointly controlled entity are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests
in the jointly controlled entity that are not related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amount receivable for
goods sold and services provided in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sale of properties in the ordinary course of
business is recognised when the respective properties have
been completed and transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the properties.

When a development property is sold in advance of
completion, profit is only recognised when the respective
properties have been completed and the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the properties have been transferred
to the buyer. Deposits and instalments received from
purchasers prior to this stage are included in current liabilities.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when the goods are
delivered and title has passed.

Service income is recognised as services are rendered.

Hotel operation income is recognised upon the provision of
services and the utilisation of the hotel facilities by guests.

Dividend income from investments excluding financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL") is recognised
when the Group’s right to receive payments has been
established.
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Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it

is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of interest can be measured reliably. Interest
income from a financial asset excluding financial assets at
FVTPL is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land
(classified as finance leases) and buildings held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes other than construction in progress are stated in

the consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment other than properties under
construction less their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised

in accordance with the Group's accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis
as other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.
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Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets or,
where shorter, the term of the relevant lease. However, when
there is no reasonable certainty that ownership will be obtained
by the end of the lease term, assets are depreciated over the
shorter of the lease term and their useful lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Buildings under development for future
owner-occupied purpose

When buildings are in the course of development for
production or for administrative purposes, the amortisation

of prepaid lease payments provided during the construction
period is included as part of costs of buildings under
construction. Buildings under construction are carried at cost,
less any identified impairment losses. Depreciation of buildings
commences when they are available for use (i.e. when they are
in the location and condition necessary for them to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management).

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any. If the recoverable amount
of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.
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Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined as if no impairment loss had been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation (including properties under
construction for such purposes).

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair
values. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment property are included in profit or loss for the period
in which they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
construction are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of
the investment properties under construction.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn

from use and no future economic benefits are expected

from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.
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Inventories

Properties held for/under development for
sale

Properties held for/under development for sale are classified
under current assets and are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Costs relating to the development of the
properties include land cost, construction cost, borrowing costs
and other direct development expenditure. The properties

are transferred to properties held for sale upon completion of
construction.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are completed properties and are
classified under current assets. They are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value.

Others

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
consolidated income statement because it excludes items

of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rate that has been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.
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Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used

in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in

a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in

a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interest in jointly controlled entities, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference

will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on the tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.
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The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities and
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model in accordance with HKAS
40 “Investment property”, such properties are presumed to

be recovered through sale. Such a presumption is rebutted
when the investment property is depreciable and is held within
a business model of the Group whose business objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment property over time, rather than through

sale. If the presumption is rebutted, deferred tax liabilities

and deferred tax assets for such investment properties are
measured using the tax rate applicable for recovery through
use.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.
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The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the profit
or loss on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised as an expense on a straight line
basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of
the Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if
lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments.
The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
consolidated statement of financial position as a finance lease
obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses
and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability. Finance expenses are recognised immediately in profit
or loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets,
in which case they are capitalised in accordance with the
Group’s policy on borrowing costs (see the accounting policy
below).

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight line basis over the lease term. Benefits received and
receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are
recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease
term on a straight line basis.
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Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of each element have been transferred to the
Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an
operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments
(including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated
between the land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land
element and building element of the lease at the inception of
the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial position
and is amortised over the lease term on a straight line basis,
except for those that are classified and accounted for as
investment properties under the fair value model. When the
lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land
and building elements, the entire lease is generally classified
as a finance lease and accounted for as property, plant and
equipment.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated

at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise,
except for exchange differences arising on a monetary item
that forms part of the Company’s net investment in a foreign
operation, in which case, such exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity and will be reclassified from equity to profit or loss on
disposal of the foreign operation. Exchange differences arising
on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value
are included in profit or loss for the period except for exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items
in respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly in
other comprehensive income, in which cases, the exchange
differences are also recognised directly in other comprehensive
income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of

the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and their income
and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for
the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of exchange reserve.
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On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of joint control
over a jointly controlled entity that includes a foreign operation,
or a disposal involving loss of significant influence over an
associate that includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to
profit or loss. In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of

a subsidiary that does not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences are reattributed to non-controlling
interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all other
partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates or jointly
controlled entities that do not result in the Group losing
significant influence or joint control), the proportionate share of
the accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to profit
or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable

to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair value of

the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and

of allocating interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments
(including all fees or points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a

shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income from debt instruments and interest expense
are recognised on an effective interest basis, other than those
financial assets classified as at FVTPL, of which interest
income is included in net gains or losses.
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Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the four
categories, including financial assets at FVTPL, loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity investments and available-for-
sale financial assets. The classification depends on the nature
and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the
time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at FVTPL comprise financial assets held for
trading.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near future; or

° it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has a
recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value arising from remeasurement recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes any
dividend or interest earned on the financial assets.
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Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets

with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in

an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including trade receivables, other assets, other
financial assets, pledged bank deposits, bank balances and
cash, amounts due from associates and amount due from a
jointly controlled entity) are carried at amortised cost using

the effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses (see accounting policy on impairment of financial assets
below).

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturities that the Group’s management has the positive
intention and ability to hold to maturity. Subsequent to initial
recognition, held-to-maturity investments are measured

at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment of financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated or not classified as financial assets at FVTPL,
loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value
at the end of the reporting period. Changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in investment revaluation reserve, until the financial asset is
disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which time,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss
(see accounting policy on impairment of financial assets
below).
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Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its
cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest and principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables and other financial assets, assets that are assessed
not to be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed

for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase
in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period, observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.
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For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by

the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables and other financial assets,
where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of

an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of

the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When
trade receivables and other financial assets are considered
uncollectible, they are written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in
the period in which the impairment takes place.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment losses were recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset
at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
will not be reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair
value subsequent to impairment loss is recognised directly in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in investment
revaluation reserve.
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Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a

group entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities other than derivatives (including bank
loans, trade payables, deposits received, other financial
liabilities and other liabilities) are subsequently measured at
amortised costs, using the effective interest method.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds issued by the Group that contain both
liability and conversion option components are classified
separately into respective items on initial recognition.
Conversion option that will be settled by the exchange of a
fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the Company’s own equity instruments is classified
as an equity instrument. Derivatives embedded in non-
derivative host contracts are not separated from the relevant
host contracts when the economic characteristics and risks
of the embedded derivatives are closely related to those of
the host contracts. On initial recognition, the fair value of the
liability component is determined using the prevailing market
interest of similar non-convertible debts. The difference
between the gross proceeds of the issue of the convertible
bonds and the fair value assigned to the liability component,
representing the embedded call option for the holder to
convert the bonds into equity, is included in convertible bonds
equity reserve.
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In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The equity component, representing
the option to convert the liability component into ordinary
shares of the Company, will remain in convertible bonds
equity reserve until the embedded option is exercised, in
which case the balance stated in convertible bonds equity
reserve will be transferred to share premium. Where the option
remains unexercised at the expiry date, the balance stated

in convertible bonds equity reserve will be transferred to the
accumulated profits. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss upon conversion or expiration of the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
bonds are allocated to the liability and equity components in
proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction
costs relating to the equity component are charged directly

to equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability component
are included in the carrying amount of the liability portion and
amortised over the period of the convertible bonds using the
effective interest method.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date

a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective
as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the
recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of the hedge
relationship.
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Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the

contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable

that the Group will be required to settle that obligation,

and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those
cash flows (where the effect of the time value of money is
material).
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Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes/
state-managed retirement benefits schemes/the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as an expense

when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

4. Key Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty

Management had made the following estimations that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements and a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are carried in the consolidated
statement of financial position at 31 March 2012 at their

fair value of HK$6,135.2 million (2011: HK$6,133.1 million)
(Note 15). The fair value was based on valuation of these
properties conducted by independent firms of professional
valuers using property valuation techniques which involve
certain assumptions of market conditions. Favourable or
unfavourable changes to these assumptions would result in
changes in the fair value of the Group’s investment properties
and corresponding adjustments to the amount of gain or loss
reported in the consolidated income statement.
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A jointly controlled entity obtained the land title certificates of
two pieces of land out of three. The management considers
there is no material legal impediment for the jointly controlled
entity to obtain the land title certificate of the remaining one.
The valuation of the three pieces of land which are classified
as investment properties under construction held by the jointly
controlled entity was conducted by independent firms of
professional valuers which was derived by making reference
to recent comparable sales transactions as available in the
relevant property market (on the assumption that all the land
title certificates have been obtained at the valuation date), and
has also taken into account the construction costs already
incurred as well as the estimated costs to be incurred to
complete the projects including future land costs for obtaining
land title certificate, which are deducted in order to arrive

at the value of the partially completed project. The valuation
involves certain assumptions and estimation of future cost to
be incurred. The changes of these assumptions and estimation
would result in changes in the fair value of the investment
properties under construction held by the jointly controlled
entity. As at 31 March 2012, the fair value of the investment
properties under construction held by the jointly controlled
entity amounted to HK$12,267.5 million (2011: HK$11,166.6
million) (Note 19) and the Group's share of the value of

the investment properties under construction amounted to
HK$6,133.8 million (2011: HK$5,583.3 million).

Properties held for/under development
for sale

Management reviews the recoverability of the Group’s
properties held for/under development for sale amounting to
HK$2,546.0 million (2011: HK$2,727.4 million) (Note 24) with
reference to current market environment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
of the assets may exceed its net realisable value. Appropriate
write-down for estimated irrecoverable amounts is recognised
in profit and loss when the net realisable value is below

cost. The estimates of net realisable value are based on the
evidence available at the time the estimates are made of the
amount the properties held for/under development for sale that
are expected to realise. Actual realised amount may differ from
estimates, resulting in a decrease in the net realisable value

of these properties held for/under development for sale and
additional write-down may be required.
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Project investment undertaken by a
jointly controlled entity

The Group has a 50% equity interest in a jointly controlled
entity, Dazhongli Properties Limited (“Dazhongli”), which is
engaged in the development of certain properties in Shanghai,
the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”). In considering the
recoverability of the Group’s loans to Dazhongli amounted to
HK$4,762.6 million (2011: HK$4,388.4 million) (Note 19), the
management takes into consideration the recoverable amount
of the underlying assets of Dazhongli which is determined

by reference to the costs to be incurred to complete the
development of the properties and the future rental income

to be generated therefrom. In this regard, the management
considered that no impairment is necessary in respect of the
loans to Dazhongli.

Impairment of amount due from an
associate

Included in the consolidated statement of financial position
at 31 March 2012 is an amount of HK$850.0 million (2011:
HK$878.9 million) due from an associate, Tung Chung
Station Development Company Limited (“TCSDCL"), which

is engaged principally in property development activities (see
Note 18). In determining whether an allowance for the amount
due from the associate is required, the management takes
into consideration the recoverable amount of the underlying
assets regarding the amount due from the associate and the
likelihood of collection. Specific allowance is only made for
the amount that is unlikely to be collected from the associate.
The management is satisfied that no further impairment is
considered necessary in respect of the amount due from the
associate.
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Deferred taxation

As at 31 March 2012, no deferred tax asset was recognised

in the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position

in relation to the estimated unused tax losses of HK$678.1
million (2011: HK$574.5 million) due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams. The Group has recognised a deferred tax
assets of HK$29.1 million (2011: HK$59.8 million) (Note 27)
in relation to unused tax losses in the consolidated statement
of financial position. The realisability of the deferred tax asset
mainly depends on whether sufficient future taxable profits or
taxable temporary differences will be available in the future.

In cases where the actual future taxable profits generated
differs significantly from the expected, a material recognition
or reversal may arise, which would be recognised in the
consolidated income statement for the period in which such
recognition takes place.

5. Turnover and Segment
Information

The Group is currently organised into seven operating
divisions: property development, property investment, services
provided (clubs operation, provision of professional property
management and transportation services to the residents

of Discovery Bay), hotel operation, healthcare (provision of
medical and dental care services, comprising cancer centres,
dental clinics, diabetic and cardiovascular centres, imaging
centre and multi-specialty outpatient centres), manufacturing
(manufacturing and sales of bathroom products) and securities
investment. Each of the operating divisions represents an
operating and reportable segment.
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The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results INTABRBEERAZRD BT AFE
by operating and reportable segments for the year: AEBZWARELS:
Property Property Services Hotel Securities
development  investment provided operation  Healthcare Manufacturing  investment Total
MEBRR  MERE RERE  BEEF BERE BE BERE @it
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
HEET  HEBT EEBT  BEART  BEART  AEAR  HEdn  HEER
For the year ended 31 March 2012 #Z201243A31H L5 &
TURNOVER LES
Segment revenue - sales PHERA-EEBR
to external customers derived HENRHMNIERZ
by the Group and associates HER 1,253.9 352.5 428.6 368.7 328.9 232.7 5.3 2,970.6
Excluding tunover of associates ~ HBBENRA %S (1,253.3) (37.8) - - - - - (1,291
Excluding sale proceeds of RRETRENMEL
certain investment properties HEMEIE (F1)
(note 1) - (10.1) - - - - - (10.1)
Excluding sale proceeds of HREFREL
securities investment HERGHE - - - - - - (5.3) (5.3)
Consolidated turnover, as reported 4R A 4% % MER 06 304.6 428.6 368.7 3289 232.7 - 1,664.1
RESULTS ES |
Segment results — total realised results > HEE-AEE -
of the Group, associates and BEARREREHES
jointly controlled entities (note 2) EERFEET (HF2) 24.9 445.1 61.8 8.9 (55.5) 6.3 10.4 501.9
Excluding realised results of BRIFEEHEBERAR
associates and jointly controlled HRAHERZEERER
entities not shared by the Group (30.6) (8.4) - - - - - (39.0)
Results attributable to the Group ~~ ANEEE(E 45 (5.7) 436.7 61.8 8.9 (55.5) 6.3 10.4 462.9
Unallocated corporate expenses RARAAER (82.4)
Finance costs and corporate level ~ BIEBBRAREEZ
exchange difference ERER (27.9)
Net unrealised gains on fair value R EMEATFELE 2
change of investment properties RERMEFE (HF3)
(note 3) 3744
Net unrealised gains on fairvaluie A& BEEEREHEER
change of investment properties BENANREDZEER
attributable to the Group's interests A TFEZE 2 K& BME
in a jointly controlled entity and B NRELEHE
associates, net of deferred tax 128.7
Profit for the year RERRF 855.7
Non-controlling shareholders' FERRRAEAFE R
share of profit for the year (108.5)
Profit for the year atfributable to AR RIEA NEEAE R &
the owners of the Company 747.2
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Property Property Services Hotel Securities
development  investment provided operation  Healthcare Manufacturing ~ investment Total
NELZE  WERE  RURE  BEER  BERE 2 E5RE @t
HKS'M HKS'M HK$'M HKS'M HK$'M HKS'M HK$'M HKSM
BEAT REAT AEAT RBEAT  BEET BB AEBL  BEERL

For the year ended 31 March 2011~ & Z2011463A31 A L EfE

TURNOVER BEE
Segment revenue - sales ABRA-REER

to external customers derived BEAREINIRP L

by the Group and associates HEHR 810.2 4655 3975 344.1 409.4 227.1 92 2,663.0
Excluding turnover of associates ~ HREE R 2 ¥ (752.9) (85.5) - - - - - (838.4)
Excluding sale proceeds of HRETRENE L

certain investment properties HEFEE (ML)

(note 1) - (14.7) - = - - - (14.7)
Excluding sale proceeds of HREFREL

securities investment HERBHE - - - - - - 9.2 (9.2)
Consolidated turnover, as reported A SEE MERK 573 365.3 3975 344.1 409.4 2271 - 1,800.7
RESULTS EL |
Segment results - total realised results 9 25 % 4 — & @«

of the Group, associates and BENRRAREHER

jointly controlled entities (note 4) B &R £EE (fiz4) 1163 9235 091 155 428) (159) 149 1,0606
Excluding realised results of RREAREMEBERATR

associates and jointly controlled HRABHER EEREE

entities not shared by the Group (66.4) 142 - - - - - (62.2)
Results attributable to the Group RS EREIE£E 499 937.7 491 155 (428) (159) 149 1,008.4
Unallocated corporate expenses KARATER (99.7)
Finance costs and corporate level ~ BB ERRARERELZ

exchange difference ERER (32.1)

Net unrealised gains on fair value ~ RENEATFELE

change of investment properties  AE M EE R (HizE5)

(note 5) 750.5
Net unrealised gains on fairvalue ~ AEEEEARRHERR

change of investment properties ~ BE& R ARRENEER 2

attributable to the Group's interests AT EEE 2 KEH Mz

in a jointly controlled entity and R NRETEHE

associates, net of deferred tax 156.8
Profit for the year REERF 1,7839
Non-controlling shareholders’ FERBREAEAEERT

share of profit for the year (136.0)

Profit for the year attributable o~ AR AIEA ANEEAFE R &F]
the owners of the Company 16479



HKR International Limited Annual Report 2011/2012

152

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A MRS IR R M 5T
For the year ended 31 March 2012 #ZE201243A31H ItEE

Notes:

(1)

For property investment segment, revenue included rental
income generated from investment properties and the sale
proceeds arising from disposal of particular investment property
in Shanghai, the PRC. Such disposal proceeds were excluded
from consolidated turnover for reporting purpose.

The segment results of the Group represent the total realised
results of the Group, associates and jointly controlled entities,
excluding the unrealised gains on fair value change of
investment properties net of deferred tax arising from change in
fair value. The segment results of property investment business
for the year ended 31 March 2012 included realised gains on
fair value change of investment properties of HK$252.8 million,
deferred tax credit on disposal of investment properties of
HK$2.9 million, and recognition of current tax upon disposal of
investment properties of HK$2.4 million.

The net unrealised gains on fair value change of investment
properties for the year ended 31 March 2012 of HK$374.4
million represented the unrealised gain on fair value change of
investment properties of HK$375.4 million net of the deferred
tax arising from change in fair value of HK$1.0 million.

The segment results of the Group represent the total realised
results of the Group, associates and jointly controlled entities,
excluding the unrealised gains on fair value change of
investment properties net of deferred tax arising from change in
fair value. The segment results of property investment business
for the year ended 31 March 2011 included realised gains on
fair value change of investment properties of HK$640.2 million,
deferred tax credit on disposal of investment properties of
HK$5.1 million, and recognition of current tax upon disposal of
investment properties of HK$4.3 million.

The net unrealised gains on fair value change of investment
properties for the year ended 31 March 2011 of HK$750.5
million represented the unrealised gain on fair value change of
investment properties of HK$750.8 million net of the deferred
tax arising from change in fair value of HK$0.3 million.

B &

(1)

(%)

REREDHME  MABERKERE
MEZESRARHERTE EBFER
BMEZHERSTIE - RE2WREW  Z
SHEMBRANE R L EBRMER -

REBZHHEEEAER BERAFR
HEZEHIER B EELE  T0E
BEYMENTFEEE 2 ARBE R N
KREAFESEMEECEERIE -HE
20123 A3IAILEE - MEREXEB 2
DEMBHEERFERENERTEEGH 2B E
U252 8F BT M EIREMERIK
BZBELERE2IOBEAB TR EEREN
FEERAEARIE2ABE BT

B ZE2012F3A31H IEFE  KEWER
FEEH I RBHRWRFHEIT448EE
THEREMERTEES 2 RER W

3754 BT HKEXFEZSME
EZBELERIELOBEE T -

REBZHHEEEAER BERAFR
HEZEHIER B REEBTE T8
&éfm% N TE B B 2 RS0 U as - 30
AFEBEEEZEERIEB -HE
2011¢3)%31E|¢¢FtT MEREEBZ
DMBHEEBFEREMELATELEH 2EH
B ES640.28 BT  HEIREMERIK
BZBELERHIES.IEEB T REEREN
XEmRANBREIIEE BT

HE2011F3A31BILFE  REDWERN
FEEZE 2 ABRWEFE/50.58 88

THEREMERNTFEES 2 RER W
7508 & BT A AFEZ SN E

A ZBREFRIFOIFEETT -
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2011/2012 %35

All of the segment revenue reported above is from external

customers.

No analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by operating

and reportable segments is disclosed as they are not reviewed
by the chief operating decision maker nor otherwise regularly

provided to the chief operating decision maker for review.

Other segment information

NEZ2
)—Z/Io

AREEY B\ EIRE
ZEERBEZDN I%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ\u
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WA D W R B IR

BN 2 B El D

4

<P

Hﬂ EE%%L/;&%%*}A HTjZIEHIqTE{ \%
BERREERET -

FoAth 43 8 B R

For the year ended 31 March 2012 B E2012F3AH31HILEE
Property Property Services Hotel Securities  Unallocated
development  investment provided operation ~ Healthcare Manufacturing  investment amounts Total
NERR NERE  RERE  EREF  BERE HE  BHERE  APREE fb)
HK$'M HK$'M HKS'M HKS'M HK$'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HK$'M
BBET BRET  AEAR  EBER  EEET BRET  AEAR  EBER  EEET
Amounts included in the measure of s EA BERHREZLE:
segment profit or loss:
Revenue from inter-segment sales *  22f 2 & M+ (3.4) (6.0) - - (9.4)
Depreciation bk} 108 7.6 45.8 54.1 215 113 - 2.7 153.8
Impairment losses on property, plant 913 BERR 2
and equipment recognised BRZAERE - - - - 8.7 - - - 8.7
Allowance for doubtful debts RiEEE - - 0.1 - 3.2 04 - - 37
Net gains from financial SREE/BEFIG
assetsfliabiliies - - - - - - (5.1) - (5.1)
(Gain) loss on disposal of HENE BERZEZ
property, plant and equipment (i) BB - (0.6) 0.1 0.2 1.1 (72.9) - - (72.1)
Realised gains on disposals of HERENEZEERYH
investment properties - (252.8) - - - - - - (252.8)
Interest income FERA (1.4) (18.2) - (23) (0.1) - (0.5) (25.0) (47.5)
Interest expenses ﬂ%ﬁﬁ 3 0.1 13.0 - - - 13 - 48.8 63.2
Income tax expenses R 146 26 6.1 6.6 16 6.7 - 30 61.2
Share of results of associates 57 (NS (29.2) (10.2) - - - - - (51.4) (90.8)
Share of results of AMERREHERRE
jointly controlled entities (0.3) 10.1 - - - - - (79.7) (69.9)
Write down of inventories FERE - - - - 23 9.2 - - 115
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 #ZE201243A31H ItEE

For the year ended 31 March 2011 HZE2011F3A31HIEFE
Property Property Services Hotel Securies  Unallocated
development investment provided operation Healthcare  Manufacturing investment amounts Total

WEER  NERE RERE  EEXB BRRE 2 EFRE  AOEEE fat
HKSM HKSM HK$M HKSM HKSM HKS M HK$M HKSM HKSM
BEAT  HEEERT  BERT  AERn  REBEL  BERT  RBER  BEAT  BEER

Amounts included in the measure of  sFEABERFEELLE:
segment profit or loss:

Revenue from inter-segment sales *  2-2f 2 & i+ - 3.1) (62 - - - - - (83)
Depreciation ik 218 105 305 50.6 2317 121 - 36 1528
Impairment losses on property, plant  #1%* BE R R &2
and equipment recognised BREIREES - - - - 100 - - = 100
(Reversal of allowance) allowance  (BEER) REAE
for doubtful debts (0.6) - (L) - 50 07 - - 40
Reversal of provision for loansto ~~ BEMBEREHRER CEE
an investee - (85.3) - - = - - (85.3)
Net gains from financial SREE/BEFIG
assetsfliabiliies - - - - - - (78) = (7.8)
Loss (gain) on disposal of HENE BERREZ
property, plant and equipment BB (&) - 08 01 (0.4) - - - 05
Realised gains on disposals of HERENE BER MG
investment properties - (640.2) - - - - - - (640.2)
Interest income FakA (10) (14.4) - (06) (02) (0.2) 9.7) (26.1)
Interest expenses fleEx - 28 - 01 01 08 - 384 42
Income tax expenses (credit) FERAR (%) 84 522 80 (68) 28 = 0.7) 639
Share of results of associates HMIBERRRE (799) 23 - - - - - (725) (150.1)
Share of results of AEAREHEEEE
Jointly controlled entities - 50 - - - - (84.3) (79.3)
* Inter-segment sales are entered into in accordance with the * SR HENBRBEREZEZRH 2B #
relevant agreements, if any, governing those transactions, in Wik (08 ) #T RSERTHLRIFITH
which the pricing was determined with reference to prevailing BREREEKNA (RTERBLME)
market price or actual cost incurred, as appropriate. EEe
. 5 \ = N AL
Turnover from major products and services FTEEMMRFZEERE

The following is an analysis of the Group’s turnover from major NTARAEE T ZEMIRECEEBRDN:
products and services:

2012 2011

HK$'M HK$'M

BEET BEBTT

Sales of properties HE W - 57.3
Sales of goods HEEm 232.7 227.1
Rental income HE WA 315.0 371.1
Hotel revenue B JE WA 344.2 324.4
Provision of healthcare services BB ERE RS 328.9 409.4
Other services rendered R E M AR 443.3 4114

1,664.1 1,800.7




Geographical information

For each of the years ended 31 March 2012 and 2011, the
Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong, the PRC, South
East Asia and Japan, Australia and the United Kingdom.

The Group’s revenue from external customers based on

the location of properties and goods delivered or services
rendered, and location of properties in the case of rental
income, and information about its non-current assets by
geographical location of the assets are detailed below:
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HE2012F K2011F3A31H L& FE
AEEZ LFEEBKURES B REgas

K BAS BN B R o

REERBINBER (AP &M

RERB 2 e SEE  SESWAM
5 AMEMEMASERE) ZRERERE
REEWBUES D LFRBDEELFR

T

Revenue from

external customers

Non-current assets

REMBER W ERBEE
2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
HE#T BEAT BEER BEAET
Hong Kong BB 899.3 1,076.9 7,017.3 6,807.6
PRC F 414 349 6,530.6 58718
South East Asia and Japan FEERAR 5314 486.2 2,567.4 2,471.1
Australia BN 160.8 1733 3.7 3.6
United Kingdom B 31.2 29.4 69.8 0.2
1,664.1 1,800.7 16,188.8 15,154.3

Note: Non-current assets excluded financial instruments and deferred

tax assets.

Information about major customers

The revenue from individual customer contributed less than

10% of the total turnover of the Group for both years.

i ERBEETRESRTARGERE

TR P2 R
RERMEEE kA EAES 2 KT
BB 8 R 5 2 10%
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A M RRMT R

For the year ended 31 March 2012 #ZE201243A31H ItEE

6. Other Income

6. HAbW A

2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEETT
Other income includes the following: HEw ABIETZIE:
Bank and other interest income RIT R E A B U A 47.5 26.1
Other income E A A 73.4 63.0
120.9 94.1
7. Other Gains and Losses 7. H b Wss &g R
Other (losses) gains include the following: EHh (B1E) e i TI&IE:
2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEETT
Net foreign exchange (loss) gain HNEEDE 5 (B18) = (12.1) 11.2
Reversal of provision for loans BEMAREEHRER &
to an investee (Note 21) & (M¥EE21) - 85.3
Gain on disposal of property, HEME  BER&E 2 WS
plant and equipment 72.1 —
Impairment loss recognised BRI EEE
Property, plant and equipment (Note 16)  #12% /5 K& & (HI5E16) (8.7) (10.0)
Inventories FE (11.5) -
Trade receivables EWE 5 R (3.7) -
(23.9) (10.0)
Net gains from financial assets/liabilities & @EE BE 2 FWRE
Net realised gains on financial assets BAFEGFABE S
at FVTPL TREECER 2 FRE 5.1 -
Net realised gains on available-for-sale AHHEESREECD#R 2
financial assets U - 9.2
5.1 9.2
Net losses on derivative financial FTESRT A EER
instruments - (1.4)
5.1 7.8
41.2 94.3
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8. Finance Costs 8. M¥EH
2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BEBT BEBTT
Interest on T3 RIEZAE
Bank and other loans wholly repayable ARAFANTBHEEZ
within five years RITREMEK 52.5 25.4
Other borrowings wholly repayable ARAFANTBHEEZ
within five years HiEE 12.9 4.9
Convertible bonds — liability component  AJ# & &35 — BN AFANE
wholly repayable within five years HEEZAESY - 3.8
65.4 34.1
Less: Amounts included in the cost B ETAREREZBE
of properties held for/under BRA TEEMERAR
development for sale/construction x|
in progress (12.8) (4.8)
52.6 29.3
Bank loans arrangement fees RITERZHEHR 10.6 12.9
63.2 422
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 #ZE201243A31H ItEE

9. Profit Before Taxation 9. BrB A& A
2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEBTT
Profit before taxation has been arrived BB AR A 2 B (FEA)
at after charging (crediting): T3&IE :
Auditor’s remuneration % ELET BN 7.9 7.6
Cost of inventories and developed GFERBEERYEKAN
properties recognised as an expense wRAEERH 106.1 153.0
Operating lease rentals in respect of T REBFIREEHEERS
land and buildings 55.1 46.5
Staff costs (including directors’ BIXRA(BEESEHE)
remuneration) 527.6 509.2
Release of prepaid lease payments EMHEENRE D 1.0 1.2
Depreciation e
Owned assets BEEEE 152.0 152.4
Assets under finance leases BMEHETZEE 1.8 0.4
153.8 152.8
Net rental income under KEMHET 2 e WA FRE
operating leases on
Investment properties wEME (310.6) (367.6)
Other properties H b (4.4) (3.5)
Less: Outgoings B 35.0 22.9
(280.0) (348.2)
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10. Taxation 10. Bt IH
2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BHEER BEBT
The taxation charge comprises: MBS HERE !
Hong Kong Profits Tax calculated at 16.5% 74 & {51 & 2R B Fll4% & R
on the estimated assessable 16.5%st B 2 BEFEH
profit for the year 26.3 35.9
Overseas tax calculated at rates prevailing 1% B8 RAME R E A 2 fi R
in respective jurisdictions (note a) B ZBINGIE (Hska) 22.6 35.4
48.9 71.3
Deferred taxation for current year (note b) AFEIELEFRIE (MisEb) 12.3 (7.4)
61.2 63.9
Notes: B 5 -
(@)  The overseas tax charge for the year comprises: (a) AFEEFEZHINGEBEZHBHE:
2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BHEET BEBT
Land Appreciation Tax and Enterprise HEMNRFRZRENEE
Income Tax arising from disposal of Az T IR ER R
investment properties in the PRC e (HEREMEL
(“PRC Tax on disposal of investment REFIE])
properties”) 2.4 4.3
Other overseas tax H /85N 18 20.2 31.1
22.6 354
Net accumulated taxation charge (credit) 74 & [ 1 & %8 9 2 M 1%
to profit or loss arising from disposal of (5T A) 8% 2 Bt Fi 1B H58
investment properties during the year R
is as follows:
PRC Tax on disposal of investment HEREME 2 RETEE
properties 2.4 4.3
Less: Deferred tax recognised in prior BB FEREER RN IE
years (Note 11) (PfFzE1L) (2.9) (5.1)
(0.5) (0.8)
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(b)  An analysis of deferred taxation for current year is as follows: (b) REEIRIERIBZ D0
2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BEERT BEBT
Deferred tax charge arising during the ~ AFEEREWEQFE
year in respect of unrealised gain BEEERER KR
on fair value change of investment TEIEFIE
properties 1.0 0.3
Deferred tax credit on disposal of HEREMFERER 2
investment properties EIEFIE (2.9) (5.1)
Others HAh 14.2 (2.6)

12.3 (7.4)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated E 8 M 1E T Ty3% /B 2 B 4 51 FE 2R 55 S5 )
assessable profit for both years. B E16.5%ET & ©

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT RETRMPEMMESFREREEHEHEG B
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax BB A TR M EEE 2 &R AE25% o
rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates NEMBNEEREES ZHRIBIZ A E e ki
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions. &7 IRITRHRAE o
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The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit AFERIE T L ELRE W m R AR AR
before taxation per the consolidated income statement as Mz AT :
follows:
2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BEBT BEBT
Profit before taxation B 5% Al Vg A 916.9 1,847.8
Less: Share of results of associates W DI E R R EE (90.8) (150.1)
Share of results of jointly controlled SMEERIEHIE RS
entities (69.9) (79.3)

Profit before taxation attributable to the Rpal REWB A REG

Company and its subsidiaries B 51 A1 A 756.2 1,618.4
Tax charge at the domestic income tax R PR SA E16.5%

rate of 16.5% AR RIEX W 124.8 267.0
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax BRI A 2 RS2

purpose (117.5) (246.9)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible A HRAST T2

for tax purpose 31.5 28.2
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERMIBEB 2 MBTE 30.5 12.4
Utilisation of tax losses previously not FRBEARERHRIEEE

recognised (13.3) (3.1)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries R E i 5lJEHE R 2 & 2

operating in other jurisdictions MBARBETR & (0.7) 0.7
Tax effect of deductible temporary RERATINHEREZBE 2

differences not recognised HiEe & 1.6 2.8
Effect of Land Appreciation Tax in the PRC 1 B0 + b I8 (EFi 2 522 0.9 2.0
Others HAh 3.4 0.8
Taxation attributable to the Company and A A &l K E i & A &l F K

its subsidiaries for the year FEAG IR 61.2 63.9
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11. Profit for the Year Attributable to 11. A 5] B N\ HEAL AAE B

Owners of the Company it )
2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BEBT BEATT
Profit for the year attributable to the RAaER ARG
owners of the Company comprises: REEHENBHE:
(i)  Net unrealised gains on change in (i) FRKREWEAFE
fair value of investment BB RER
properties during the year Wzt F5a
— The Group —ARE&EE 375.4 750.8
Less: Deferred tax W IRIERE IR (1.0 (0.3)
Attributable to FEIE IR s B
non-controlling interests (64.7) (96.9)
309.7 653.6
— Jointly controlled entity, net of — HEEE
deferred tax (Note 19(a)(ii)) HBRIEER B
(Bt &E19()()) 77.3 84.3
— Associates, net of deferred tax /NI
HBRIEET 18 51.4 72.5
438.4 810.4
(i) Accumulated net realised gains on (i) FREELREMEZ
disposal of investment properties R BEEBRNEFE
during the year
Gain on disposal of an investment HE—HREYEE
properties holding subsidiary ARB B A Rz Wz - 634.1
Realised gain on disposal of other HEEMEENE L
investment properties B2 Iz 252.8 6.1
Realised gain on disposal of HEREYH 2B ERIK
investment properties (Note 15) = (FI5EL5) 252.8 640.2
Accumulated gains (losses) BEFERRCHERE
on change in fair value of MENFEEE R
disposed investment properties = (BE)  RET
recognised in prior years, net of 1A (MsE)
deferred tax (note) 176.3 (126.5)
Taxation credit for the year KEERIBE R 0.5 0.8

429.6 514.5
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2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BHEBTT BEAETT
(iii) Reversal of provision for loans to an (i) BBl R iEREIREE R
investee (Note 21) B B (HsE21) - 85.3
(iv) Other profits (iv) E s 7 55.5 111.2
Subtotal /NEE 923.5 1,521.4
Less: Accumulated (gains) losses on BBEFEERRZEER
change in fair value of disposed EMEATFEEHR
investment properties recognised & (Y ) B598 - 0Bk
in prior years, net of EERIIE (MIEE)
deferred tax (note) (176.3) 126.5
Profit for the year attributable to the RAaER ARG
owners of the Company NS 747.2 1,647.9
Note: Accumulated gains on change in e BAEFEEERILERE
fair value of disposed investment L EYNSRIEE-EE-S e
properties recognised in (H$3E15)
prior years (Note 15) 179.2 39.0
Deferred tax relating to fair value MAFEEBRZEHERE
change of disposed investment MENFEEZEERZ
properties recognised in prior years EFERLIE (FTEEL0)
(Note 10) (2.9) (5.1)
Accumulated losses on change BEFEEERAZLERE
in fair value of disposed investment VISR B A A FE
properties holding subsidiary SE) R EE
recognised in prior years - (160.4)
176.3 (126.5)
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12. Directors’ Remuneration and
Five Highest Paid Employees
Remuneration

(1)

are as follows:

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the fourteen

>

Details of directors’ remuneration

12. HHN A % 14 B i R

(1)

H2Z M

EHHMEFEHWT

BT E14% (20114 : 14%) &

(2011: fourteen) directors were as follows: BEEAZHMENT:
For the year ended 31 March 2012 BIZ2012F3A31HLFE
Cha Cha  ChaVYiu Chung Tang Ronald Cha  Cheung  Wong Cha Cheng  Cheung  Cheung Ho Pak
Mou Sing ~ Mou Zing Chung  SamTin Moon Joseph  Mou Daid Tseung  MayLung ~ KarShun  KinTung ~ Wing Lam Ching Qin
Payson Victor ~ Benjamin  Abraham Wah Arculli~ Johnson Ming ~ Madeline Henry Marvin Linus Loretta Xiao Total
BRE  ERA  TEY B0 WEE O EEE SRE  REW IZER BR4 REE  RAR WeH E] L E]
HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HK$'M HKS'M HK$'M HKS'M HK$'M
BEET FEAR EEET FEER EEET FEAR GEET FEAR GEET FEER GEEn FEER DEET  FEER BEER
Fees e - 03 - - - 02 01 01 01 03 03 03 01 03 21
Other emoluments Ethde
Salaries and offer benefits  Fr& REMER 46 57 21 20 33 - - - - - - - - - 183
Performance related B (M)
incentive payment (note) 04 38 10 05 12 - - - - - - - - - 69
Retirement benefits chemes & /K& 1318
contribution 3R - 03 0.1 01 0.2 - - - - - - - - - 0.7
Total emoluments Heus 5.0 101 38 26 47 02 01 01 01 03 03 03 01 03 2.0
For the year ended 31 March 2011 B E2011F3A31H EFE
Cha Cha  ChaViu Chung Tang Ronald Cha Cheung ~ Wong Cha Cheng  Cheung  Cheung Ho Pak
MouSing  Mou Zing Chung  SamTin Moon Joseph  Mou Daid Tseung  Maylung  KarShun  KinTung  Wing Lam Ching Qin
Payson Victor ~ Benjamin® ~ Abraham Wah Arculi Johnson Ming ~ Madeline Henry Marvin Linus Loretta Xiao Totel
thE AR B EUE BEE ER THE REW IERE  WXH  RER  RAR fRA &R 3t
HKSM HKS M HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM
BERT AEET RERT AERT BERT AEMT BERT AEW BERT AEWR BERT AEMR BEET REMR BEER
Fees i3 = 03 = = 02 01 01 01 03 03 03 01 03 21
Other emoluments Ethie
Salares and other benefits  HERABER 44 47 10 19 32 - - 21 - - - - - - 173
Performance related (M)
incentive payment (note) 54 61 12 06 15 = = 66 = - - - - - 24
Retirement benefits schemes & A& :tE
contribution 3 = 02 01 01 02 = = 01 = = = - - - 07
Total emoluments WesE 98 13 23 26 49 02 01 89 01 03 03 03 01 03 415
Note: The performance related incentive payment is ak: BEREN2EFRAAEEZEE

determined with reference to the operating results and

comparable market statistics of the Group, and individual
performance of the directors during the year.

* The amount represents the remuneration since the date

of appointment as director.

B whEmssEESEL

REETE -

Y RERERARZEREFECZARZ
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During both years, no emoluments were paid by the RRENRN NEBNERES I IE
Group to the directors as an inducement to join. No BREEBEREMAREE ZME -
directors waived any emoluments during both years. FAN HEESHETMAME -
(ii)) Employees’ remuneration (ii) 18 B N4
For the year ended 31 March 2012, the five highest HE2012F3A31HILFE » K&EES
paid individuals of the Group included four (2011: four) B EHMA L HAR4E (20114 :
executive directors, whose emoluments are disclosed AZ) BRITES BEZMER EX
above. The emoluments of the remaining one (2011: WE- 1% (2011F: 1K) EEZ
one) employee are as follows: BT -
2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BE#ET BEATT
Salaries and other benefits e K H MR R 2.8 4.0
Performance related incentive A (IaE)
payment (note) 1.0 -
Retirement benefits schemes BRIREFIF SR
contribution 0.1 0.1
3.9 4.1
Note: The performance related incentive payment is ek : BRI EFALEB 2KLE
determined with reference to the operating results and ¥4E Al RS SR R E B E R
comparable market statistics of the Group, and individual REBTE-

performance of the employees during the year.
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13. Dividends 13. B B
2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEBTT
Final dividend paid #HE2011F3A31H 1
for the financial year ended B HFE 2 Bk RE
31 March 2011 of HK11 cents f% 8 — &A1 (2011
(2011: for the financial year ended & : HE201063A31H 1E
31 March 2010 of HK12 cents) per share BFBUEE —127841) 148.5 162.0
No interim dividend declared, REFEBRTESTIREE
before the end of the year, 20123 A31H It BFE
for the financial year ended ZHHRE (2011F : HZE
31 March 2012 (2011: 2011F3A31A LW BEFE
for the financial year ended Z P EHRE—FR7EMW)
31 March 2011 interim dividend
of HK7 cents per share) - 94.5
148.5 256.5
Interim dividend declared, REHEBREREIREZE20125F
after the end of the year, 3A318 I BEE 2+ &
for the financial year ended B B —F R8BIl (20114 :
31 March 2012 of HK8 cents )
(2011: nil) per share 108.0 -
No final dividend HZE20123A31H 1
for the financial year ended B B 4F 2 N £ I B8 oK AR
31 March 2012 (2011: f% B (20114 : i =20114F
for the financial year ended 3A31H - BRFEE
31 March 2011 of HK11 cents —JFR11B)
per share) - 148.5




14. Earnings Per Share

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

ERAXEREESRAA 2011/2012 43§
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14. & B & A

RRBEE NBEFRERREGERF T
RIE T IBURFTH

2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEBT
Earnings B
Earnings for the purpose of calculating st EEREREF]Z B F|
basic earnings per share (profit for (RRARHEE ABRAFE
the year attributable to owners of the i )
Company) 747.2 1,647.9
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: B %7t # &5 &
Interest on convertible bonds AR E S 2 F B N/A 7 A 3.8
Earnings for the purpose of calculating st EEREERF 2 B
diluted earnings per share N/A A iE A 1,651.7
2012 2011

Number of shares BR &

Number of ordinary shares in issue during st EEREAEFZ KFE

the year for the purpose of calculating
the basic earnings per share

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares
relating to convertible bonds

%++E/§&Z

Number of ordinary shares for the purpose &+ & &% #E &5 2

EREliie 4=

of calculating diluted earnings per share

BEEITEAKRHA

1,350,274,367 1,350,274,367

ABESB E: é&

N/A & R 7,563,245

N/A FER 1,357,837,612

No diluted earnings per share has been presented for the
year ended 31 March 2012 because there were no potential
ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

R B E20125F3 A31 H |EF I &A1
HEOEE N 2 Bak St W& 25|58k
BERN-
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15. Investment Properties 15. &Y
2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEBTT
FAIR VALUE ~EE
At beginning of the year F7) 6,133.1 5,298.6
Currency realignment B 1.7 78.7
Additions INE 21.5 1,026.4
Change in fair value recognised in RiBmER 2 AT EES
profit or loss
— Realised gain on disposals —HERZEER K= 252.8 6.1
— Unrealised gains —RE I WS 375.4 750.8
Disposals & (649.3) (101.0)
Eliminated on disposal of a subsidiary kb [ SN R S
(see note below) (R T CHEE) - (926.5)
At end of the year FR 6,135.2 6,133.1
Investment properties of the Group held at the end of the RBERR AEERB 2 REYE
reporting period are situated on land as follows: M2 BT
2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEATT
Freehold outside Hong Kong ML BB LA TN B 2 5K A SEHE 900.2 917.7
Long leases outside Hong Kong URBEBAIMEE 2 REAELD 118.9 123.0
Long leases in Hong Kong URBEBZEKHED 419.4 761.6
Medium-term leases in Hong Kong UREBZFEHELD 4,696.7 4,330.8

6,135.2 6,133.1
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The Group disposed of certain investment properties during FR-AKBHERETREYE LEFS
the year and the details of the disposals are as follows: R
2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BEBT BEBTT
Sales proceeds received B UK 85 B 1S 30IR 649.3 101.0
Original cost of acquisitions Wi 2 RN AME (217.3) (55.9)
Accumulated gains on change in fair value (B F F E O R 2 A FE
recognised in prior years (Note 11) gE) 25 (MEaELL) (179.2) (39.0)
Realised gain on disposal recognised FAHERER
during the year B & W= 252.8 6.1
Realised gain on disposal of investment #B@HEHBARLE
properties through disposal of wREME BB K=
a subsidiary (see note below) (R TXHE) - 634.1
Total realised gains on disposal of HEREMEZEERKE
investment properties (Note 11) w@EE (fisE1l) 252.8 640.2
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Note:
DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 10 December 2010, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with a third party to dispose of its entire interest in a
wholly owned subsidiary, DP Properties Limited (formerly known as
HKR Properties Limited). DP Properties Limited owns 50% interest
in the Discovery Park Shopping Centre, Tsuen Wan, Hong Kong (the
“Property”) and owns 50% of each of two associates, Discovery
Park Commercial Services Limited (“DPCSL”) and Discovery Park
Financial Services Limited (“DPFSL”). DPCSL and DPFSL provide
estate management and leasing services in respect of the Property
and second mortgage loans to purchasers of residential units in the
residential tower blocks located above the Property, respectively.
The Group’s interest in the Property was accounted for as a jointly
controlled asset of the Group. The transaction was completed on 22
March 2011.

The consideration and net assets at the date of disposal were as

GEE
H I O 24

M20106F12 810 AL EEE = FHET—
NEBEWRZE LEH2EHB 2K B A FIDP
Properties Limited (BT BEEZE (ME) BR
A7) 22 EPHAE - DP Properties Limitedf# A &
BEEBMERENRES ([ZWE])50%.2 #
A R E RS AR (RS RS A R
X7A] (TDPCSL ) R =3k A B RIS B IR A 7]
(IDPFSL J) ) &50% 2 # % - DPCSLK DPFSLSY
A EEZYERHENEETEREERE R
MEELER EMYMEZEFERNEFEEMNZ
BEEREFRBER -AEEZAWERE
HEFTAREBEEZEHEE - ZR 512011
F3H22H T/ °

HEEAZREREEFENT:

follows:
HK$'M
BEET
Consideration received and receivable: B U K ARAE
Cash received BUYIE & 1,400.4
Deferred cash consideration RERSKE 10.5
Total consideration received and receivable B K e (B 4R RE 1,410.9




BEEEXBEREBEAR QA 2011/2012 F3;

171
22.3.2011
HK$'M
BEBT
Analysis of assets and liabilities disposed of: HEEERBBZOTHT :
Investment properties BEYE 926.5
Interests in associates /N 15
Property, plant and equipment Y B KR 2.6
Amounts due from associates JiE W B 2 X B FRIE 6.7
Bank balances and cash IRTTHEMEIA S 28.1
Deposits received and other payables B Uiz S K H e < 38 (121.3)
Taxation payable FET IR (6.9)
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIBEAE (60.4)
Net assets disposed of LERZEESFE 776.8
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary: HE—ERNBARZ M :
Consideration received and receivable B U K e (B 1,410.9
Net assets disposed of HERZEEFE (776.8)
Gain on disposal recognised as realised gain of REYMENFEESHZ
change in fair value of investment properties BB W EN HERERKE 634.1
Net cash inflow arising from disposal: HEREELE 2R RAFRE:
Cash consideration received BEUWERE &N E 1,400.4
Less: Bank balances and cash disposed of W HERZRITESRRIRS (28.1)
1,372.3

The deferred consideration was settled in cash by the purchaser in

May 2011.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the principal
asset of DP Properties Limited is the investment properties and thus
the disposal was accounted for in the consolidated income statement

as disposal of investment properties.

BRIEREER20LIFHAER AR EB -

N A E FE R ADP Properties Limitedz £ 2 &
ETRAME B HE DRERe i Re A
RIEEMEZLE-
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The fair values of the Group’s investment properties at 31
March 2012 and 2011 have been derived by the following
independent firms of qualified professional valuers with
appropriate qualifications and recent experiences in the
valuation of similar properties in the relevant locations. The
valuation was arrived at by reference to market evidence of
transaction prices for similar properties and by reference to net

RNEBP20129F K2011F3A31H 2 K&
MEANFEDRATEEERBE &K
HEAEEES 2 BUMEGELCR B
VABRBEGEMTETHEE %
MEDF A=A REE 2 EA
MSREERIRE  2EHUMEKR
BzMEBEBRR2ZFHS WA RBER

rental income allowing for reversionary income potential using RO A 2 TEETC
the applicable market yields for the respective locations and
types of properties as the discount rates.
Location of BEWME
Name of valuer investment properties ERELTEE A FE%E Z Hh[E
DTZ Debenham Tie Hong Kong and the PRC HERTHER AR BAELA
Leung Limited
DTZ Debenham Tie Japan HERITERAR SN
Leung Limited (note) (HI5E)
N&A Appraisal Company Thailand N&A Appraisal Company 2= &
Limited Limited

Note: DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited has engaged its member
firm in Japan, DTZ Debenham Tie Leung KK, to carry out the
valuation of the Group’s properties in Japan.

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are
measured using the fair value model and are classified and
accounted for as investment properties.

Mz : BRRITERARIEZERNBARZK
8 /A A|DTZ Debenham Tie Leung KK * 3t
REBRBRZYFEEITEE

AEEMABKLEHE THRIEMMBE S HE
BEARFHERZZ MEERDRA R FER
Nt E A DBERARIMEREYE -
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2 > A =L
16. Property, Plant and Equipment 16. Y3 ~ Wi Je i #
Furniture, Plant, Ferries,
Leasehold  Commercial fixtures  machinery aunches  Construction
Hotel Freehold landand  and leiswre  Leasehold and and and motor in
properties [and buildings facilities improvements ~ equipment  equipment vehicles progress Total

LY ARk i R BB &
EENE  RELH kBT RERE  DEEE  KERRRE HRRRE RRRRE  ARIR &t
HKS'M HKS'M HK$M HK$M HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM
BEET  BEET  REET  REET  BERT  BERT  REEn  REEL  BEER  BEER

(note b)
(Hiztb)

CosT RE
At 1 April 2010 201054817 1,896 2488 5033 6134 215.1 299 2817 4789 4936 45113
Currency realignment L 136 176 76 - 23 85 83 16 17 1712
Addtions AE 34 - 27 - 319 174 11 161 200 1246
Disposalsfrte-off HE/HE (145) (34) - - 81) (134) = (38) (28) 46.0)
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 15) HE—FHBAF (H15) - - - - (9.1) (14) - - - (105)
Transfer 43 127 - 43) - - - - - 84) -
At 31 March 2011 R2011%£3A31A 14468 263.0 5993 6134 2321 3080 2911 4928 504.1 47506
Currency realignment KR (106) (4.2) 88 - 06 15 170 0.1 (03) 129
Addions 52 188 28 18 - 23 74 %7 119 1951 348
DisposaSrte of e/ 66 08 (5 - @9 m) 069 3 02 (66
Transer % 56 - - - - - = = (56) =
At 31 March 2012 R201243R31R 1,454.0 289.0 5834 6134 219.1 3232 268.3 500.2 693.1 49437
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT ~ #iERHfE
At 1 April 2010 201054817 5338 - 2518 3204 1530 1995 2558 386.2 - 21005
Currency realignment L 484 - 52 - 15 6.1 48 10 - 67.0
Provided for the year TERRE 49 - 150 142 233 314 59 181 - 1528
Eliminated on disposalshwrite-off HE/HipnE (143) - - - (52) (88) - (36) - (319)
Eliminated on disposal of a subsidiary ~ HE—FHBARELH

(Note 15) (Kiit15) - - - - (6.6) (1.3) - = - (79)
Impairment loss recognised (notea) ~ EERREBE (Hita) - - - - - 100 - - - 100
At 31 March 2011 R2011%3A31A 6128 - 2120 3346 166.0 2369 2665 4017 - 22905
Currency realignment L (73) - 52 - 04 08 85 01 - 17
Provided for the year TEREE 488 - 139 142 25 300 6.6 178 - 1538
Eliminated on disposals/ write-off HE /MRS (64) - (265) - (341) (114) (765) (44) - (1593)
Impairment loss recognised (note )~ EERBERE (Hia) - - - - 29 58 - = = 87
At 31 March 2012 R2012%3A31R 647.9 - 264.6 3488 157.7 262.1 205.1 4152 - 2,301.4
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 March 2012 *2012%3R31R 806.1 289.0 3188 264.6 614 61.1 63.2 85.0 693.1 2,642.3

At31 March 2011 011534318 8340 2630 323 2188 66.1 711 246 911 5041 2,460.1
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Notes:

(@) During the year ended 31 March 2012, certain leasehold
improvements and furniture, fixtures and equipment were fully
impaired due to the closure of certain medical clinic centres. An
impairment loss of HK$8.7 million was recognised in profit or
loss.

Certain of its furniture, fixtures and equipment were impaired
at 31 March 2011 as a result of operating losses of an
operation under the healthcare segment in the PRC and an
impairment loss of HK$10.0 million was recognised based on
the recoverable amount of the furniture, fixtures and equipment
accordingly. The recoverable amount of the furniture, fixtures
and equipment for the healthcare operation was estimated
based on a value-in-use calculation and the calculation

was based on the budgeted cash flows approved by the
management covering a five-year period at a discount rate of
7%.

(b)  The carrying amounts of the Group’s plant, machinery and
equipment included an amount of HK$1.1 million (2011:
HK$0.5 million) in respect of assets held under finance leases.

ltems of property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are depreciated on a straight line
basis, over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Freehold land No depreciation

Hotel properties 30 — 86 years
Leasehold land and buildings, commercial

and leisure facilities 10 — 40 years
Leasehold improvements 5 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3 -5 years
Plant, machinery and equipment 5 - 15 years
Ferries, launches and motor vehicles 5 — 20 years

As at 31 March 2012, included in construction in progress
was interest capitalised of HK$14.9 million (2011: HK$13.8
million) not yet transferred to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment.

GEE

UES

B E2012F3A31H IEFE - ANE T8
B2 LR e THEMERER
Fh - REBERZEE 2BURE - REEE
B7/EEBLCNBEMER

HREERREDFPHEEEZLEE

8 BB THM KB MRER2011 F3
ASIBHBERE -REZEEM RER
R PRl & FERER 2 R EE B &210.0
BEAT ZEFBREREBEBZERM K
ERRBZAINE SR IRERBEEET
E ZARAREEB]ERERF
HZRERMIBERI R IR KT %t & o

ANEBBE  HEREEZREERER
BREREHEREEEZSHELIAS
T (20114F - 0.5 EBATT) °

BEREREERE (EZTREIN IR

BAVEBA T EET AT A F M E

KA SERET M WETE
B &) 3 30E86%F
HE L REF

ElEVSE i 105404
HEWEEE %3
BRI HERBE 3E5E
5~ HEs k& A 5ZE15%
B A &R RE 5E204F

M2012F3A31H st AEEZ IR 2B R
{EFB149EE BT (20114 : 13.85HE S
T0) MAREBEYE BEARENEEE

Blo
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The carrying value of properties shown above comprises: FiaimEZEERERRE:
Leasehold land
Hotel properties Freehold land and buildings
EEWE KAEELH HELTHMEET
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
HEET BEATL HEET BEATL HEET BEATL
Freehold outside Hong Kong IR E BN R 2
KAERE 186.0 209.4 289.0 263.0 - -
Long leases outside Hong Kong R BB LAIMEE 2
RHBAL 620.1 624.6 - - - -
Medium-term leases outside IR BB AIMER 2
Hong Kong RETRY - - - = 32.8 325
Long leases in Hong Kong RIRNES 2 R AEHN - - - = 103.9 1059
Medium-term leases in Hong Kong iz A &7 2 R i 4) - - - - 170.7 175.0
Short leases in Hong Kong IR ES Z AN - - - = 11.4 139
806.1 834.0 289.0 263.0 318.8 327.3
. =+
17. Prepaid Lease Payments 17, A& Ak
The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise: AEB 2 ENEENREE:
2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BEAET BEATT
Leasehold land in Hong Kong UREBEAZHEE L
Short leases FEHAFE 4V 1.5 1.9
Leasehold land outside Hong Kong MR BB AINMEE 2 HE L
Long leases RHEIEAD 17.7 18.0
Medium-term leases FRERFE A 10.5 15.9
29.7 35.8

Leasehold interest in land is released over the terms of the
leases on a straight line basis.

Rz HERSREMNAEREEL -
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18. Interests in Associates/Amounts

Due from Associates %’ /NI TJ\IE
2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEBT
Cost of investment in associates R DRI E Z KA
Listed in Hong Kong REB L™ 160.2 160.2
Unlisted JELET 36.7 72.7
Share of post-acquisition profits, DMEWEEREF
net of dividends received kR E U h% B 336.2 280.0
Share of reserves DL G 2.6 1.2
535.7 514.1
Amounts due from associates (Note 25) & Yz Bt & 2 &1 208 (Fff 5E25) 860.0 898.9
Share of post-acquisition losses of SMEBRHREEERELZ
an associate covered by binding — B & R R AR (M)
obligation (note) (678.5) (703.6)
181.5 195.3
Fair value of a listed investment, —BFTMREZATE &AT
based on quoted market price HwmE 215.0 260.4

Note: The Group is obliged to make good the net deficit of Tung

Chung Station Development Company Limited (“TCSDCL”") in

proportion to its interest in TCSDCL. At the end of the reporting
period, the Group’s obligation in this connection amounted to

HK$678.5 million (2011: HK$703.6 million) and accordingly,
the same amount has been recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position and presented as a deduction

from the Group’s advances to TCSDCL.

Hi i

7K £ B 78 5 ¥£ Tung Chung Station
Development Company Limited
(ITCSDCL]) 2 F B4R - te Pl mE E’\\
TCSDCLZ # &t - M E HAR - R &
utﬁ%@Zf&ﬁm&ﬁﬁﬁ;aE@ou
F:703.6ABET) ZESHEEIRN
Fa MBI RERL AREELE T
TCSDCLZ B R 85 °



At the end of the reporting period, the market value of the
listed shares of an associate was lower than its corresponding
carrying value in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements. The management considered that such market
value did not reflect the fair value of the listed associate to the
Group, but instead the Group’s share of its net asset value
represented a fairer reflection of the recoverable amount. For
the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount

of the listed associate has been determined based on a

value in use calculation. In determining the value in use of
the investment, the Group estimated its share of the present
value of the estimated future cash flows expected to be
generated from the investment in the associate, comprising the
dividends to be received from the investment and cash flows
from the proceeds on the ultimate disposal of the investment.
The management of the Company considered there is no
impairment of interest in the listed associate.

Details of the principal associates of the Group as at 31 March
2012 are set out in Note 41.

EAEEBEREBEAR AT 2011/2012 F 3k

177

R|BER -~ LR R 2 WG

MEEREERNKEZGEETBHRERAZ
HEREE EEERS THEEREE
REREZ E B E N RINAEE 2 AFE
MAKE DG 2 BEFEERERFHRER
A E SR - BURERIS M S - X LS
RElZ RO eRERERERSETEE
o REBEREZEREERR  ANEEMG
HoERBE AR 2 RERBEL 2
AARRERZBEE ETEERKRER
TR ZBERZEELERERB ZHAE
FREZREM - ARAEEBRRNZ L
T Bt 8 R B) 2 M w30 OB (E -

REEN2012F3A3I R T EH L N T
2B E R K FE4L -
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The summarised financial information in respect of the Group's A REAE B E N 7 2 B 75 & £ 2471

associates is set out below: (N
2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEAT
Investment properties wREYE 1,075.1 958.5
Properties held for/under development S {EHE 23R EREPYE
for sale 793.8 775.5
Sale proceeds held by stakeholders REAFFIEEMERIE 137.2 199.3
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRIRS 311.9 388.8
Other assets Hi&EE 894.8 591.1
Total assets BEBE 3,212.8 2,913.2
Other payables to shareholders H fib B~ AR R 3R IE (3.5) (2.8)
Loans from shareholders IR E R (2,763.0) (2,890.0)
Other liabilities HEmEE (1,433.7) (1,030.1)
Total liabilities BEARE (4,200.2) (3,922.9)
Net liabilities BEFHE (987.4) (1,009.7)
Group's share of net assets of associates ANEE D (hEE & N A& EFE 547.7 525.8
Group's share of net liabilities of associates NS @ (B2 A 5] & (& /558 (681.2) (706.0)
(133.5) (180.2)
Unrealised profits REIR m (9.3) (9.3)
(142.8) (189.5)
Turnover L 1,291.1 753.1
Profit for the year INF [ 221.0 253.5
Group’s share of results of REEH(REE QA
associates for the year KEEEE
(net of unrealised profit of HK$0.3 million (k& 7 237 &% 0.3
(2011: HK$0.9 million)) BHEET (20114 :

09BE&EET)) 90.8 150.1




19. Interests in Jointly Controlled

Entities

The interests in jointly controlled entities include the
Group’s 50% equity interest in Dazhongli Properties Limited
(“Dazhongli”). An analysis is as follows:

A
Bk
2]
He
3%
b
)

EEARAF 2011/2012 5§
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19. 36 [l 2 il T 8 2 B 2%

AEBRARZEHERZ EZBERATR
EMEERAF ([KFER]) Z250%k4E
HEoMfranh:

2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEATT
Interests in: R RERS

Dazhongli (note a) AHFE (MEa) 6,336.1 5,676.5
Other jointly controlled entities (note b) ~ E A HEFEHIE 5 (FF7Eb) 509.8 334.7
6,845.9 6,011.2

Notes: B &E

Dazhongli (@) KRHE

Dazhongli and its subsidiaries (“Dazhongli Group”) are
engaged in the development of investment properties and hotel
properties in the Jingan District of Shanghai in the PRC.

RPBEREMBAR (TRPELE]) K
ERRUNTEEEFLEBZREMER
BT

2012 2011

HK$'M HK$'M

BEET BEBIT

Cost of unlisted shares FE LT Z A AR 0.1 0.1
Share of reserves (note i) DA (M) 690.3 474.5
Share of post-acquisition profits (note i) 71 U B&E 18 5% F (BT &Eii ) 883.1 813.5
1,573.5 1,288.1

Loans to Dazhongli BERTFTARHE 4,762.6 4,388.4
6,336.1 5,676.5

Further advances of HK$374.2 million (2011: HK$471.5
million) were made during the year by the Group to Dazhongli to
finance its share of development expenditure.

FR - AEE AR EE—FBF374.2
BHEBT (20114 4715888 7T) ' 1E
BRESEZERALIZES -
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The loans to Dazhongli are unsecured, non-interest bearing ERTFTAFELEER 28 REETE
and have no fixed terms of repayments. The Group has no AR REBME RIS BREET R 12
intention to exercise its right to demand repayment of these B ARITERER ERERETZER-
loans within the next twelve months from the end of the BARAHREEERMEZFIEAES
reporting period. The directors believe the settlement of these BIff@ A EREMER  EEHEZS
loans is not likely to occur in the foreseeable future as they are, ERB TR e] BARREEE  MZER
in substance, a part of the Group's net investment in Dazhongli BEAANEBERATEEE 2 HBHTEF

Group as the proceeds of the loans have been substantially oA BAFIBEES AIERBEEN
used by the Dazhongli to inject as registered capital into its STAREBRHERIEGIERE 2R UE
PRC subsidiaries. Accordingly, the amount is classified as REr A AR R K 25 -

non-current asset and included in the Group’s interests in
jointly controlled entities for the purpose of presentation in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The summarised financial information in respect of Dazhongli NP EEBER2012F3H31 0 2B & w
Group as at 31 March 2012 is set out below: BEmT:
2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEBT
Non-current assets FEMBEE
Investment properties under EEREYE
construction 12,267.5 11,166.6
Hotel properties under construction and — #£ 228 & ¥ % N =& 5
equipment 564.2 538.1
Other non-current assets HEiIEREEE 125.1 142.8
12,956.8 11,847.5
Current assets MENEE
Bank balances and cash RITEBRERS 704.4 394.5
Other current assets HEn®&EE 152.1 77.7
856.5 472.2
Current liabilities mBEE
Loans from shareholders IR R E K (9,525.2) (8,776.8)
Other current liabilities T N=K = (467.9) (369.3)
(9,993.1) (9,146.1)
Net current liabilities mEAEFRE (9,136.6) (8,673.9)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBEE 3,820.2 3,173.6
Non-current liability EmBEE
Deferred tax liabilities LT IE B (& (673.2) (597.4)
Net assets EEFE 3,147.0 2,576.2

Group’s share of net assets REBDHEEFE 1,573.5 1,288.1
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For the year ended
31 March

B EZ3A31ALEE
2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEBT

Change in fair value of investment EREBREMENTEE

properties under construction 206.2 224.9
Other operating income less expenses  ELfih 438 U A 1% 7 H (15.4) (10.1)
Deferred taxation EETH IR (51.6) (56.2)
Net profit after taxation for the year RNEZBRTL BT i A 139.2 158.6
Group’s share of result for the year AEBOEARFEEE 69.6 79.3

Notes:

The share of reserves of Dazhongli represented an
exchange gain on translations of interest in Dazhongli
and exchange gains arising from translation of the

loans advanced by the Group to Dazhongli which are
denominated in US dollars and HK dollars, that form part
of net investment in foreign operations during the year.

The share of post-acquisition profits of Dazhongli in the
current year mainly arose from the Group'’s share of fair
value gain on investment properties under construction of
Dazhongli.

The investment properties under construction was
measured at 31 March 2012 at fair value of HK$12,267.5
million (equivalent to RMB9,944.4 million) (2011:
HK$11,166.6 million (equivalent to RMB9,405.0 million))
which was based on the valuation conducted by DTZ
Debenham Tie Leung Limited, who have appropriate
qualification and recent experiences in the valuation of
similar properties in the relevant locations. The valuation
was arrived at by reference to comparable sales evidence
as available in the relevant market and have taken into
account the expected construction costs and the cost
that will be expected to complete the development. The
increase in the valuation for the year ended 31 March
2012 of investment properties under construction as
stated above was partly offset by the increase in the total
estimated construction costs that gave rise to a fair value
gain of HK$206.2 million (2011: HK$224.9 million).

The attributable taxation charge in respect of the gain

B :

DIERPEZ FHREREFALAT
B RS ETHRE BN WS R
SEEBN AP BEBKIEINES
MAREFBRZER (AEXTRE
TLHME ) 5 5| B2 BE 5 e o

FANERPEZWER G E
ERNAEEDERTBEZEZR
BWMERNFERES-

BEHERITER A RET 2
B ERIREMFEN2012463 4
318 ZAF(EA12,267.58 B
TL(HHER9,944.458B ARE)
(20114 :11,166.6 B BB T (HHE
9,405.0B8 B ARY) ) « ZARIE
TEAEE 2 REMEEESE
AHEAEERRITBER - HED
2 HRT5 2 Al LB S & B 5=
X+ W0 58 B T8 B AR A AN K TE A
STERZERIER ZRA - # %2012
FIA3IAILFE ERIEEMHE
A _E ATl 3 g - 2010 B
STEEEERK ANBEE E A RS 1T
EERFEREZER206.28EB T
(20114 : 22498 &) - 7%l
w2 ELETIE HASL6AEE T
(201145 :56.2A &) « kR
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was HK$51.6 million (2011: HK$56.2 million). Thus

the net fair value gain after tax amounted to HK$154.6
million (2011: HK$168.7 million) of which the Group’s
50% share of gain was HK$77.3 million (2011: HK$84.3
million). The investment properties of the jointly controlled
entity are depreciable and held within a business model
of the jointly controlled entity whose business objective

is to consume substantively all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time, rather
than through sale.

The capital commitments of Dazhongli at 31 March 2012 were

MIAE 2 AP EF R AL54.68 5
BT (20114 - 168.7E&EBTT) o &
EESHERAFERE 250% B
773BEE8BIT (20114 : 84 3FH &
T0) o FRIEHIE B 2 IR E WA A
FEWAHLRZEGEE 2 RFEmE
BRREE mEAREXZEBKE R
REAZIEEMENB S 2B
DEOEF s ISR EEHE -

A B R2012F3 A31H 2 & AR&E¥E M

as follows: T
2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BHEET BEBTT
Contracted but not provided for EEABAREE 2,785.2 1,279.1
Authorised but not contracted for BEHEBEREL 6,162.5 7,292.5
8,947.7 8,571.6

The capital commitments of Dazhongli, of which the amounts
attributable to the Group’s interest in Dazhongli represents 50%
of the amounts stated above, will be financed by shareholders’
loan or direct borrowings of Dazhongli.

RP B2 ERFSRE (REEBR KT E 24
RERE NS E 0% )  HAKRERE
RIAPEZEREERNES-

(b)  Other jointly controlled entities (b) EfbHEFRZEFIEE

2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BESET BEBIT
Cost of unlisted shares FE_ET IR (D Z AR 12.6 6.3
Share of reserve DG (0.2) -
Share of post-acquisition profits {5 U B 1% )i A 0.3 =
12.7 6.3

Loans to other jointly controlled entities & T £ fib 2k [ 122 ] & 52
(note) (B 497.1 328.4

509.8 334.7
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Note: The loans to other jointly controlled entities are
unsecured, denominated in Thai baht and have no fixed
terms of repayment. At 31 March 2012, the loans bear
fixed interest from 3% to 4% (2011: 3%) per annum. The
Group has no intention to exercise its right to demand
repayment of these loans within the next twelve months
from the end of the reporting period. The directors believe
the settlement of these loans is not likely to occur in the
foreseeable future. Accordingly, the amount is classified
as non-current asset and included in the Group's
interests in jointly controlled entities for the purpose of
presentation in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

The summarised financial information in respect of other jointly
controlled entities as at 31 March 2012 is set out below:

183

ek : BT H A XREGE BT ER
- LASRERBI(E R 3 4 [ TE 8 K
Hl- 720123 A31H  EFUR[E
EFFEIEFAE (2011F :3[E)
FTE o REEEERIRE BRERT
RIRL21E B A17 2 BRI E k(&
BZEER -EZMHE RAER
PREL A 2k [F) 2 ) B AE K ATRE(E
BZEER AL i s ik
ARZZ2FIME  BESERIIIE
JEMBVEE - Wat ARNEER R
EHEB -

H b H R E 2 R2012F3 8318 2 8
EERBMEIT

2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BEBT BEBT

Current assets MBEE
Property under development for sale ERPFEME 1,026.6 665.3
Bank balances and cash RITEHR KRS 20.8 7.7
Other current assets B R EE 0.1 2.6
1,047.5 675.6

Current liabilities mBEE
Loans from shareholders RERE R (1,020.8) (662.1)
Other current liabilities HEinRshBE (0.9) (0.6)
(1,021.7) (662.7)
Net assets BEFE 25.8 129
Group’s share of net assets AEBDEEEFE 12.7 6.3
Net profit after taxation for the year RNEEBRTL BT i A 0.6 =
Group's share of results for the year AEBOEARFEEE 0.3 =

Details of the principal jointly controlled entities of the Group as
at 31 March 2012 are set out in Note 41.

AREEN201243 831 B & F B R H
B2 B E M E4T -
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20. Investments in Debt and Equity

Securities

20. B KA E I 2 B E

Fair value measurement
at 31.3.2012 using:

®201243A31H
HEATE:
Level 1 Level 3
2012 E—EH $E=B%
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEET BEETT
Held-to-maturity investments REIHRE
Unlisted debt securities (note a) FELETEBES
(KisEa)
Current nE 158.8
Non-current FERED 83.9
242.7
Available-for-sale financial assets A ESHEE
Equity securities: BRAZES
Listed, at fair value (note b) W BAYE
(Pg7ED) 50.2 50.2 -
Unlisted, at fair value (note c) ¥ET RAFE
(PFfzEe) 2.9 - 2.9
53.1 50.2 2.9
Analysed for reporting purposes as: RERENZOMWAT:
Non-current FERE 53.1
Market value of listed equity securities: ~ FHRAEH 2 A
Listed in Hong Kong REB LT 37.9 37.9 -
Listed overseas 2] sl 12.3 12.3 -
50.2 50.2 -
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Fair value measurement
at 31.3.2011 using:
M201143H31H
SHELNFE:
Level 1 Level 3
2011 F—ER FE=ER
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEBT BEBT BEBT
Held-to-maturity investments BHEIHRE
Unlisted debt securities (note a) FLEMEBES
(PffzFa)
Current ED 62.6
Non-current FEnE 84.2
146.8
Available-for-sale financial assets A EEHEE
Equity securities: PR AR FE 5 -
Listed, at fair value (note b) Em e BAYE
(PEED) 58.9 58.9 =
Unlisted, at fair value (note c) ¥ETRAFE
(P3EC) 1.7 — 1.7
60.6 58.9 1.7
Analysed for reporting purposes as: REREHZHMWT:
Non-current FERE 60.6
Financial assets at FVTPL (held for trading) &R AF(Ezt AB#R 2% &l
BE (BEEE)
Equity securities: N
Listed equity securities (note b) EHRAES
(FFzEDb) 0.2 0.2 -
Market value of listed equity securities: ~ FHRANE R 2 A
Listed in Hong Kong REZ LT 49.6 49.6 =
Listed overseas RGN £ 9.5 9.5 -

59.1 59.1 =
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The fair values hierarchy are classified into the following levels:

o Level 1 — quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities; and

o Level 3 — using valuation techniques that include inputs
for the asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs).

Notes:

(@) Held-to-maturity debt securities are measured at amortised
cost less any impairment losses. The fair value of the held-
to-maturity debt securities as at 31 March 2012 is HK$245.0
million (2011: HK$148.8 million). The weighted average
effective interest rate is 3.1% (2011: 3.0%) per annum.

(b)  The fair values of all listed securities are determined by
reference to the quoted market bid price available on the
relevant exchanges.

(c)  Unlisted equity securities include an investment in a venture
capital fund at HK$2.9 million (2011: HK$1.7 million) which are
measured using valuation techniques based on inputs that can
be observed in the market in addition to unobservable inputs
such as company specific financial information.

The movement in the unlisted equity securities is as follows:

N ERBED BA TR

B 5L -

(a)

(b)

(c)

A.

E-EBR-REE g%& AR E
BmiEzRE (& éﬁ%ﬂ

—ER-EHEAERBBEZGAE
I#W#Tngm%%ﬁ<%ﬂ%
LEIE) ©

5 75 Bl BB 75 35 25 T3 DA 85 Ak A Rk T {m)
BEEEM = R EIHEHESFR
20123 A31H 2 AFEA245.06 88
70 (20114F : 148.8E BB T) » hiEFH
FERFEFER A3 IE (20114 :3.0F) °

A LBEsZ ATENSZANRST
5.2 B B TR -

ELEMRABLFBE—EREIREAES
ZIRE29R 8T (20114 : 1L.7E &%
7T B R AERMETE - ZIERITR 2
BAZEAREBIEBRTS SR RIEATH
RYBRMN NS EMBERMEE °

FEMBAEZSZEBHIT

2012 2011

HK$'M HK$'M

BEET BEBTT

Balance at beginning of the year i?ﬂ HEER 1.7 10.7
Total gains in other comprehensive REMEE NG 2 W858

income 1.2 0.2

Proceeds from disposal & TS 58 - 9.2)

Balance at end of the year FREH 2.9 1.7

Included in other comprehensive income is a gain of HK$1.2
million (2011: HK$0.2 million) related to unlisted equity
securities held at the end of the reporting period and has been
credited to investment revaluation reserve.

SFAEMEERGE 2128 S8 Tk
(20114F : 0.2B 8B L) 1B @RS R
BEZELMBRAES TEFARESE
il & o
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21. Other Assets 21. H A &
2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEBTT
Mortgage instalment receivables FEYIR S 2 BRI R (M ska)

(note a) 5.6 8.1
Option fee refundable (note b) AREREEE (MiEb) 7.9 7.8
Loans to an investee (note c) MABEIREEHRER

(BftEc) 106.6 106.6

Unlisted membership debentures FrmeEEsrREMEE
and other assets 5.5 6.9
125.6 129.4

Notes:

(a)

The mortgage instalment receivables represent the financing
provided to buyers of development properties of the Group.
The amounts bear interest at prime rate minus 1% and are
receivable by instalments over a period of not more than 20
years from the sale of the relevant flats. The receivables are
secured by a second mortgage over the properties. The portion
of mortgage instalment receivables due within one year of
HK$0.5 million (2011: HK$0.7 million) is included as trade
receivables in current assets.

This represents an option fee of HK$14.0 million paid by the
Group to a related party, Castro Valley Properties, Inc. (“CVPI")
in 1996 pursuant to a proposed property project which was
subsequently not proceeded with.

Under the terms of the termination agreement entered into

in 1997, the amount is repayable by CVPI to the Group in
instalments, the amount of each instalment being based on the
gross income of CVPI each year with interest accruing at 1%
per annum on the outstanding balance. Based on information
provided by CVPI, the amount is expected to be fully repaid by
2031.

B AL

FEMIZIE D R TR T AEE W%

FREFZBE o M H IR S E BRI ER
1B YEEABEETEMELRD
1B:B20F Ay M E - LW SR T A
BYMEEE _RBER - R—FRIH2
FEYIRIB D B K05 B & T (20114

0.7ABRTL) Eft AERBEEC RUIE
ZIRRA

I TR AN E BN 1996F R IE —TBEZ Y
218 B i [7] — & 438 A +Castro Valley
Properties, Inc. ([CVPI]) X 14.0 B&
BT REES  ZEEE HEWEES
HEATo

WRIBIN19974F 7] 3 2 4R \E Wk -2 1R 3K -

CVPIZAS HAAKEEENR SRR
RIRCVPIFF AW A EL B AREE 2
FREFFEFFEA B - RIBCVPHE#
ZER - BHZERARN2031FEHE

o

i
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The balance outstanding at 31 March 2012 and 31 March
2011 represents (a) the fair value of the amount receivable
determined using the discount rate applicable at the date of
inception of 4.51% per annum (“the adjusted outstanding
principal”) and (b) less repayments received attributable to the
settlement of the adjusted outstanding principal since that date.

Amounts received from CVPI are recognised as interest income
based on the discount rate of 4.51% per annum on the
adjusted outstanding principal and the balance is attributable to

settlement of the adjusted outstanding principal.

CVPI is a related party of a trust, the discretionary objects of
which include the issue of Dr CHA Chi Ming, the late Chairman
of the Company and some of them are directors of the
Company.

The Group owns a 15% interest in an unlisted company
incorporated in Singapore which holds a commercial complex
comprising a retail mall, 2 office towers and a hotel in the

city of Tianjin, the PRC. As at 31 March 2010, the Group had
outstanding loans to that company with carrying amounts of
HK$21.3 million, net of provision of HK$85.3 million. In view

of the completion of the commercial complex owned by that
company and the state of the property market in Tianjin, the
PRC, the Group reassessed during the year ended 31 March
2011 the recoverability of the loans and during the year ended
31 March 2011, reversed the provision for the loans of HK$85.3
million made in prior years to reinstate the carrying amount of
the loans to HK$106.6 million as at 31 March 2011 and 31
March 2012. The loan is unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand. The directors determined that the Group might not
demand for repayment within twelve months from the end of the
reporting period and hence classified the loan as a non-current
asset.

The directors consider the carrying amounts of the Group’s

7201243 A31H k201143 A31H i# K
BBz e A EARR B BEA 28R
RGFASI%ETEZBRSEAFE ([
ARREERS ) RDb)RABZAB Hi
CRABRREERS ZBWRBUERK -

&«
e

nE

HF

u»

HECVPIKRER Z SR BEHBREELSS
BEFASI %I LR AN S WA - M
RERRRAEREERE -

CVPIR—HERZHEAL  EBBEHR
BREARFCHEIFEERELNERN
BER D /ARAES-

REBMN— BN AL L ZIEETA
BRI 15% 2 Ham » i 2R Bl AR B R 2
B-EREGRAE BE—EBEBDTL
WA BRI A K AR R — DB JE - 78201043
A31B AEEMBZARIZAEEER
BRMEEA21.3 &AL BINRE#ESS.3
BEBL ZENZARBEEZAERAE
R EATE R - I kAR B R IE 2 ISR
T AEEDREE201143H318 (EF
E BT EZE R Z A B2 K # [l
BEFEENEREESS3 BEAT B
201143 A31 8 K201243A31H » &
BREERMEYA106.6 8887t ZEXK
REEF SERIEERKERE-EERTE
AEBRBEHRIMEARTE BKE
o .lﬁtﬂﬁgxgﬁﬁiﬁﬁgﬁmiﬂﬁﬁ °

E=RA $%lﬁﬁ¢%$ZﬁW&E

mortgage instalment receivables, option fee refundable

DHHR ARERBEE RAEBRE
ﬂ%ﬁﬂZ%ﬁﬁAﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ

and loans to an investee at the end of the reporting period
approximate their corresponding fair values.



EAEEBEREBEAR AT 2011/2012 F 3k

189

22. Inventories 22. &
2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEBT
Consumables S m 56.6 58.1
Raw materials JR M #k 8.0 8.8
Work in progress F 8K 4.0 3.2
Finished goods 2K M 77.2 90.6
145.8 160.7

23. Trade Receivables

The credit period allowed by the Group to its customers is
dependent on the general practice in the industry concerned.
For property sales, sales terms vary for each property project
and are determined with reference to the prevailing market
conditions. Sale of properties are normally completed upon
the execution of legally binding, unconditional and irrevocable
contracts and the sale amounts are usually fully paid when the
properties are assigned to the purchasers. Deferred payment
terms are sometimes offered to purchasers at a premium.
Property rentals are receivable in advance. Payments for
healthcare, clubs and hotel services are receivable on
demand. The general credit terms allowed for customers of
manufactured goods range from 30 to 90 days.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables
presented on the payment due date at the end of the reporting
period:

23. MEWCH 5 Bk

AEBERTEEPZEERRFERN—K
BOIEE -HYEHEM S - HEGTIZE
MEBEME  WREERHRET - WE
HE—RNBEILLERNORT  BIEG R
TAHESRKEA HESBAUBER
MEEZTENRZHHN ERXAEL
A - B R(E - MER BN £
Hio BE AR @RISR 2 ERAR
EREHNFHMN RHEEARETERY
—RIEEHHI0EIORT -

AT REWE 2 RN R E AR IZ 2 M
KB BN D 2RI DT

2012 2011

HK$'M HK$'M

BEAET BEBT

Not yet due 8 A< 2 B 17.8 39.5
Overdue: %60 5 -

0 - 60 days 0 - 60X 55.9 59.3

61 — 90 days 61 — 90K 4.4 5.2

Over 90 days 1B 3#@90K 4.0 6.8

82.1 110.8
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Included in the Group's trade receivables balances are
receivables with aggregate carrying amount of HK$64.3 million
(2011: HK$71.3 million) which are past due at the end of

the reporting period for which the Group has not provided for
impairment loss. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.

The Group has provided allowance for receivables overdue
beyond 120 days because historical experience is such that
receivables that are past due beyond 120 days are generally
not recoverable. Management closely monitors the credit
quality of trade receivables and considers the trade receivables
that are neither past due nor impaired to be of a good credit
quality.

Movement in the allowance for doubtful
debts

AEBZEREEZERBRENBEHR
& 218 M A 5= B 30 K 5 R (B 548 1F ) 33
B BUARRA KREERCAIAEET
(201145 : 71.3@ &) - AR E XL E3L
A SRR A E R R e

AEBEERAHEBI20K 2 B FRIE L
HEE HIHRREEAERLR %Fal
3B 120K 2 FE W R IA — ARt AN Al e [El o &
EERYERBRESIRRZEEEER"
N 78 A% % 35 30 A 28 B SRl E 2 FE W E 5 R
REBRFZEREER

o M 485 e < 5 Bl

2012 2011

HK$'M HK$'M

BEBT BEBT

Balance at beginning of the year FUE#H 11.1 20.1
Impairment loss recognised on receivables &Yt X IE R 2 il (B B9 18 3.8 5.7
Amounts recovered during the year FAWE ZKIEB (0.1) (1.7)
Amounts written off as uncollectible 1 85 & AW E 2 5RIB (1.0) (13.4)
Currency realignment B 0.3 0.4
Balance at end of the year FRER 14.1 11.1

The fair values of the Group’s trade receivables at 31 March
2012 approximate the corresponding carrying amounts due to
relatively short-term maturity.

AR AEERBKE ZERERZEHABY
B B ERIAER2012F3A31H 2 AF
EHEEEEREERS -
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24. Properties Held for/under 24. FefEth B2 B B
Development for Sale B
2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BEERERL BEAETT
Properties held for/under development EBENBIEREZER
for sale in Hong Kong IR
Discovery Bay development project =EERIER 1,006.8 1,409.3
Other projects Hib1E B 55.0 _
Properties held for/under development EBIBINSIEHE 2R
for sale outside Hong Kong e g rrianlly) b3 1,484.2 1,318.1
2,546.0 2,727.4
The carrying value of properties EV Rz EREERE:
shown above comprises:
Freehold KA SERE 1,484.2 1,318.1
Medium-term leases H AR 4 1,061.8 1,409.3
2,546.0 2,727.4
At the end of the reporting period, total borrowing costs REEHR 740888 7T (20114
capitalised in the properties held for/under development for 126 6B 8 BTT) Z BEERAD BIERE
sale were HK$74.0 million (2011: HK$126.6 million). The HEZERERBPWEZKA1,156.1
properties held for/under development for sale amounting to BEEIT (2011F :871. 6B 88 L) 2

HK$1,156.1 million (2011: HK$871.6 million) is expected to EHEZHR, ERPMEBHNIRE L
be recovered after twelve months from the end of the reporting K128 A & Uk [E] -

period.
25. Other Financial Assets 25.
(1) Amounts due from associates (1)

The amounts due from associates are unsecured, non-
trade nature, non-interest bearing and have no fixed
repayment terms. Except for an amount of HK$122.5
million (2011: HK$104.2 million) included in non-current
assets, the directors expected the remaining amount

will be settled within twelve months from the end of the
reporting period and the carrying values approximate
their fair values due to relatively short-term maturity.

At < il 5 E
M WAL 2 2 ) kO

FEUR B & N B FIB T EIER EB S
Iﬁgx%ﬁu)}zjﬁﬂ%l%%?ﬁﬁﬂoﬁ%
AAERBEE SFEI225HEH
JC (20114 : 1042E BB L) &5
TEHRE SR FRIA M A #R S BAR B AT 1 21R
AREE mMERZEREAEZIEHA
AR WERAESEE A TER
;go
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(11) Other financial assets

The directors consider the carrying amount of the
Group’s deposits, other financial assets and pledged
bank deposits to secure short-term bank loans at the end
of the reporting period approximate their corresponding
fair value due to relatively short-term maturity.

The amount due from jointly controlled entities are
unsecured, non-trade nature, non-interest bearing and
repayable on demand.

The bank deposits, both pledged and non-pledged, carry
interest at market rates.

26. Trade Payables, Provision and
Accrued Charges

Included in trade payables, provision and accrued charges are
trade payables of HK$191.1 million (2011: HK$226.7 million),
an aged analysis of which is as follows:

(ii)

26.

Hfth <5 7l B

BRI AEEEE HEERAAR
SEZES At EERANE
HREBRTERZ EERRITERR
HEPRZREEREARERFER

4+
o

FE UL [R] 42 5 B BE BROR T SR - 3F
BHHE RRUARFTREREE-

B R ERR 2 RITFERIETS

JEEHY

WEAH B 5 Mok ~ 48 M B
wt 2 H

ENESER BEMEABRATRERE
NESERFK191.18 &8 7T (20114 : 226.7
BEBIL)  HERE&EOWWT :

2012 2011

HK$'M HK$'M

BEET BEAET

Not yet due w7 EI| 5 132.8 174.6
Overdue: %80 H -

0 - 60 days 0 - 60X 34.0 39.7

61 — 90 days 61 - 90K 5.8 5.2

Over 90 days R EI0K 18.5 7.2

191.1 226.7

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 90 days.

The directors consider the carrying amount of trade
payables at the end of the reporting period approximate their
corresponding fair value due to relatively short-term maturity.

XEEm 2 FEERER/OX-

BRI BEEEE RESRRENE

FERFNHRER R REEEEERERF

4
o

(EREE=



The trade payables, provision and accrued charges include
provisions for certain construction obligations of HK$261.0
million (2011: HK$234.1 million). In the course of the property
development activities, the Group is obliged to construct
certain common or public facilities within the development
projects in accordance with the development plans approved
by the relevant authorities. Provision for such construction
costs has been made when a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of this obligation and the details of the movement
of the provision are set out below:

B BEER
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ENESER BEREAERABENSE
T AR ER#261.08 B/& T (2011
F:234188HTT) AEBETYEER
BB BEFR  ARBEBAE BRI ECE
BirE RBEBEANEZETAEEA
TRARHE o B - ARNES [ B 58 BT # th TE AT 7
2 SBIEL A ST RREEEK
AE B - TR 2 BB REIBES I
T

HK$'M

BEBIT

Balance at 1 April 2010 MR2010F4 A1 8 2 &5 280.0
Utilised during the year FAE A (45.9)
Balance at 31 March 2011 MR20114F3 A31H 2 &8k 234.1
Provided during the year FAEE 46.5
Utilised during the year FAEA (19.6)

Balance at 31 March 2012 MR2012453HA31H 2 &8 261.0
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27. Deferred Taxation

The following are the major deferred tax (liabilities) assets

recognised and movements thereon during the current and

prior reporting years:

27. WAL B IE

ATREBRZEIBELEHA (RE)EE

Fair value Distributable
Accelerated change of profits of
tax investment Tax a PRC
depreciation properties losses subsidiary Others Total
—B
WA
MEHRE BEME A9 iR
nE ATEEH REHE it # i st
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT
(note)
(PitzE)
At 1 April 2010 R2010F4A18 (198.3) (41.4) 52.6 (27.6) 119 (202.8)
Currency realignment EHRR (4.2) (1.6) 4.0 - 0.1 (1.7)
(Charge) credit to profit or loss (k) s A Bz (0.5) 45 3.2 - 0.2 74
Charge to investment revaluation 0B & B &
reserve - - - - 0.4) (0.4)
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 15)  tH& —FRHI B2 &)
(Hi#E15) 434 - - - 17.0 60.4
At 31 March 2011 R201143A31H (159.6) (38.5) 59.8 (27.6) 28.8 (137.1)
Currency realignment EHAR - (1.4) - - - (1.4)
Credit (charge) to profit or loss A (IR Ex 14.1 19 (30.7) - 24 (12.3)
Charge to investment revaluation 1B IEE S HE
reserve - - - - (0.2) (0.2)
At 31 March 2012 W201243A31H (145.5) (38.0) 29.1 (27.6) 31.0 (151.0)
Note: These mainly represent net deferred tax assets (liabilities) MeE: WhHEBRRATYEZREBEARER

recognised in relation to unrealised profit of certain property

development projects.

N TR ZREHIREE (AE)F

R



For the purposes of presentation in the consolidated statement
of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities
have been offset in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances
(after offset) for financial reporting purposes:

)
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REMEEPHMARME - B TREHIA
BERAEERASEZ @ BREHE-
UTRARMBE2|E N2 BEERIBEH
(HEHR) D ifr -

2012 2011

HK$'M HK$'M

BEETT BEET

Deferred tax liabilities BT IEEE (156.5) (144.7)
Deferred tax assets REFTEE B 5.5 7.6
(151.0) (137.1)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax
losses of HK$854.5 million (2011: HK$936.9 million) available
for offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of approximately HK$176.4 million
(2011: HK$362.4 million) of such losses. No deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of the remaining HK$678.1
million (2011: HK$574.5 million) due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has deductible
temporary differences of HK$178.7 million (2011: HK$169.0
million) arising from impairment losses recognised in respect
of property, plant and equipment. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in relation to such deductible temporary
difference as it is not probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences
can be utilised.

RBEBHR AEERFEATESES
854 5B & BT (20114 :936.9H & /8
J0) AT RIS R R s A e A 49176.4
BEBETT(2011F 3624688 T)EE
ERRIEERIEEE -BREETERERRK
/ﬁﬁ%lj/m)\ ’ .ﬁtlﬁ?ﬁ%%ﬁg678 1@%/%7%
(20114 : 574588 A T ) HRRLEHIBE
éo

RBERR AEEEYE  BE R&HE
ZEHERBERBESI B AR E R ER
178788 BT (20114 : 169.08 8%
TT) ° R EIR A FEER B A A A K 85 7]
Tﬂfﬂiﬁ’*ﬁ%%%ﬁ [ L 3 488 3t 5% 5 AT HORLEE
ERBRDEERIBEE -
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28. Bank and Other Loans

28. SRAT B HoAth B3k

2012 2011
HK$'M HKS$'M
BHEET BEBTT
Bank loans (note 1) IRITER (KIFED) 4,196.6 3,203.5
Bonds (note 2) &% (HI5E2) 216.2 319.6
4,412.8 3,523.1
Less: Amount included under current BETAREBIEEZEE (2
liabilities (including bank loans with FE AT BE R ZREZ KR
a repayable on demand clause) ZERITER) (3,704.9) (1,521.1)
Amount included under non-current SFAERBBEZ SR
liabilities 707.9 2,002.0
Bank and other loans are repayable: RITREMERER TS
HAPR (EE -
On demand or within one year BERKe—F RN 3,704.9 1,521.1
Between one to two years —FEMFR 216.2 1,682.4
Between two to five years MEERFA 491.7 319.6
4,412.8 3,523.1
Secured B HE 640.0 571.9
Unsecured 474 1 3,772.8 2,951.2
4,412.8 3,523.1
Notes: B

(1) At 31 March 2012, the Group’s bank borrowings carry interest
at an average margin of 0.75% (2011: 0.51%) plus Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) or other relevant interbank
offered rates.

(2)  During the year, a bond amounting to Japanese Yen 1.1 billion
(equivalent to HK$111.1 million) was fully repaid. At 31 March
2012, the bond carried interest at a margin of 2.0% (2011:
1.6%) plus the relevant interbank offered rates.

The directors consider the carrying amount of the Group's
bank and other loans at the end of the reporting period
approximates their corresponding fair value.

(1) M201243A318  AEBEETEER
0.75% (20114 : 0.51% ) 2 BB B =R
INEBRITRIZER S Lk L BRI
EFRBRFE -

(2 RER BEEFAHI1EBE (BERIILL
AEBIT) D ERBHERE - R201293 A
318 EFH1&2.0% (20114 : 1.6% ) 2 i
BRERINABIRITRERE Rt L -

EER5 RREHR AEBERTREM
ERREERLARATERS-
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29. Other Liabilities 29. H b £ fi5
2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEBT
Advances from non-controlling FEVERR IR B 2 B R (BT 5E)
shareholders (note) 462.9 320.0
Club debentures 2MES 866.5 863.8
Obligations under finance leases BB EAE 1.2 0.4
1,330.6 1,184.2
Less: Amount due within one year included & : st A8 B &2 —FE R E|
under current liabilities HAFRIR (14.9) (6.3)
Amount due after one year —F 1% B HiFkIE 1,315.7 1,177.9
Note: The amount represents advances from non-controlling Miek: ZERELAE THB AR 2 IEER
shareholders of certain subsidiaries to finance operations of RATIREET - AUBNZENEB AR
those subsidiaries. As at 31 March 2012, included in advances BB o R2012F3 A31 8 © JEFE R A%
from non-controlling shareholders are amounts of HK$422.9 RATIREEARBIEREL2298 8B T
million (2011: HK$285.0 million) and HK$28.9 million (2011: (20114 : 285.0E &#B7L) X289E &/
HK$28.9 million) which bear interest at 3-month HIBOR plus 70 (20114 : 28 9B & B L) @ 9 Al#E31E
2.5% and fixed rate of 7.0% per annum respectively. The AEEBRITRIZEREEI12.52 K EE
amounts are unsecured and are not repayable within one year. FEFETOEEFE - ZEFBRELIFR
The remaining balance is non-interest bearing, unsecured and BEAR—FRNEE -ABAAEE  EK
has no fixed term of repayment. 0 K2 4 [ TE AE SR
Club debentures are redeemable on their maturity dates, SESFINSERHEER  ZE3H
which are as follows: BT :
2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEATT
Within 1 year —F A 14.5 6.0
Over 1 year but within 5 years —FAEERFUR 28.0 453
Over 5 years and before 2047 FF LA _E 20474 2 Al 18.5 13.7
In 2047 2047 F 805.5 798.8

866.5 863.8
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These debentures are non-interest bearing, unsecured and WEEFHARE  ERBREITT T
are issued to members of the following clubs operated by the AASBEMEE  EMNEE -
Group:
2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEAETT
Discovery Bay Golf Club MRESBRKS 662.6 658.9
Discovery Bay Marina Club =B S 60.3 61.4
Discovery Bay Recreation Club R ERES
(formerly known as “Discovery Bay
Residents Club”) 143.6 143.5
866.5 863.8
Obligations under finance leases: Bh & TH & R E
Minimum lease Present value of
payments minimum lease payments
RIEEERHK BERAERNZRE
2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M

BBERL BEAT BEB#ER BEETL

Amounts payable under finance BMERETZENS®E:

leases:
Within one year —FR 0.5 0.3 0.4 0.3
In the second to fifth year inclusive ~E-ZHERF
(BEEEME) 0.9 0.1 0.8 0.1
1.4 0.4 1.2 0.4
Less: Future finance charges B BEEBER (0.2) -
Present value of lease obligations ~ FHEREZBE 1.2 0.4
Less: Amount due for settlement B —FERIBERZHE
within one year (shown under (FERBBE)
current liabilities) (0.4) (0.3)
Amount due for settlement —FRIBERZTE

after one year 0.8 0.1




The Group leases certain of its equipment under finance
leases. The average lease term is five to seven years. For the
year ended 31 March 2012, the average effective borrowing
rate was 9.6% (2011: 4% to 7%) per annum. Interest rates are
fixed at the contract date. All leases are on a fixed repayment
basis and no arrangements have been entered into for
contingent rental payments.

The directors consider the carrying amount of the Group'’s
other liabilities at the end of the reporting period approximates
their corresponding fair values.

30. Other Financial Liabilities

The directors consider that the carrying amount of the Group'’s
deposits received and other financial liabilities at the end of the
reporting period approximates their corresponding fair value
due to the relatively short-term maturity.

The amount due to an associate is unsecured, non-interest
bearing and has no fixed repayment terms.

Included in deposits received and other financial liabilities are
property sales deposits of HK$493.0 million (2011: HK$491.4
million) expected to be recognised in profit or loss within 12
months.

B B B &
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31. Share Capital

31. A

2012 & 2011
Number of
shares HK$'M
AR X BEAT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.25 each B EEC.25E T2
TR
Authorised: EERRA
At 1 April 2010, 31 March 2011 and M2010F4H1H »
31 March 2012 20113A318 &
201293 A31H 2,000,000,000 500.0
Issued and fully paid: EETREBRRKRA .
At 1 April 2010, 31 March 2011 and 2010F4H18
31 March 2012 20113A318 &
201243 A31H 1,350,274,367 337.5

32. Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a new share option scheme on 8
September 2011 which permits the directors of the Company
to grant options to all directors (including any executive
directors and non-executive directors), full-time employees
and consultants of the Company, its subsidiaries and/or its
associated companies to subscribe for shares in the Company.
No option has yet been granted under this scheme.

The share option scheme adopted by the Company on 3
January 2002 was terminated on 8 September 2011. The

said scheme permitted the directors of the Company to

grant options to all directors (including independent non-
executive directors), full-time employees and consultants of the
Company, its subsidiaries and/or its associated companies to
subscribe for shares in the Company. No option was granted
under this scheme.

32. Jif Jie W it 3k

ARRNBF2011FIABH LR T # i AL
g ZETEI R AR RESFAARRR - EHt
BRAk HEBERRZAEES (R
REMATESIOFATES)  2RIER
Ko BRI AT R AE AR X B R An 2 P LA o
It A8 2 I A (AT R AL -

RN B F2002F 1 A3 5 2 AR =1 8l
ER2011F9A8A K I - ZATEIBFFAR
RAEFEMARR HNBARK,SHE
BMERRZMBES (BREBIULIFNTE
%) 2BESMERRLATRBARRR
0 2 BB AR - 1t 5+ 810 AR AT B A



33. Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes long-term bank and other loans, short-term bank
loans and other borrowings as disclosed in Notes 28 and

29, net of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable
to owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital,
reserves and accumulated profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on

a periodic basis. As part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment
of dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as well as
the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

)
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34. Financial Instruments

Categories of financial instruments

34. &l T H
4Bl T H 2 Bl

2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BEBT BEATT
Financial assets TREE
Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) & A F{EF A=
Held for trading BIEEE - 0.2
Held-to-maturity investments REIHKRE 242.7 146.8
Derivative financial instruments, TESMITAE-
at fair value BEAYTE - 0.1
Loans and receivables (including BERMERE (21
cash and cash equivalents) RekBHeFEIER) 3,242.0 3,008.2
Available-for-sale financial assets, At EeRmEE"
at fair value BEATE 53.1 60.6
Financial liabilities TRAB
Amortised cost 3K A 6,062.9 5,045.0
Obligation under finance lease EERERE 1.2 0.4

Financial risk management objectives
and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include held-to-
maturity investments, available-for-sale financial assets,
trade receivables, other financial assets, amounts due from
associates, amounts due from jointly controlled entities,
pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash, trade
payables, deposits received and other financial liabilities,
amount due to an associate, bank and other loans and other
liabilities. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (currency risk, interest rate
risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

< b o A B H R S LR

ARETZSRMTABSREEIHKRE
AL ESREE REESENX Hthe
MEE  FEUE E R RIFRR - U RIS
BRI CEMRITER RITEHRLR
T BNEZERR EWReREMEHE
{8 e E R AR -~ RITREME KA
REMBIE - ZF SR TAFESHRARM
dezEeR T ARBAREREMSER
(B R M=ERNEOERRR)
EERBIANREE € B - 10 K%
FRBZBREN N -EEEEERE
B LR ARERNE LA RHETEE
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Currency risk

The Group does not have significant exposure to foreign
currency risk as majority of the Group’s sales and purchases
are denominated in currency which is the functional currency
of the respective group entities except for certain bank
balances, held-to-maturity investments and bank borrowings
which are denominated in foreign currency, other than the
functional currency of the respective group entities.

The carrying amounts of the group entities’ foreign currency
denominated assets and liabilities at the reporting date are as
follows:

EAEEBEREBEAR AT 2011/2012 F 3k
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BRETIRITESR FHE2IBIREMRTE
EWHNEHEBERINEESIIEN
AEBABHPBEEYNEREEER 2T
REERIE BAEEL BEATEAINE
EE 34 el Bt o

SEERNHREAIMNEIIECEERSE
BZEREEWT:

Assets Liabilities
BE =L
2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
Currency K BEBER BEBT HE#T BEBT
US dollar XL 4,621.0 4,897 4 - 216.8
Singapore dallar WL - 6.0 - =
Thai baht ik 487.3 3284 - 3319
Others Hith 2.1 5.2 - 2.6
Sensitivity analysis B T

The Group is mainly exposed to the currency risk of US dollar,

Singapore dollar and Thai baht.

AREBTEAXZETT WTRFEREEZ
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The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a

5% increase and decrease in the functional currency of

the respective group entities against the relevant foreign
currencies. 5% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting
foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnels and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation

at the year end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates.
The analysis illustrates the impact for a 5% weakening of the
functional currency of the respective group entities against
the relevant currency and a positive/negative number below
indicates an increase/decrease in profits for the year and in
exchange reserve. For a 5% strengthening of the functional
currency of the respective group entities against the relevant
currency, there would be an equal and opposite impact on the
profits for the year and exchange reserve.

TRAVNAEEUNEESEER 26
BN ARINEE R £ TIRENS5% 2 B
JZ o 5% AT EEIEABRNBERINEE
AREBAAZEHERR IREEEHER
AR AENE -FREINERRE

NINEF B 2 MARGEEE®EIAR W F
RFBEBMBEIARIRIER 25%EE) - T
DB ERRE TR 2 5 L A8k
SNEORUEDS % 2 T%E%/E%%ﬁ
A 0 M e BE G 2 32, R A < i
HREEER R ER LA ARE Mﬁﬁ

5% 2 FHE » RIS & A F 25 ) M B 5
ERER 2 EEFE -

Increase/(decrease) Increase in
in profits exchange reserve
mRE S GR) BE 7 R 1E
2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
Currency {3 HE#BT BEAT HE#ET BEAT
US dollar £ 314 38.2 199.6 195.7
Singapore dollar WL - 03 - =
Thai baht Rk - (16.6) 24.4 16.4

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as the

BEERS HRNFRERIL TERBRE
ANZ AR BERESTAETRKREELZ

year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the HNPE Bz o

year.



Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation
to held-to-maturity investments (see Note 20), fixed-rate bank
deposits and borrowings (see Notes 28 and 35) and fixed-
rate advance from non-controlling shareholder (see Note

29). The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate

risk in relation to variable-rate bank deposits and borrowings
(see Notes 28 and 35), variable-rate advance from non-
controlling shareholder (see Note 29) and mortgage instalment
receivables (see Note 21). It is the Group’s policy to keep its
borrowings at floating rate of interests so as to minimise the fair
value interest rate risk.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial assets and
financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note. The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk

is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of HIBOR or other
relevant interbank offered rates arising from the Group’s
borrowings.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative instruments

at the end of the reporting period. The variable-rate bank
deposits have been excluded from sensitivity analysis as the
management of the Group considered that the interest rate
fluctuation is not significant. For variable-rate bank borrowings,
variable-rate advance from non-controlling shareholder and
mortgage instalment receivables, the analysis is prepared
assuming the amount of liability and asset outstanding at the
end of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole year.
A 50 basis point increase or decrease is used when reporting
interest rate risk internally to key management personnels

and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.
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If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and all
other variables were held constant, the Group's:

° profit for the year ended 31 March 2012 would decrease/
increase by HK$18.6 million (2011: HK$14.4 million).
This is mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to
interest rates on its variable-rate bank borrowings and
mortgage instalment receivables.

The Group’s sensitivity to interest rates has increased from
prior year due to increase in bank borrowing.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to market price fluctuation through

its investments in both listed and unlisted securities. The
management manages this exposure by maintaining a
diversified portfolio. The level and volatility of the prices of
securities may be affected by general economic and market
conditions, such as interest rates, availability of credit, inflation
rates, economic uncertainty, changes in laws (including
taxation law), trade barriers, currency exchange controls, and
national and international political circumstances, if applicable.

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on

the exposure to price of securities investments at the reporting
date.

If the prices of the respective securities investments had been
5% higher/lower:

o investment revaluation reserve would increase/decrease
by HK$2.5 million (2011: HK$2.9 million) for the Group
as a result of the changes in fair value of available-for-
sale financial assets.

The Group’s sensitivity to available-for-sale investments and
held-for-trading investments has not changed significantly from
the prior year.

R EF THEOERS - TiFA £t
BYEFHTE AIAEE:
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144E8ET) - WHEEHNAEASE

B E7 BRITEE REUIRIE D H
K2 R R ATE -

AEBYUNF R Z HURER B
EHANRITEEE AR -

B G EIE N

H A0 (B 15 & k2
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Credit risk

As at 31 March 2012, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties and
financial guarantees provided by the Group is arising from:

° the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position; and

° the amount of contingent liabilities in relation to financial
guarantee issued by the Group as disclosed in Note 37.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade debt at the end of the reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

With respect to credit risk arising from amounts due from
associates, the Group reviews the recoverable amount at
the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. The
exposure to credit risk is limited.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk in connection with held-
to-maturity investment is limited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit ratings and corporates with strong
financial position.

Other than amounts due from associates amounting to
HK$181.5 million (2011: HK$195.3 million), the Group does
not have any other significant concentration of credit risk
over trade receivables. Trade receivables consist of a large
number of customers, spread across diverse industries and
geographical areas.
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Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group's
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant source
of liquidity. As at 31 March 2012, the Group has available
unutilised overdraft and bank loan facilities of approximately
HK$5.0 million (2011: HK$5.0 million) and HK$2,202.5
million (2011: HK$3,415.3 million) respectively.

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests

with the board of directors, which has built an appropriate
liquidity risk management framework for the management of
the Group’s short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity
management requirements.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities based on the agreed
repayment terms except for the bank loans with a repayable on
demand clause. For non-derivative financial liabilities, the table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows

of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay. The table includes both interest
and principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are
floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest
rate at the end of the reporting period.

mBE T RAR
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MEEEERRENRAREZERHTE
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Liquidity risk table nBEEERR
Repayable
on demand Total Carrying
or within 1-2 2-5 Over undiscounted amount at
1 year years years 5 years cash flows 31 March
BREXRH ®
—-%Rn ¥R  3A31AZ
BE —-EWE ZELf EENLE REKBE BREE
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEETL BEETL BEET BEET BEET
2012 20124
Non-derivative financial liabilities 3fT4 & & &
Trade payables B SRR
and accrued charges KT &R 217.3 - - - 217.3 217.3
Deposits received BlkizE
and other financial liabilities KEMEREE 80.4 - - - 80.4 80.4
Amount due to an associate FETE & N RIFAIR 23.0 - - - 23.0 23.0
Bank and other loans BAREMER
- variable rate —%E 3,744.1 229.8 500.6 - 4,474.5 4412.8
Other liabilities HwAE 15.1 490.3 17.1 823.9 1,346.4 1,330.6
Financial guarantee contracts B ERAN 166.5 - - - 166.5 -
4,246.4 720.1 517.7 823.9 6,308.1 6,064.1
2011 20114
Non-derivative financial liabilities JEfi4 &m&E
Trade payables BB SRR
and accrued charges R &R 2463 = = = 2463 2463
Deposits received BiiEe
and other financial liabilities FEMSREE 86.3 = = = 86.3 86.3
Amount due to an associate FETB & DRI FAIR 55 = - - 55 55
Bank and other loans %Eﬂ&ﬁi\ﬁﬁfﬁw
- variable rate —%E 1,567.3 1,692.7 3236 - 3,583.6 3,523.1
Other liabilities HinaE 6.3 345.1 275 816.0 1,194.9 1,184.2
Financial guarantee contracts BB EREN 160.4 = = = 160.4 =
2,072.1 2,037.8 351.1 816.0 5,277.0 5,045.4

As at 31 March 2012, all bank loans are classified in
respective time band based on the agreed repayment terms.

As at 31 March 2011, bank loans with a repayment on

demand clause were included in the “Repayable on demand

or within 1 year” time band in the above maturity analysis. The
aggregate undiscounted principal amounts of these bank loans
amounted to HK$333.9 million.

R2012F3 4318 ' FrARITEEHEREE
ZEHE AR5 88 - )R201143 A
318 - AJRERF BEREBIER ZBITEERT
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The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities is subject
to change if changes in variable interest rates differ to those
estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the
reporting period.

The amounts included above for financial guarantee contracts
are the maximum amounts the Group could be required to
settle under the arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if
that amount is claimed by the counterparty to the guarantee.
Based on expectations at the end of the reporting period, the
Group considers that it is more likely than not that no amount
will be payable under the arrangement. However, this estimate
is subject to change depending on the probability of the
counterparty claiming under the guarantee which is a function
of the likelihood that the financial receivables held by the
counterparty which are guaranteed suffer credit losses.

Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined as follows:

° the fair values of financial assets with standard terms
and conditions and traded on active liquid markets are
determined with reference to quoted market bid prices;
and

° the fair values of other financial assets and financial
liabilities (excluding derivative instruments) are
determined in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The consolidated financial statements include holdings in
unlisted shares which are measured at fair value (Note 20).
Fair value is provided by independent financial institutions or
fund managers. The valuation is generally based on the most
recent financial and market information of the underlying
investee or at cost as advised by the fund manager.
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35. Analysis of the Balances of Cash
And Cash Equivalents
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35. Bl N B4 SHIE H 4585
43 M

2012 2011

HK$'M HK$'M

BEEBT BEBTT

Bank balances and cash RITEBRNIE S 2,628.8 2,379.9

Included in the bank balances and cash at 31 March 2012
were bank deposits with maturity within 3 months from the
date of placement amounting to approximately HK$2,616.0
million (2011: HK$2,374.1 million).

The effective interest rate of the bank balances at 31 March
2012 were in the range of 0.01% to 3.75% (2011: 0.01%
to 2.60%) per annum. The directors consider the carrying
amount of the Group’s bank balances and cash at the end
of the reporting period approximates their corresponding fair
value.

36. Pledge of Assets
As at 31 March 2012, certain subsidiaries of the Group had

pledged property, plant and equipment with a carrying value of

HK$3.7 million (2011: HK$9.2 million) and bank deposits of
HK$3.1 million (2011: HK$2.9 million) respectively to secure
banking facilities granted to that certain subsidiaries.

R20124:3A318  RITEBR MRS BRER
2492,616.08 8B T (20114 :2,374.18
BRI N3MEA AR ZRITFR

RITHERR201293 A31A 2 ER AR £
FRR0.01EZE3.75E (20114 : 0.01EE
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FEESE-
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In addition, a fixed and floating charge was created over the
assets and undertaking of one of the Group’s subsidiaries (total
asset value as at 31 March 2012 was HK$72.9 million (2011:
HK$82.3 million)) to secure banking facility granted to that
particular subsidiary.

Certain subsidiaries of the Group had subordinated the inter-
company debts due from two subsidiaries in the total amount
of HK$666.8 million as at 31 March 2012 (2011: HK$506.7

million) to secure banking facilities granted to that particular

two subsidiaries.

37. Contingent Liabilities

N AEBEP —RMBARIZEER
I (20123318 2 B EHAEHT2.9
BEBT (2011F:823H&BL) ) B1E
EEKZEIRIT LS ZH B A ) E&IR

EE-

M2012%3A318 - A&EBE THEBARH
MR M BRI R 2 A EIBERA H£666.8
BEBT (201149 :506. 76 &8 L) 1E1R
BRE  UERZMKH B AR EERIERIT
EEZHEM-

37. AR A R

2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BEBT BEATT
Guarantees given, to the extent of the VA7 £ B AR 42t 3 AR PR
Group’s proportionate share, in respect ~ FLIRE QA I ERFITEEE
of banking facilities granted to an 2 ER
investee company 166.5 160.4

No financial guarantee has been recognised in the
consolidated financial statements as, in the opinion of

the directors, the fair value of the financial guarantee was
insignificant. No provision for financial guarantee contracts
have been made at the end of the reporting period as the
default risk is low.

EERA ARMBERIAFELTE
R BN AR M RR AR 52
R RE QAR - SR S BRI E
MBEREOELEE-
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38. Commitments 38. A&
2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEBTT
Contracted but not provided for in FEMBHRERPEEL
the consolidated financial statements BARE A
— expenditure in respect of properties —RBEREZEE
held for/under development for sale LRV EZEE 414.3 755.3
— capital expenditure in respect of —WEME BB REREZ
acquisition of property, plant and BAEYE
equipment 59.4 52.7
— others —HAh 159.1 1223
632.8 930.3
Authorised but not contracted for in e BmERPEE
the consolidated financial statements BREL
— capital expenditure in respect of — IR EME Y
acquisition of investment properties BAEYE - 40.1
— expenditure in respect of properties —BEHEZBE
held for/under development for sale BRPMEZHAE 149.8 137.6
— capital expenditure in respect of —WEEM B R
acquisition of property, plant and BAEYE
equipment 16.7 67.5
166.5 245.2
799.3 1,175.5
In addition, the outstanding capital commitments in respect of SN REBRAF ERER Z KT FER

the Group’s interest in Dazhongli is disclosed in Note 19. AEC R FEIOR H R
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39. Leasing Arrangements
The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payment under non-
cancellable operating leases in respect of land and buildings
which fall due as follows:

39. HHEZHE

AR ] 2 AR

RBEHR ARERBLHRETZT
A AT AR A TR S 2
RBIEH SR ELT -

2012 2011

HK$'M HK$'M

BEET BEATT

Within one year —F R 25.7 32.7
In the second to fifth year inclusive FE_EZERF

(BREEEME) 22.8 283

Over five years A& 3.5 5.6

52.0 66.6

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for its office premises and staff quarters. Leases are
negotiated for an average term of two years and rentals are
fixed for an average term of one to two years.

In addition, the Group is committed to leasing land in
Singapore where a hotel is situated for 86 years up to
February 2074. The annual lease payment is at the higher of
approximately HK$4.4 million or 5% of the total gross revenue
of the hotel.

KREHEHSDASERERDEYER
BEIEERN2EE HEFHETAH
2F  FHIE2FA-E T E -

IEESN - AN 62 [ B AGE T A I 3R — 1R
J& P B < 30 - 78 B R864F - £207442 4
fEm - BFRHBEENIAAEBTIEE
B 25% (NRSERE) -



The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned from investment properties and
other properties during the year was in aggregate HK$315.0
million (2011: HK$371.1 million), of which HK$310.6 million
(2011: HK$367.6 million) was generated from investment
properties of the Group. Investment properties and other
properties with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$6,166.8
million (2011: HK$6,166.2 million) were held for rental
purposes at the end of the reporting period. Depreciation
charge for the year in respect of other properties was HK$1.3
million (2011: HK$1.3 million). The properties held have
committed tenants for a period from one to thirteen years. At
the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with
tenants for the following future minimum leases payments
under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as

EAEEBEREBEAR AT 2011/2012 F 3k
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AL ] % th RN

BEMEREMYERFNBRIZ W
ALl AA £ A315.088% T (2011
F:371.188Bm)  HF3106EEETT
(20114 : 367.6BBE L) REANEERE
ME - NS HIR  IREES £6,166.88
BT (20114 :6,166. 2B BB L) 2% &
MEREMYEDBERERR - AFE
NEBEMYMEZTESZ T AL BEET
(2011F : 1.3 BEBHBL) - FEEWEAD
AANHEBHIZIZFERE - NS IR -
AEBMEREFTALETL  MIRE AT
HEEHEN THEREEIE 2 AR RER
BRI

follows:

2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BEBT BEBT
Within one year —F A 215.3 234.5

In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EZFERF
(BREERMF) 127.8 161.2
Over five years hF1& 16.6 225

359.7 418.2
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40. Retirement Benefits Schemes

A.

Hong Kong

In order to comply with Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme Ordinance, a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) with employer’s voluntary
contributions has been established on 1 December
2000.

For the members of the MPF Scheme, the Group
contributes 5% of the relevant payroll costs to the MPF
Scheme, which contribution is matched by the employee.

The amount charged to profit or loss represents
contributions payable of HK$16.3 million (2011:
HK$15.5 million) to the MPF Scheme by the Group at
rates specified in the rules of the schemes less forfeitures
of HK$1.7 million (2011: HK$2.6 million) arising from
employees leaving the Group prior to completion of the
qualifying service period.

At the end of the reporting period, there is no forfeited

contributions, which arose upon employees leaving the
retirement benefits schemes and which are available to
reduce the contributions payable in future years (2011:
nil).
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PRC and Overseas B. % A
The employees of the Group in the PRC and overseas are REBFREKGIMEE BRBBEEE
members of state-managed retirement benefit schemes R B 25 BT E R 2 B AR
operated by the respective local governments in relevant BAFTEI 2K E - ANEBEKETEK
jurisdictions. The Group is required to contribute and R ZIETE B DL ¥ B REET 8¢ 5RIA HE
recognise a specified percentage of payroll costs to the RIEBEBEANGTEZES -FUF
schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligations of FEIME  AEECE—EERIER
the Group with respect to these schemes are to make FT#RTE < B3k - WARBR X AT 8l 2 1&3K
the specified contributions and recognise the respective REBEBREAERE ZRERRSTAZR
retirement pay in accordance with terms set out in the N
schemes and relevant jurisdiction requirements.
The total cost charged to profit or loss in respect of the MR BEREEER ZFTEINER
above-mentioned schemes in the relevant jurisdictions k2 AR 4)10.8F &8 7T (2011
amounted to approximately HK$10.8 million (2011: F:9458BTT) °
HK$9.4 million).
Principal Subsidiaries, Associates 41. FEW B A 7] -~ B A w]
and Jointly Controlled Entities R 3k [\] 422 ) B
Details of principal subsidiaries incorporated and have (a) ERBEIMKIEEEZEENBEA
their principal place of operation in Hong Kong are as AIFFIB R
follows:
31.3.2012 31.3.2011
Equity Equity
Nominal value interest Nominal value interest
of issued attributable of issued attributable
share capital to the Group share capital to the Group
Name of company BRARE TEEHE BETRA REBEHEAE  Principal activities
NGES: ZHEE 2R ZEE ZRE  FEEE
HK$ % HK$ %
BT R BT BAt
Allmedco Group Limited 1,500,000 45.6* 1,500,000 456 Medical and dental
equipment and supplies
BERTHRERMLER
AmMed Cancer Center (Central) 2 100 2 100 Cancer treatment operator

Limited

BIABRRA
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31.3.2012 31.3.2011
Equity Equity
Nominal value interest Nominal value interest
of issued attributable of issued attributable
share capital to the Group share capital to the Group
Name of company BRAIRA FEAHEF BEIRA AEEHEE  Principal activities
INSE: ZHE b4t ZEE JRE FERE
HK$ % HK$ %
B EE BT BAL
AmMed Hong Kong Limited 10,000 100 10,000 100 Investment holding
ZPERABRARAH RERR
AmMed (Hong Kong Island Center) 868 92.17 868 217 Cancer treatment operator
Limited (ceased operation on
30 November 2011)
BIEREENE
(20115114308
EILEE)
Discovery Bay Property Limited 2 50* 2 50* Property agency services
WRENEARAF mERERS
(formerly known as
“DbAY Service Limited"*)
(AIBA MR ENFER
BRAR*)
Discovery Bay Commercial 2 50* 2 50* Leasing agent
Services Limited HERE
WREBEREERAR
Discovery Bay Enterprises Limited 400,000 50* 400,000 50*  Operation of a shipyard
ey e
Discovery Bay Financial Services 2 50* 2 50* Provision of financial services
Limited to first hand purchasers of
BRENEREERAR properties in Discovery Bay
AR E-FERRE#R
BRI
Discovery Bay Golf Club Limited 2 50* 2 50* Provision of club facilities
hRERRXReERAR REEHR
Discovery Bay Hotel Limited 2 50* 2 50* Hotel operator
BEEE
Discovery Bay Marina Club Limited 2 50* 2 50* Provision of club facilities

BREEREARAT

RS MRS
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31.3.2012 31.3.2011
Equity Equity
Nominal value interest Nominal value interest
of issued attributable of issued attributable
share capital to the Group share capital to the Group
Name of company BRIRE FEAHF BEIRA AEEHE  Principal activities
INSE: ZHfE b4t ZEfE JRE FERE
HK$ % HK$ %
B EE BT ARk
Discovery Bay Recreation Club 2 50* 2 50* Provision of club facilities
Limited (formerly known as Rtte e
“Discovery Bay Residents
Club Limited"##)
BRERESERA R
Discovery Bay Road Tunnel 2 50* 2 50* Road tunnel operation
Company Limited BELE
BREREERAT
Discovery Bay Services 2 50* 2 50*  Estate management
Management Limited ERER
WEEREERERAT
Discovery Bay Transit Services 2 50% 2 50*  Provision of bus services
Limited REBLRSE
BRERARBEERAR
Discovery Bay Transportation 2 50* 2 50*  Provision of ferry services
Services Limited TR B R
BREMERBERAR
Fame Wood Limited 2 100 2 100 Property investment
EIRBRAA NERE
Frosmate Company Limited 2 100 2 100 Investment holding
REBERAR RERR
Gemsbok Limited 2 100 2 100 Investment holding
RERR
Grace Investment Limited 2 100 2 100 Property investment
EEREARAA NERE
Greenyield Limited 2 100 2 100 Property investment
THERAR] NERE
Hagent Investment Limited 2 100 2 100 Property investment

ERRARRAH

ESIE



HKR International Limited Annual Report 2011/2012

220

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A MRS IR R M 5T
For the year ended 31 March 2012 #ZE201243A31H ItEE

31.3.2012 31.3.2011
Equity Equity
Nominal value interest Nominal value interest
of issued attributable of issued attributable
share capital to the Group share capital to the Group
Name of company BRAIRA FEAHEF BEIRA AEEHEE  Principal activities
INSE: ZHE b4t ZEE JRE FERE
HK$ % HK$ %
B EE BT BAL
Health & Care Dental Clinic Limited 8,708,433 57.05 8,708,433 57.05 Development and operation of
ERTHEBAERAT dental clinics
TRYRERREE
Health & Care Group Limited 1,133,334 57.05 1,133,334 57.05 Investment holding and its
BREEEEERAA subsidiaries are engaged
in operation of dental clinic
chain
REZR MERBAR
At = e TR
D
Healthway Medical Centres Limited 1 100 1 100 Provision of medical services
eBEEROERAR REERRE
Hong Kong Health Resort Limited 4 100 4 100 Property investment
NERE
Hong Kong Resort Company 212,950,000.5** 50 212,950,000.5* 50*  Investment holding and
Limited property development
EREEERAA] REBRENZER
HKR Limited 2 100 2 100 Property management
BERENEARAA MEER
HKR Capital Partners (HK) Limited 2 100 2 100 Advisory services
Bl
Lam Island Development Company 2,000,000 99.99 2,000,000 99.99 Property development
Limited NEER
HRESERAR]
Lee Wo Company, Limited 300,000 100 300,000 100 Property investment
MABRAT NERE
Parocka Investments Limited 20 100 20 100 Property development

NEEE
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31.3.2012 31.3.2011
Equity Equity
Nominal value interest Nominal value interest
of issued attributable of issued attributable
share capital to the Group share capital to the Group
Name of company BRAIRA FEAHEF BEIRA AEEBE  Principal activities
INSE: ZHE 2 ZEE ZLRE FERE
HK$ % HK$ %
B EE BT BAL
Pearl Development Limited 2 100 2 100 Property investment
BEXRERAA NERE
Qualigenics Medical Limited 3,000 80 3,000 80 Clinic operator in diabetic
REBEERAA and endocrine disorders
and provision of cardio
treatment
TER R M7 R 8 D B
EREMEHE
Quebostage Limited 2 100 2 100 Property investment
BRERAR NERE
Rich Deal Limited 2 100 2 100 Investment holding
BEERAF RERR
Royston Investment Limited 2 100 2 100 Investment holding
WREEREERAR RERR
Scoot Development Limited 1 100 1 100 Investment holding
RERR
Smaragdine Limited 2 100 2 100 Property development
NEER
TCS Project Management Limited 2 100 2 100 Property development project
management
NEERBEEE
Wells Estate Services Limited 100,000 100 100,000 100 Property management and
EiemERBERAR estate manager
NEERREDER
Wells Property Management Limited 1,000 100 1,000 100 Property management and
EiEMEERERAR estate manager
NEERREDER
Yintaly Construction Company 2 100 2 100 Property investment

Limited
EFRETRARAT

ESIE
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* According to the shareholders’ agreement of Hong Kong
Resort Company Limited (“HKRC"), the Group is able to
control more than half of the voting powers of the board
of directors (which makes the financial and operating
decisions) of HKRC and its subsidiaries.

o In addition to 1 ordinary share of par value of HK$0.25
each, 100% in the value of HK$212,950,000.0 deferred
shares are also held by the Group (see note).

Note: The deferred shares held by the Group are shares
whose shareholders are neither entitled to receive
notices, attend, vote at any general meetings nor
to receive any dividend out of operating profit and
have very limited rights on return of assets of the
companies.

W Allmedco Group Limited (“Allmedco”) is classified as
a subsidiary of the Company as it is a 80% — owned
subsidiary of Health & Care Group Limited (“H&C”) while
in turn is a 57.05% — owned subsidiary of the Company.
The Company has control over the board of directors of
H&C and Allmedco.

N N

#  Renamed to Discovery Bay Property Limited 181 & /&4 %
AR A A with effect from 23 February 2012.

##  Renamed to Discovery Bay Recreation Club Limited 1§ &
EEELE @ A R A F] with effect from 21 July 2011.

* %

##

H#iH

REFEEERZARQA ([FEH
£ 1) ZBR W% - A B LA
BEEXLEMBRARAZERES
(P BREEZRE) BBYEZ

wERE-

BB A SRAEE0.25%8 T2 1%
BRI - AN B IR E 100% B E
212,950,000.0/8 7T 2 IEE 1D (R
BisE) o

et : ARERAZRLERND IR
BRNERNZEHRRAS
RIRBERAE ERE - IE
R U B {te 2 & | h 20 I
MBS REFERU R
BIFRBRCEENECHE
e

i 7 Allmedco Group Limited
([Allmedco |) BlEREEEES
RATF ([MER]) HEE80%HE =
ZWEBAE - mEREIRARF
HEH57.05% w2 B RR - )
Allmedcot D EE AR R R ZHE A
A o NR A ER K Allmedcoz E
ZEEEHE-

B201242 A 23 H & % A Discovery
Bay Property Limited 161 5 /& ¥ %8
RAFA-

B201147 A21 H ¥ £ ADiscovery
Bay Recreation Club Limited 1§15 /&
RESERAR -
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Details of other principal subsidiaries are as follows: (b) EmEZMBRRFBUT:
31.3.2012 31.3.2011
Nominal value Nominal value
Place of Principal of issued Equity interest of issued Equity interest
incorporation/ place of share capital/ attributable share capital/ attributable
registration operation registered capital to the Group registered capital to the Group
Name of company L/ IBLE BRITRE/ KEAHEZ BETRA/ REEEAZ  Principal activiies
NGERS B ik EMEAZEE g AfEAZEE BE  FEXH
% %
EEx4 BAlt
Abraham Holdings Limited Liberia Hong Kong Nil 100 Nil 100 Securities investment
M2 B & & BHRE
Abraham Investment British Virgin Note* Us$1 100 US$1 100 Securties investment
Holdings Limited Islands i £S5 & EARE
ERERRES
AmMed International Cayman Islands Note** US$179,999.96 100 1US$179,999.96 100 Investment holding and its
Corporation Lid. HERS Bz 179,999.96% 7t 179,999.96% ¢ subsidiaries are engaged
in operation of ambulatory
cancer diagnosis and
treatment centers
REER MAKEARRE
ERRDMRAERD
Bathroom & Kitchen Supplies  Australia Australia A$329,861 100 A$329,861 100 Marketing of bathroom
Piy. Lid. i M 329,8618 39862 products
AERREH
Beaufort Holdings Limited Cayman Islands Note** HK$10,197,932 100 HK$10,197,932 9328 Investment holding
HEHE i 10,197,932 1t 10,197 932 RERR
Beaufort International Hotels Singapore Singapore $$1,000,000 100 $$1,000,000 100 Investment holding
(Singapore) Pte Ltd M A JPY420,240,000 JPY420,240,000 RERR
1,000,0008 7t 1,000,000 70
420,240,000 420,240,008
Beaufort Sentosa Development  Singapore Singapore $$143,011,794 100 S$143.011,794 9364 Hotel operation
Pte Ltd FIR b 143,011,794 70 143,011, 79450 BEEE
CDW Building Limited Cayman Islands Hong Kong HK$5,100,002 100 HK$5,100,002 100 Property investment
RS & 5,100,002 7T 510000257 NERE
Chinadental Investments Ltd British Virgin Note** Us$1 100 US$1 100 Investment holding
Islands i IE3 %1 REER
AEERRES
Concord Management Co., Ltd.  Thailand Thailand Baht2,000,000 100 Baht2,000,000 100 Serviced apartment
ZE ZE 2,000,000% & 2,000,000% & management
RBAETER
Cosmo Glamour Limited British Virgin Note** Us$1 100 US$1 100 Investment holding
Islands (ifa IESH %7 RERR

AEERRER
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31.3.2012 31.3.2011
Nominal value Nominal value
Place of Principal of issued Equity interest of issued Equity interest
incorporation/ place of share capital/ attributable share capital/ attributable
registration operation registered capital to the Group registered capital to the Group
Narme of company ek TEYE BEFBRE/ FEAREL BETRA/ REEHEZ  Principal activities
NGERES Bk ik AMER2EE BE  AfEZzEE hiE FEXH
% %
ERx4 Bl
D.B. Properties Inc. British Virgin Note** Us$1 100 US$1 100 Investment holding
Islands i 17 1%7 REER
ERERRES
GenRx Holdings Limited British Virgin Note** Us$1 100 US$1 100 Investment holding
BhERERAR Islands (i %7 %1 REER
ZBRBARER
Great Wisdom Holdings Limited ~ British Virgin Note** Us$1 100 US$1 100 Investment holding
Islands (i IESH 1T REER
ABEBARES
Hanbright Assets Limited British Virgin Note** Us$1 100 US$1 100 Investment holding
Islands i 17 %7 RERR
ERERRES
Health & Care (Macau) Dental ~ Macau Macau MOP25,000 57.05 MOP25,000 5705  Operational of dental clinics
Group Limited & i 25,0002 1T 25,0002 T in Macau
B (RF) TREEERAH ERFEETND M
Healthway Philippines Inc. Philippines Philippines PHP19,137,500 100 PHP19,137,500 100 Investment holding
FeE FEE 19,137,500 2% 191375005k 2% REER
HK Resort International Limited ~ Cayman Islands Note** HK$2 100 HK$2 100 Investment holding
FRE#S i 2En 28T REER
HKR Asia-Pacific Pte Ltd Singapore Singapore $$5,000,000 100 $$5,000,000 100 Investment holding
A AR JPY6,547,780,000 JPY5,447,780,000 RERR
Baht24,700,000 Baht24,700,000
5,000,0004% 1T 5,000,000% T
6,547,780,0000 5,447,780,0008
24,700,000% 24.700,000% 5%
HKR China Limited British Virgin Note** Us$1 100 US$1 100 Investment holding
BEEZTEARAR Islands (i3 IESH 1% REER
ABERRES
HKR Japan Co., Ltd. Japan Japan JPY1,000,000 100 JPY1,000,000 100 Property investment
B A& 1,000,000H 1,000,000E & NERE
HKR Japan KK Japan Japan JPY10,000 100 JPY10,000 100 Investment
BA A% 10,0008 8 100005 kg
HKRJ Development Co., Ltd. ~ Japan Japan JPY10,000 100 JPY10,000 100 Investment
BA AR 10,0005 & 10,0000 E &
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31.3.2012 31.3.2011
Nominal value Nominal value
Place of Principal of issued Equity interest of issued Equity interest
incorporation/ place of share capital/ attributable share capital/ attributable
registration operation registered capital to the Group registered capital to the Group
Narme of company ek TEYE BEFBRE/ FEAREL BETRE/ REEHEZ  Principal activities
NGERES Bk ik AMER2EE BE  AfEFzEE kg FEXH
% %
ERx4 BAl
HKR Shanghai Limited British Virgin Note** Us$1 100 US$1 100 Investment holding
FEEX LERRAR Islands G %% IESH REER
ERERRES
HKRJ Akasaka TMK Japan Japan JPY2,700,100,000 100 JPY2,700,100,000 100 Property investment
BA A 2,700,100,0008 E 2,700,100,0008 NERE
HKRJ Roppongi TMK Japan Japan JPY3,800,200,000 100 JPY2,700,200,000 100 Property investment
B AR 3,800,200,0006 & 2,700,200,0008 NERE
HMC, Inc. Philippines Philippines PHP10,250,000 100 PHP10,250,000 100 Provision of medical services
FaE FEE 10,250,000 2% 10,250,000 28 RERBERSE
A Bz
Hojo Pte. Ltd. Singapore Singapore JPY1,864,010,000 100 JPY1,325,100,000 100 Investment holding
Mg AR 1,864,010,000H E 1,325,100,000E & RERR
ERZABRATH PRC PRC US$22,000,000 100 US§22,000,000 100 Manufacturing of bathroom
i 1 22,000,000% 7t 22,000,000% T products
EERERR
Impulse Bathroom United Kingdom United £320,000 100 £320,000 100 Marketing of bathroom
Products Lid. 3 Kingdom 320,000% & 320,000 products
5E RAERREH
Mantle Investments Limited British Virgin Note* US$1 100 US$1 100 Securities investment
Islands i 17 IE BHRE
ABEERES
Maxbright Pte. Ltd. Singapore Singapore S$1 100 81 93.64  Property holding
R A n B NERE
National Asset Limited British Virgin Note*** Uss1 100 US$1 100 Marketing of bathroom
Islands Bk jES 1% products
ABEARES AERRES
Qurs Sanitary Ware Ltd* United Kingdom United £3,500,001 100 - - Manufacturing of sanitary
5H Kingdom 3,500,001 8 ware
%8 ZAgE
Prinia Pte Ltd Singapore Singapore $$2 100 5$2 100 Investment holding
HR A Wi 287 REBR
Ruthin Investments Pte Ltd Singapore Singapore S$2 100 S$2 100 Property investment
R Gk JPY1,362,730,000 JPY1,362,730,000 NERE
Wi 2RTT
1,362,730,000H 1,362,730,0008
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31.3.2012 31.3.2011
Nominal value Nominal value
Place of Principal of issued Equity interest of issued Equity interest
incorporation/ place of share capital/ attributable share capital/ attributable
registration operaﬂon registered capital to the Group registered capital to the Group
Name of company ek TEYE BEFBRE/ FEAREL BETRA/ REEHEZ  Principal activities
NA%HR B ik EMEAZERE fRiE &R HfE BE  FEXH
% %
ERx4 R4
Sathorn Park Co., Ltd. Thailand Thailand Baht933,600,000 100 Baht933,600,000 9.47  Hotel operation and owner
RE RE 933,600,000% 5% 933,600,000% ¢ BEREREE
Spa Botanica Pte Ltd Singapore Singapore $$2 100 5$2 100 Provision of spa botanical
M s Wi 27 services
REkBERE
Suki Pte. Ltd. Singapore Singapore S$1 100 S$1 100 Investment holding
AR AR JPY508,000,000 JPY367,500,000 RERR
i B
508,000,000 A 367,500,008
Viva Fund Services Limited Cayman Islands Note*** US$1 100 US$1 100 General partner
REHE (i IE3 IES N
Viva Investment Advisory Cayman Islands Note*** US$1 100 US$1 100 Investment advisory
Limited REES it 1%E5n 1% REARH
B2 (LE)ERERAA®  PRC PRC US$14,000,000 100 US$14,000,000 100 Property investment
# B 14,000,000£ 7 14,000,000%7% NERE
B (L8)8RER PRC PRC US$1,500,000 100 US$1,500,000 100 Property management and
BRARH # & 1,500,000% 7 1,500,000% 7T consultancy services
NEEEREMRS
& These companies are engaged in securities investment * IERRREREB 2 BLHFREE
business of the Group and have no specific principal % REAMEARECEEEEME -
place of operation.
**  These companies act as investment holding companies > ERRAKREERKRAR BWMR
and have no specific principal place of operation. EREZEEEEHE -
***  These companies have no specific principal place of o WERNBNDRBEREL FEEEM
business. e
# The company was incorporated during the year ended 31 # REE201243H31H 1k
March 2012. ¢f§ﬁ5€_\L o

Y These companies are wholly foreign owned enterprises.

o WERRREINELE-
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Details of principal associates are as follows: FEBEQRFBOT
31.3.2012 31.3.2011
Attributable Attributable
interest held interest held
Place of by the Group by the Group
Name of company incorporation KEBF#H AEBFFF  Principal activities
AGIEA B 2 3 B FE 15 75 EhEs IEXEH
% %
B BAtt
Hanison Construction Cayman Islands 49 49  Construction, property
Holdings Limited HERS development, property
EE el grERAER AR investment and sales of
health products
BE-NEER WERER
RRERHE
Morpheus Real Estate Cayman Islands 20 20 Investment holding and its
Fund L.P. HEHS subsidiaries are engaged
in property investment in
Japan
REERRENB AR
RATRENERE
Polyoung Limited Hong Kong 31 31 Provision of financial services
BRBR AR BB to first hand purchasers of
Coastal Skyline
AEXRER—FEXR
R B R
Tung Chung Station Hong Kong 31 31  Property development
Development Company e MEEE

Limited
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(d) Details of principal jointly controlled entities are as (d) FEHEIEHIEBFBOT:
follows:
31.3.2012 31.3.2011
Attributable Attributable
interest held interest held
Place of by the Group by the Group
Name of company incorporation K& AEBMEF  Principal activities
NGIEY ] BRI AvE:E: FE 18 & ElhEs IEEH
% %
Atk BOt
Dazhongli Properties Limited  British Virgin 50 50  Property investment
AR ENMEERAT Islands MERE
KEARRES
B (L8 BiE PRC 50 50  Property development
ERAERLDA HE MERE
HE (LR EHE PRC 50 50  Property development
ERBERAR HE NRER
BY(LB)RIE PRC 50 50  Property development
ERAERLA HE MEZRE
City Grace Co., Ltd. Thailand 49¢ 49*  Property investment
R NERE
City Virtue Co., Ltd.** Thailand 49¢ - Property investment
ZE NWERE



*

These companies are wholly foreign owned enterprises.

** The jointly controlled entity was incorporated during the year
ended 31 March 2012.

# Pursuant to the joint-venture agreements of the jointly
controlled entities, the respective board of directors of
the jointly controlled entities decides on key financial and
operating matters on simple majority. The Group and the
joint venture partner each holds 50% of the voting right and
hence the directors of the Company consider the Group and
the joint venture partner exercise joint control over the jointly
controlled entities.

All of the above principal subsidiaries, associates and
jointly controlled entities, other than Abraham Holdings
Limited, Beaufort Holdings Limited, Chinadental
Investments Ltd., D.B. Properties Inc., Great Wisdom
Holdings Limited, Hanbright Assets Limited, HKR China
Limited, HK Resort International Limited and HKR Asia-
Pacific Pte Ltd, are held indirectly by the Company.

The above tables list the subsidiaries, associates and
jointly controlled entities of the Group which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results or
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries,
associates and jointly controlled entities would, in the
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

Other than club debentures as set out in Note 29,
no other loan capital has been issued by any of the
subsidiaries.

EAEEBEREBEAR AT 2011/2012 F 3k
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O REATRRIELE-

= b R I B B A B = 201243 A31
HIEFEEKSL

# REBUSHAZEHNERZAEHE
HEARZHER EETSUBES
BOREIRMBREETH A5H
He SR HRFFE0%RRE AN
ARAEERR AEERZEER
HAEU S RE S B BT AR
e

¥k Abraham Holdings Limited *
Beaufort Holdings Limited *
Chinadental Investments Ltd.

D.B. Properties Inc. * Great Wisdom
Holdings Limited * Hanbright Assets
Limited - EEBEHRBEBRAA]
HK Resort International Limited 52 HKR
Asia-Pacific Pte Ltd¥h - FiltFTE £ B
MEBAR EEQR RARZEGIER
HEAQRIEERE -

EERR LRMIAEEZHBA
A BE QR R ARIERI BRI H A
SECRENEERRTIERE-E
ERG WL EMNE AR B
REAIRAFZEHERABEN TR

BRBTFE29PT 5 2 B AT E 51 A&
Z KB AR EFITEMEERA
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42. Related Party Transactions 42. R 5

During the year, other than balances with related parties as MrérE B ISAR R R ET R B3 A = 2 A5 54

shown in the consolidated statement of financial position, AN REEFRERFEATEITZCEAR

the Group had significant transactions with related parties as S0

follows:

(A) Transactions with entities controlled by certain (A) BEEFRBET(KARRESA
discretionary trusts of which five directors of the HEBEXmA) riEdlc BE8ET
Company are among the discretionary beneficiaries. R ZEEAERZEERBEAR
Such trusts have controlling beneficial interests in these A Em TR

entities and the Company:

2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEATT
Transaction with the entities: HZEER IS
Rental income received by the Group 7% B Y ER 2 & WA 2.8 2.2
Management service fee received by ANEEWE 2 B REE
the Group 1.4 1.3

Other services provided by the Group 7<% E42 (2 E 1th AR 75 0.1 —
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(B) Transactions with associates and jointly controlled entites ~ (B) fEANE @B A T R LRI =S Y

of the Group R
During the year, the Group had significant transactions with FR - ANEBEEBE QA LR
associates, jointly controlled entities and non-controlling ERRASEE—HBA 723'5? -3
shareholder of a subsidiary of the Group as follows: BEZERRSWT :
2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BEBT BEBIT
Aggregate transaction value BRAAEE SRS QA
in respect of the following (ELf5E| #HHXEBE 7)) &
transactions entered into by the HENBARETATIRS 2
Group with an associate, Hanison RP4BIE:
Construction Holdings Limited,
and its subsidiaries:
— construction service fees —BERGE 242.0 192.3
— renovation service fees —RERBE - 0.1
Provision of services to an associate [R5 & 2 A2 it R 5 0.1 0.1
Management fee and other [m) B & R B UMEL 2
operating service fees received ERENAMELEREE
from associates 7.8 5.0
Management fee and other m) £ B 12 I B BB YL 2
operating service fees received EEENHMEEREGE
from a jointly controlled entity 23.5 21.4
Interest income received from an ML A RIE Z F B A
associate 0.3 0.5
Interest income received from jointly A1 3% A 12 | & 88 UL ER 2
controlled entities FEHA 14.4 55
Interest expense paid to a mME—MMBARZ
non-controlling shareholder FIERBRMNZ
of a subsidiary FERX 12.8 4.8

Carpark rental paid to an associate  [AIE & A RS2 2
FEHHES - 0.4
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(C) compensation of key management personnel (C) x=zzm AEWHS
The remuneration of directors and other members of key BEERHMFEEEIRMKERF RN
management during the year is as follows: oy NE
2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEAT
Short term employee benefits EHES A
Fees ik 2.1 2.1
Salaries and other benefits Fe kHEMER 21.2 20.9
Performance related incentive 1R R
payments 7.8 24.3
31.1 47.3
Post-employment benefit BBz 1E
Retirement benefits schemes RIREFIFT B
contributions 0.8 0.9
31.9 48.2
The remuneration of directors and key executives is BEENFETBRABZMEBEFHNE
determined by the remuneration committee having Eg2E{@R8 TRIBAMEBHE
regard to the performance of individuals and market ETE °

trends.



43. Information of Financial Position
of the Company

Information of the Company’s condensed statement of
financial position is as follows:

ERAXEREESRAA 2011/2012 43§
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43. A 7] 2 B R DL R

ARB 2 ERARBARRKRERAT :

2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEBT
Non-current assets EMENEE 4,792.1 3,731.3
Current assets M EE 6,424.3 6,800.4
Current liabilities MEAE (7,824.3) (6,970.6)
Net current liabilities MEBAEFE (1,400.0) (170.2)
3,392.1 3,561.1

Capital and reserves IR R
Share capital fig A 337.5 3375
Reserves f#E 3,054.6 3,223.6
3,392.1 3,561.1

Loss for the year ended 31 March 2012 of the Company
amounted to approximately HK$20.5 million (2011: HK$10.9
million).

Under the Company Law (Revised) Chapter 22 of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium of the Company is available for
distribution or paying dividends to shareholders subject to

the provisions of its memorandum and articles of association
and provided that immediately following the distribution of
dividends, the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall
due in the ordinary course of business. In accordance with
the Company'’s articles of association, dividends can only be
distributed out of the accumulated profits of the Company of
HK$1,513.6 million as at 31 March 2012 (2011: HK$1,682.6
million).

KAFEHE201263A31H IEFE 2 EE
4 /52058 88T (20114 : 109E &8
JC) °

REFRSHEF22FTNANE (KB
R B Z 1D & B Al 4 2 R T I 3R ok [A) f%
RIREMRE - WA AR AHZER A
RERZBAMEFTRR - i ZEEKE 1% -
RARBRENEENBEERKINBZE
B REBEARGCERMR EJEAR
AIR201243A318 A&1,513.668/8 T
(20114 : 1,682.6 B &EBITL) 2 Rt AlH

IR 8.
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Five-year Financial Summary

YA AL &h
LFEHHFHME
Results By
Year ended 31 March
B Z3A31ALEE
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
HE#ET BEATL BEBT BHEAT HEAT
Turnover R 1,664.1 1,800.7 1,839.8 2,093.7 3,429.7
Profit (loss) from 2@ (BE)
operations 819.4 1,660.6 1,373.7 (253.7) 1,576.7
Finance costs HKER (63.2) (42.2) (82.2) (171.2) (193.2)
Share of results of DIEBENREE
associates 90.8 150.1 116.8 173.0 309.4
Share of results of DG HEREGEE
jointly controlled entities ~ Z£4& 69.9 79.3 780.2 03) (34.0)
Profit (loss) before taxation [ %t Al Al (E518) 916.9 1,847.8 2,1885 (252.2) 1,658.9
Taxation I8 (61.2) (63.9) (236.1) (61.6) (334.4)
Profit (loss) for the year — AEEEH (B1E) 855.7 1,7839 1,952.4 (313.8) 1,3245
Attributable to: THI L :
Owners of the Company AR EIHA A 747.2 1,647.9 1,890.8 (292.4) 9785
Non-controlling interests ~ 3FIZ A% i % 108.5 136.0 616 (21.4) 346.0
Profit (loss) for the year ~ AFEEH (B1E) 855.7 1,7839 19524 (313.8) 1,3245
Statement of Financial Position 5 BRI 3% E R
Information
At 31 March
W3A31AH
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
HEET BEBT BEBT BEBTT BEBTT
Total assets BEHEE 23,180.5 21,3339 18,1215 17,858.0 18,427.2
Total liabilities BER%E (7,364.1) (6,457.1) (5,179.7) (6,964.9) (6,985.4)
Non-controlling interests ~ FEIZ RS (1,320.6) (1,305.1) (1,157.5) (1,094.6) (1,1185)

Equity attributable to AREEEA
owners of the Company ~ JE{A#% 14,495.8 13,571.7 11,784.3 9,798.5 10,323.3
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Particulars of Major Properties

A. Properties held for/under

TZ2Y

MUz AN/

Rat'

==
B

A, FifEEER b 2P

development
Gross floor Expected
area (sq. ft.)  Stage of completion Nature
Descriptions BIETEEE  completion date  of property
R (EAR) EREER BEHERA  WEHE
1. The remaining phases, NEL =&
Discovery Bay, Lantau Island 82 T &£
(@) YiPak, Discovery Bay, ALt S &
Lantau Island =
- Residential —fFE
Remaining BT & H 187,697  Superstructure in 2012 Residential
Phases progress Fx
FETRETH
— Commercial —E% 22,715 Construction 2012 Commercial
under progress EES
TR
~ Hotel — A5 269,100 Interior fitting 2012 Hotel
out works in BE
progress
mEs1E
TRR#ETH
(b)  Others (note) ot (i) 511,216 Not yet No definite plan ~ Retained for future
commenced EEEE development
WAET BIERRER
2. Plotnos. 34, 174and 257 HZEEA 871,954  Construction 2012 Residential
Soi Attakarnprasit 10120 Sathorn, under progress F=E
Thungmahamek, Sathorn ~ Soi Attakarnprasit TIZEITH
Bangkok 10120 Thungmahamek,
Thailand 34~ 1742575 1 b
3. Lotno. 1613 in DD MARAEREN 3,731 Notyet No definite plan ~ Residential
no. 222, Kap Pin Long, L EH222%: commenced EETEE EE
Sai Kung, New Territories 1 ER16135 WAE T

Note: The Discovery Bay Project has a total site area of approximately

70 million sq. ft.. The remaining development area comprises a
total of about 153,905 sq. ft. of gross building area of residential

and commercial development and about 357,311 sq. ft. of

gross building area for recreational development.

MisE: fs2&

HERMEEALR708EF

FR-HTNRELHBEARERED
153,905F IR 2 (FE R 3R A -
AR #32 SAmFE49357,311 F AR 2B
LR MY o
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T BRI

B. Investment properties under

B. fEg#tEYWE

construction
Gross floor Expected
area (sq. ft.)  Stage of completion  Nature

Descriptions BEEEE  completion date  of property
BR (EAR) EREER BHTHE WFEEE
4. 2-6Fui Yiu Kok Street, HRAEERZEAH 93,623  Foundation in 2014 Industrial

Tsuen Wan, New Territories ~ 2-6 5% progress I%

ETRETH

C. Investment properties held for

rental purposes

C. A BEWRME AW

AR &

Attributable
Gross floor interest to
area (sq. ft.)  Nature of the Group  Category

Descriptions BIEMMEE  property AEE  of lease

R (FAR) WMERE Bz HEEER

5. 2 houses located at Bijou Hamlet, AU = RN 5,392 Residential 100%  Medium
Discovery Bay, Lantau Island ETEREE FE i

6. 5houses located at Headland Village, AU |L 14 = & B 55 12,836  Residential 100%  Medium
Discovery Bay, Lantau Island hiETEE*R F=E i

7. 13 units comprising highrise, lowrise AU (1118 & &% 1& 20,887  Residential 100%  Medium
and duplex apartments located at 13(EEMN (heEE FE F
Peninsula Village, Discovery Bay, i EEER RER
Lantau Island BAARK)

8. 1 highrise apartment located at RNE L= EmEE 1,068  Residential 100%  Medium
Greenvale Village, Discovery Bay, 1{8 = B B F=E i
Lantau Island

9. 33 highrise apartments located at ANELB=ERRA 21,150  Residential 100%  Medium
Parkridge Village, Discovery Bay, 33 = B B A F=E H

Lantau Island
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Attributable
Gross floor interest to
area (sq. ft.)  Nature of the Group  Category

Descriptions HEEERE  property AEE  of lease

iR (FAR) WMERE Bz HEEER

10. 6 midrise apartments located at ANE L & 4522  Residential 100%  Medium
DB Plaza, Discovery Bay, s ESH6ET EE F=E F
Lantau Island

11. 2 lowrise apartments located at ANEL 2483  Residential 100%  Medium
Siena One, Discovery Bay, R —E F=E H
Lantau Island 2{EHE R B g

12. 1 lowrise apartment located at ANE L g5 & 1,315  Residential 100%  Medium
Siena Two, Discovery Bay, R B F=E F
Lantau Island AR E

13. 1 lowrise apartment located at AR EEER 976  Residential 100%  Medium
La Vista, Discovery Bay, 1B E F= i
Lantau Island

14. 3 highrise apartments located at NE L= ERE 2197  Residential 100%  Medium
Neo Horizon, Discovery Bay, e = B E AL F= i
Lantau Island

15.  14/F of Century Tower Il and BEBLTERFRESR 3,663  Residential 100%  Long
Car Parking Space No. 12 on IR RISA KRB F=E =
Level 1, Century Tower, Nos. 1 and 4Rt ERE
1A Tregunter Path, The Peak, FIEFEZI2REN
Hong Kong

16.  Flat 2 on st Floor and Car Parking ~ BB ZEEE7CH 3,200  Residential 100%  Long
Space No. 19 and One Roof Space BEAEE2EH Fx R H
Marked “5”, Bowen Mansion, 1957 B {u
7C Bowen Road, Hong Kong & [5] K&

17. 6 highrise apartments located at AELFEREXEF 6,652  Residential 100%  Medium
Coastal Skyline, Tung Chung, offl = FE B fr FE i

Lantau Island
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Particulars of Major Properties
T BRI

Attributable
Gross floor interest to
area (sq. ft.)  Nature of the Group  Category
Descriptions BIEMMEE  property AEE  of lease
Bn (FAR) WMERE ks HEER
18. 4 highrise apartments located at AU R 4,082  Residential 100%  Medium
Tung Chung Crescent, Tung Chung, ~ SRIZ/ERE FE H
Lantau Island MASEEL
19. 10 highrise apartments located at ANE R RSRER 7419  Residential 100%  Medium
Seaview Crescent, Tung Chung, 1083 B Efi F=E F
Lantau Island
20. 7 residential units and F 16,407  Residential 100% Long
9 car parking spaces of LEMRER F=E =8
Chelsea Residence, %1 §£ 1038 1695+
No. 169 of Lane 1038, FEER-KX
Huashan Road, Changning District, ~ 7fAEE&EfI %
Shanghai, the PRC IfEE (L
21. 2 highrise apartments located at AL R E & 1,438 Residential 50%  Medium
Peninsula Village, Discovery Bay, 2{E = R E A F=E H
Lantau Island
22.  DIA Palace Sapporo Higashi Actio, B ZAALIEDIA Palace 44593 Residential 100%  Freehold
Sapporo, Japan Sapporo Higashi Actio F=E KAERE
23.  Horizon Place Akasaka, Tokyo, BARER 81,624  Residential 100% Freehold
Japan Horizon Place Akasaka FE KAFRE
24, Homat Sun, Tokyo, Japan ARRR 57,521  Residential 100%  Freehold
Homat Sun FE KAERE
25.  Commercial Centre, Discovery Bay, — AEILIHSE 180,910  Commercial 50%  Medium
Lantau Island EELIN GRS b
26.  Shop 401, Coastline Villa, RNE L= EEE 7417 Commercial 50%  Medium
Peninsula Village, Discovery Bay, BRI T401E EES i

Lantau Island
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Attributable
Gross floor interest to
area (sq. ft.)  Nature of the Group  Category
Descriptions BIEMMEE  property AEE  of lease
R (EAR) WEHE Bz HEEER
27.  Commercial Centre, Yi Pak, ANE LR E=RE 147,445 Commercial 50%  Medium
Discovery Bay, Lantau Island BERL (S F
28.  22nd Floor, China Merchants Tower, ~ &/& T iAiEH 10,800  Commercial 100%  Long
Shun Tak Centre, 168-2005% f5 &40 [GES 3.1
168 - 200 Connaught Road Central, ~ BERAE22&
Hong Kong
29.  West Gate Tower, No. 7 NERD EKRETH 146,531  Industrial 100%  Medium
Wing Hong Street and KBS Ix F
8 King Lam Street, FaAEE R L
Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon
30.  CDW Building, 382-392 FRREER7-375 982,777 Industrial 100%  Medium
Castle Peak Road, F1L38382-392%% I% h 8
27-37 Mei Wan Street, REABAE
Tsuen Wan, New Territories
D. Properties held for sale D. ¥Frfeth ¥
Attributable
Gross floor interest to
o area (sq. ft.)  Nature of the Group  Category
Descriptions @EEEHE  property FEE  of lease
R (EAR) W%HE Bz HEEER
31.  Neo Horizon, Discovery Bay, AU a2 R 18 791  Residential 50%  Medium
Lantau Island FE b
32.  Chianti, Discovery Bay, KU L= & H 3R 6,344  Residential 50%  Medium
Lantau Island FE i
33.  Amalfi, Discovery Bay, ANE L= E2R 169,337  Residential 50%  Medium
Lantau Island FE b



HKR International Limited Annual Report 2011/2012

240

Particulars of Major Properties
T BRI

E. Other properties

E. Hfb¥ysE

Attributable
Site area interest to
(sq.ft.) Nature of the Group
Descriptions e EE property i3
R (FAR) MEME FE 16 1 55
34. Lot nos. 373RP and 374 in D.D. 352 R TS 4935258 23,400 Residential 100%
Lantau Island 3 B 3735 BR R ]2 374%% — retained for future
development
FE
~-BERRERE
35. Lot nos. 1735, 1737, 1979 and HRBELENFNR 154,106 Agricultural lots 100%
portions of Lot nos. 1978 and 0 B 173555 * 173757 (no definite plan)
2012 in Demarcation District no. 91, 19795 bA £ 1978%: Iz RHHER
Fanling, New Territories 201257 2 Bk (EEEEE)
36.  Various Lots in Demarcation District AEL=R 147,669 Agricultural lots 50%
no. 363, Sam Pak, Lantau Island L EHFE3635H % @R (no definite plan)
Bt
(EEEEE)
37.  Section B and the remaining portion M E 05 BEY R ER » 57,935 Agricultural lots 100%
of Lot no. 5, Section A and the B55AR RERER A K (no definite plan)
remaining portion of Lot no. 65 and 6157 ~ 665 * 675 1695 B ER
Lot nos. 61, 66, 67 and 69, Peng Chau (EETEE)
38.  Section C and the remaining M 3 R 535457 35,266 Agricultural lots 100%
portions of Lot nos. 354 and 346, R 3465 CEY R #r Bk (no definite plan)
Peng Chau B
(EEEEE)
39.  Various Lots in Demarcation District AU 14T 7K Diana Farm 222,593 Golf course 50%
no. 354, Diana Farm, Hang Sui, LENE3B45 % [ R (completed)
Lantau Island BRAKS
(%I)
40.  The remaining portion of Lot no. 317 FARATEMLENF1325% 1,39 Agricultural lots 50%
in Demarcation District no. 132, L3175 2 B EX (no definite plan)

Tuen Mun, New Territories

B
(EEER )
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